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Customer Satisfaction — Our Pride

Your Company uses the following quotation for
pledging commitment to satisfy our customers:

“A customer is the king and the most
important visitor on our premises.”

Your Company maintains high levels of transparency
in its interactions with customers and this has helped
it to increase customer satisfaction and loyalty as
reflected in its net promoter scores. It aims to
maintain high levels of customer service and its
customer centric approach has been a key driver of its
growth.

Our robust Customer Grievance Redressal Policy
ensures that resolution of customer complaints and
customer satisfaction 1s of key importance to
company's business model.




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Rajesh Khandwala is a visionary and
founder of the Khandwala Group. He is a
Commerce Graduate having expenence of
over three decades in Capital Markel
activities, He is a dominant figure in Gujarat
Capital Market and has contributed greatly to
the Group's rise. With his support in the
business of housing finance, he is taking up the
Company to the new heights,

Mr. Vimal Khandwala

Managing Director
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Mr. Rajesh Khandwala

Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Vimal Khandwala is a Commerce
Graduate and has deep operational
knowledge of more than 20 years in
Capital Market activities. Mr. Vimal
Khandwala keeps providing the group
with the much needed controls for
efficient business operations and with his
support the business of the Company, 15
operating in an organized manner.



Mr. Kushal Khandwala 15 a graduate
with a Master's degree from the
Liniversity ol Warwick. who POSSERSES
substantial expertise 1n the Finance
sector and Non-Banking Financial
Company (NBFC) funding. Following a
Y-yvear tenure al one of the top 3
investment houses, he has been actively

involved with the Khandwala Group,

assuming a full-time role in overseeing
the operations of KIFS Housing Finance.

Mr. Kushal Khandwala

Whole Time D¥rector

Mr. Satish Mehta is the founder of Athena
Advisors — a boutigue consultancy firm,
consulting m the arcas of Morigage Finance
and Credit Information & Bureaus. Mr.
Mehta's experience spanning over 40 vears
in the areas of housing finance, consumer
finance, business development, training,
credit information and management
consultancy has resulted in the creation of
India’s first credit bureau — CIBIL, and he
has extended invaluable expertise to the
fledgling financial infrastructures of
countries in South Asia and the Middle East.

Prior to founding Athena, Mr. Mehita .
worked with the Quantum Group (CEQ), M:: ISH?S?DM?I:'[& ‘i
ndependent Directo

Dun & Bradstreet Dubar , Credit
Information Bureau (India) Lid — CIBIL,
HDFC and Piramal Capital & Housmng A
Finance Limited.
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Ms. Bhavna Desai is a Bachelor in
Commerce from Mumbai University
having over two decades of expenence m
shares and secunty markel achivities. she
was assoctated as a partner with a finm M/s
(. B, Desai which i1s engaged in the
business of dealing with securities.

Mr. Kartik Mehta

Independent DNrector
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Ms. Bhavna Desai

Non- Executive Director

Mpr. Kartik § Mehta 1s a qualified Chartered
Accountant from Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and a member of the
Institute of Cost Accountant of Incha. He 15
also quahthed Certthied Financial Planner. He
15 a Career banker with more than 31 years of
experience in the banking and the financial
services mndustry in India. He has worked
across various funcoons including corporate
finance, treasury management, retail banking
and distribution, agriculture credit and
priority sector and microfinance durning his
banking career. Over the last couple of years,
¢ has been associated as a Micro Finance
practitioner and has extensively worked in
the western geographies of India. Mr, Mehia
has also been imvolved with some ploneerng
work in the banking correspondent space and
has travelled extensively Lo study the model

m Braz1l and South Africa.
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Ms. Purvi Bhavsar

Independent Director

Purvi Bhavsar, a first-generation entrepreneur from Ahmedabad is the co-founder of Pahal
Financial Services Private Limited, a Leading Non-Banking Financial Services Company
(NBFC-MFI) working in the area of microfinance and enterprise lending.

She has a prohfic expenience of over 30 years in the areas of BESI-(Banking and Financial
Services Industry ) and Telecom having worked in some of the most reputed organizations of
the country like Kotak Mahindra, HDFC Bank, ICICl Bank and Vodafone India. She has very
diverse exposure across the entire spectrum of Corporate and Retail Banking, Consumer
Finance, Stock Broking, Distribution and Customer Service. For her pursuits, she was
awarded one of the "leading women n telecom industry” during 2010-11. She was recently
recognized as Top 10 women in Finance - 2020, She 1s currently serving on the board of an
affordable housing hinance company.

She recently completed her Acumen Fellowship Program. She was selected for a scholarship
program run at [IMB as a part of Goldman Sachs 10K women program-2019. She has
undergone a program run by Stanford Seed India and has received a scholarship. She has
mentored fintech start-ups as a part of Stanford Spark program apart from other agriculture (
Buddy- [ IMB}and other impact start-ups.

OUR CORE TEAM

1. Mr. Vikki Soni Chief Financial Officer

2. Mr. Saurabh Goel Head - Credit and Risk
Amit Shrivastava AVP - Legal

4. Mr. Dharmendra Doshi Chiel Compliance Officer

5. Mr. Gundopant Salokhe Chief Technology & Information Officer

6. Mr. Vipul Dubey Deputy Vice President- Technical

T. Mr. Sanjay Chavan Orperations Head
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AL COMPANY DETAILS

OO U692 201200 5PLOCOR 0TS
REB1 Reg. Mo, DOR-145 dated August 12, 2020
NHB COR No., 10,0145, 16 dated Oclober 27, 2016
LEI No.: 335800355RIYDEZDX 031

Website: www kifshousing com

B. REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE ADDRESS

-2 Registered Office :-
Bth Floor, KIFS Corporate House, Beside Hodel Planct Landmark, Near Ashok Vatika Bris,
Iskon-Ambli Road, Bodakdey, Ambli, Ahmedabad, Guparat - 380054

- Corporate (¥lice :-
C=902, Lotus Corporate Park, Graham Firth Compound, Western Express Highway, Goregaon {East),
Wombare 000G

C, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

hir. Rajesh Khondwala Chaimman & Managing Dhrector
M. Vimal Khandwala Managing Director
Mr. Kushal Khandwala Whole Time Director
Mir ";-itr';!ih Mehtn . Independent Director
Ms. Bhiavna Desal Mon- Executive Director
~Mr. Kartik Mchta I |1-.|-_.';'|_|.'_n-._|-:.'.'1_| _I_.':l:'l'un._'Fr-r_

bds. PurviBhay s | |'Il!.|.'!'!"|.'|'ll.|r_':-l i Dipector

). DETAILS OF COMMITTEES

Audit Committee C5KE Committes

m  Mr. Satish Mchia Chairmean m Ny Vimal Khandwala Chairman

L M. Vimal Khandwaia i [- L Wir. Rajesh Khandwala Member
[ ] e Kuzhal Ehai 5 he Satish Mehia Member

B Mr Kartik Meht: Memsher

[ ] Ml Purvd Bhay s MlErmibieT

Asset Liability Management Committee

Mir. Vimal Khandwals (- haroman ! ' hatman

]
m M Rajesh Ehandwala Member MWis. Bhavna Desai Member

m Mr. Kushal khandwals Member I Mr. Wimal Khandwala Member
-__-._.::.-]:;.I-'-.l-l- "p'|_|I1 _:'_'.h'n;-:'-l'l Wi Avinash Snvasiava M ek
M. Kartik Mehta Pember M. Vikki Soni MMember

Mr. Vikki Soni Member

[

[

m s Puona Bhavsar Member [ Mr. Gundopant Salokhe M embser
= |

[

Mlr. Clundopant Salokhe Member
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Customer Grievance Redressal Commitlee | Wilful Defaulter ldentification Committes
Mr. Vi Chandwals Chairman B M Vimal Khandwal: Chairman
" @ Mr Kushal Khandwala @ Member m  Mr Rajesh Khandwal: Member
®  Mr Koshal Khandwala Member
L& T = Vikki Soni Member
r, Dharmendra D Member | . Baurabh Goel Member
Mr. Sanjay Chavan Member . Yogesh Khakam Member

Borrowing and Investment Committee
Mr. Vimal KEhandwala Chairman { hairman
Mr. Rajesh Khandwaln hMember . B , ale Member
Mr. Kushal Khandwala M by
Mr. Satizh Mehia Member
Mr. Kartik Mehta Mlemther

Risk Management Commities

hir. Vil Khandwaln Chamrmin
Mr. Satish Mehia Member

m Ms Purvi Bhavsu Miemiben

i

|

! Blr, Wikki Som Membes
M Kushal Khandwala Member | Mr, Saurasbh Goel b eimbeer

|

Mr. Kartik Mehto Member MT ij:|_u'r|_]|.}]_'|:|.|'|l Salokle Member

Wilful Defaulier Review Commities
§  Mr Rajesh Khandwala s
| Mr, Vimal Khandwala Member

| Wi, Bhavna Desai Member

Mr. Rajesh Khandwala Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Vimal Khandwala Managing Dhrector

Mr. Kushal Khandwala Whole Time Director

Mr. Vikk: Soni Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Samrudhi Shetty Company Secretary
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F. BANKS (LENDERS)

Mational HHowsing Bank

Slale Bank ol India

Federal Bank Limited

ALY small Finance Bank Lamited

South Indian Bank

HDFC Bank Limited

[L¥E] Lymited

O] Bank Lamited

KarurVysya Bank Limited

Canara Bank Limited

58 Bank

Kotak Mahindra Invesiments Limited

Uikarsh Small Finance Bank

Poonawalla Fincorp Limited

Sundaram Home Finance Lud

G STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s Manubhai& Shah LLP. Chartered Accountanis

H. INTERNAL AUDITORS
KEC & Associates LLP

I. DOPEARTIONAL AUDITORS
M/s Sanjay Vastupal & Co, Chartered Accountants

J. SECRETARIALAUDITOR
Mz Karan Doshi & Co., Company Secretanes

K. REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT
MNSDL Databazse Manapement Limited (“NDML™)

L. DEPOSITORIES
National Securitics Depository Lid. (NSDL)
Central Depositonies Services India Lid. (CDSL)

Capital Small Finance Bank

Tata Capital Financieal Serveices Limited




MESSAGE
FROM THE ’
Mr. Rajesh Khandwala

M AN AGING Chalrman & Managing Direetor
DIRECTORS

—

Mr. Vimal Khandwala
Managing Director

Dear Stakeholders,

We are delighted to present to yvou the 9" Annual Report and the Financial Statements of KIFS Housing
Finance Limited for the yvear ended March 31, 2024, The FY 2023-24 has been a magnificent year for the
Company as it has created new history by achieving new targets in the business.

Opportunitics in the housing segment are as vast as they are promising, and KIFS Housing is committed to
make the most of the same. Your Company is concurrently dnving multiple steategies: judiciously managing
liquidity, leveraging a rich resource profile and maintaining a highly robust portfolio of assets and a balanced
growth. We have brought innovanons in the business, made some Key changes in our strategies and
decisions, while still preserving our values and strong foundation. Powered by strong systems and
processes, a differentiated portfolio and focused business strategy, your Company is progressing with agile
steps.

Owr Vision is to be the most trusted housing loan provider by creating the tools required for a seamless &
intuitive online experience for our customers,

Your Company will continue to grow in step with the sweeping socio-economic transformation 1n the
country amd enrich its solutions spectrum to meet the changing requirements of customers.

Your company is making significant progress across all growth pillars, including digital transformation, data
analytics, distribution networks, and due diligence.

Your Company has developed robust policies and processes to support its business operations. It operates
through a decentralized process, empowering the branch and regional-level teams with business decisions
within the framework of policies and processes approved by the board. The central team and audit
committee provide strong oversight to ensure smooth function, control, and compliance.

Through our mvestment in talent development, we have built a scalable workforce adhering to industry-
leading practices, putting us in front of the competition. People initiatives aim to foster a sense of belonging,
foster diversity of thought, foster positive relationships, and provide opportunities for fullilling growth
aligned with individual goals.

As a final note, we want to thank all members of the KIFS Housing team for their team spirit and to all
stakeholders for their trust, integrity, and accountability. We would also like to thank the regulatory agencies
for their support and guidance.

With renewed optimism and confidence, we look forward 1o the New Year.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 9° Annual Report on the business and operational performance of the
Company logether with the Audited Financial Statements and the Report of the Auvditors for the linancial year
ended March 31, 2024,

STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

Your Company was established in November, 2015 with the main aim of offering reasonably priced housing
loans. The company's head office i1s located in Mumbai and it is registered in Ahmedabad, Gujarat. The
Company 15 managed by a board of professionals.

Your Company is focused on providing retail housing loans to the Low and Middle-Income segment
customers across India, with a special emphasis on Tier 2, 3 and 4 towns. [t operates through branches with a
HUB and SPOKE model i these towns.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS

The Company's financial performance for the Financial Year ended 31" March 2024 as compared (o the
previcus Financial Yearended 31" March 2023 15 summarised below:

(Rupees in Crores except EPS)

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023

Total Revenue from Operations |

Total Expenditure i B1.59 63.51
Profit / (Loss) before provision for tax | 2828 16.56
Tax Expense 7.49 3.12
Net Profit / { Loss) after tax 20.79 13.44
(her comprehensive income/(loss) | 0.02 0.19
Tonal Comprehensive Income 20.81 13.63
Eamings / (Loss) per Share (Basic & Diluted) 083 0.54

PERFORMANMCE REVIEW

The Company's gross income [or the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 increased 1o Rs. 10987 Cr as
compared 1o Rs. 80,08 Crin the previous Financial Year therebhy registening an icrease M]Tmm profit
before tax of the Company is Rs. 28.28 Cr during the year. The Net Profit for the FY mh:ﬂ;ﬁ"ﬂa Asset
Under Management (AUM) were at Rs. 79742 Cras at March 31, 2024 as agmnst Rs. 601 Iﬁ_ﬁ 3 March

31,2023,

DIVIDEND

In view of the planned business growth, your Direclors dﬂEngplﬁpﬂ' .
Company for its activibies and therefore, have nol recom mended any dividend fg
March 31, 2024. The Directors also inform that ﬁﬂfﬂﬂl‘ﬁlﬂihﬁ. 0!
year.




ACCOUNTING METHOD

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, read with Section
133 of the Companies Act, 20013 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2011 3, various regulatory
guidelines to the extentrelevant and applicable to the Company and in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India. The details of the accounting treatment followed during the financial yvear are
mentioned in Notes to Financial Statement.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There were no material changes and commitmenis affecting the financial position of the Company from the
cnd of the financial vear up to the date of this report.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the financial vear under review. there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company is non deposit accepting housing finance company. The Company has not accepted deposits
during the year and the provisions of Section 73 of the Act, 2013 read with the Companies { Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS & OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

Your Company 1s registered as a Housing Finance Company (“HFC™) with Mational Housing Bank (*NHB™}
and Reserve Bank of India to carry out the housing finance activities in India. KHFL continues to focus on
affordable housing segment, catering specially to the aspirations of low and middle-income Indian families
who dream to own their homes, It is engaged in on-lending business for Retail housing loans to customers
belonging to Middle Income Group (MIG) & Low Income Group (LIG). Company's 100% portfolio is retail
and organic 1.e. NIL bought portfolio and NIL builder loan.

The Business profile of KHFL is majorly tilted towards formal, salaried category as compared to informal and
self- employed segment, which is low risk customer profile with an average ticket size of Rs. 9.04 Lakhs hence
overall NPA risk for KHFL remains low.

FOIR & LTV ratios Band
Average FOIR and LTV of all customers is 41% and 50% respectively.

Ourproduct wise yield in home loan sector is 13.63% and Non Home Loan sector is 15.62%.
Wie received subsidy for 30.68% of Home Loan portfolio as on March 31, 2024.

Penetration towards direct sourcing with a healthy mix of Business Associates who made our presence strong
in every hook & corner of the city is our driving force. Conscious Profile & Product mix ofthe portfolio helped

us to keep our delinguency in control,

Your Company has recorded an mcome of Rs, 10987 Cr as against Rs. 80,08 Cr. in the previous year and the
profit after tax is Rs, 20,79 Cras against Rs. 13,44 Crin the previous year.
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HOLDING COMPANY

The Company does not have any holding Company, subsidianes, Associates or Jomt Ventures.

KIFS International L LP holds the majonty shareholding of your Company.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION

AND PROTECTION FUND

Since your Directors have neither declared any interim dividend during the year under review nor
recommended any linal dividend, there 15 no unpaid dividend of earher years which has been transferred or
due to be transferred (o Investor Education and Protection Fund during the year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, your Company has transferred Ry, 3.68 Crto Statutory Reserve as reguired

under section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 equivalent to 20% of profit after tax or deduction
cloimed w's 364 1 )} vint) of Income Tax Act, 1961, whichever is higher,

CAPITALSTRUCTURE
Druring the year under review, there has been no change in authorsed, subscnibed and pad-up Capital of your
Company.

The same 15 as [ollows:

Share Capital Amount (in Rs.)

Authorized Share Capital (250,000,000 Equity Shares of Bs. [0 cach) as on 2500, 000, 00, D00
March 31, 2024

Issued, Subscribed and Paid - up Capatal as on March 31, 2024 {249 986,452 249 9%8.64,520
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

A detailed analysis of the Company’s performance is discussed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

S
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors forms the top layer of the hierarchy of vour Company, which helps in setting broad
goals, support senior management in pursuit of those goals and ensure the company has well managed
resources at its disposal. The Board asa governance body works in the best interests of stakeholders.

As on March 31, 2024, your Company has total Seven Directons comsisting of Three Independent Dircctors
including One Women Director, One Non-Exccutive Director who is also a Woman Director and Three
Executive Directors as stated below:

The Composition of Board are as under;-

A ppointment

Tenure
date

Designation

Mame of ihe Direciors

Mr. Bajesh Parmanand T Chairman & Managing | November 16
Ta7i 1 B4 v
L Khandwala LI Dhrector { Executive) M5 it o
Mr. Vimal Parmanand . Managing Director slovember 16 -
2 . (M 7TT6E i 1 B.3 years
Ehindwala ; {Executive) M5 L
*Nir. Kushial Javesh Whale Time Director Mlareh 20,
- 11345686 | years
< Ehandwala (33436 {Lxecutive) 23 L
Ind dent Direct v 3
4. | M. Satish Gordhan Mchta 00110640 | o e coutive] pavemser % | 14 years
=Ehir. Kartik Shailesh e, [ndependent Directo March 04, e
> Mehia el (Mon-Executive) 116 8 years
=23 0=, Purvi Jayendra i Independent Director March 04, -
e 27 ; 2 8 yoars
s Bhavsar 02102740 iNon=-Executivi) Mila et
- ErEids. Bhavna Govindbha 06891242 Muon-Executive December 01, 3 4 years
: [esal i Dhrecion 2020 e g

During the financial year under review, the following changes took place in the Board of vour Company:

*The appointment of Mr. Kushal Khandwala as 2 Whole Time Director was regularized by the Shareholders at
its Meeting held on September 25, 2023.

**Mr. Kartik Mchta was re-designated from Non — Executive Director to Independent Director of the
Company with effect from May 30, 2023,

**4Ms. Purvi Bhavsar was re-designated from Non - Executive Director to Independent Director of the
Company with effect from May 30, 2023,

42 ms. Bhavna Desai was re-designated from Independent Director 1o Non — Exccutive Director of the
Company with effect from June 19, 2023,

All the aforesard approvals for appointmentre-appointment/re-designation of the Direclors were duly
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the NHB/RBI Directions, none of the directors on the Board of your Company are
disqualified from being appointed’ continuing as directors.

The Company has also received declarations under section 1844 1) read with Rule 9 1) of the Companies Act,
20113 from the Directors stating their interest or concern in other companics.

Pursuant to provisions of Chapter [X — Corporate Governance of Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by RBI, the Company has
received the requisite declarations and undertaking from all directors of the Company and all the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the Fit and Proper eritenia.
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In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Rajesh Khandwala is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and the Director is cligible for re-
appolntment.

The Company has recerved necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 149 7) of the
Companies Aet, 2013 ( Act) that he/she meets the criteria of independence laid down in the Act, as amended.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications,
expenence and expertise. All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered their names with the
data bank created for Independent Directors.

The details on the number of board/committee meetings heldare provided in the Report of the Directors on
Corporate Governance, which forms part of this report.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companics Act, 201 3rcad with Rules made thercunder,
following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2024:

MName of the Directors Designation
I Mr. Rajesh Parmanand Khandwala | Chainman & Managing Director (Executive)
. Mr. Vimal Parmanand K hnmdwenla Managing Director { Executive)
3 M. Kushal Jayesh Khandwala Whole Time Director ( Executive)
4. Mr. Vikki Somi Chief Financial Officer
5, Ms, Sammedhin Shetty Company Secrelary

During the financial vear under review, the following changes took place in the Key Managenial Personnel of
vour Company:

*The appoinmment of Mr. Kusha! Khandwala as a Whole Time Director was regularized by the Shareholders at
its Meeting held on September 23, 2023,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Companies (Amendment) Act, 2007 has amended the
provisions of Section92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 with effective from 28th August 2020. Post the
amendment, every company shall place a copy of the annual return on the website of the company, if any, and
the web-link of such annual retumn shall be disclosed in the Board' sreport. The requirement of annexing
extract of annual return in Form MGT-9 has been repealed.

Accordingly, the Annual Retum in Form MGT-7 for the financial vear ended March 31, 2024, shall be
available on the website of the Company al hitps:kifshousing com financial-reports!

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES PURSUANT TO SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

In accordance with the provizsions of Section 188 of the Act and rules made thereunder, all the iransactions are at arm'’s
length basis, the details of which are included in the notes forming part of the financial statements, The particulors of
contracts or arrangements with related parties as prescribed in Form No. AOC--2 of the Companies { Accounts) Rules,
2014, 15 annexed to this report in Annexure [1.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions can be accessed at hitps://kifshousing com/governance-policies/.
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EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 13403 )¢) of the Companics Act, 2013 and Nomination, Remuneration &
Evaluation Policy of the Company, the Board of vour Company has carried out an annual evaluation of its own
performance and that of its Committees as well as reviewed the performance of the Directors individually for
Financial Year 2023-2024, The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a
whole, was cammied out by the Independent Directors. The Independent Directors also carried out the
evaluation of the Chairman of the Company, considering the views of Non-Executive Directors and also
assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and
the Board that is necessary for the Board 1o effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The Directors also
carried out performance evaluation of the Managing Directors of the Company.

The evaluation was carried out through a rating based structured questionnaires prepared in accordance with
guidance note issued by ICS] on performance evaluation, it covered various parameters which were different
for different categornies of Directors, in all it included questions/pointers with respect to appropriate expertise
and experience, integrity, clear mission statements, pelicies, and Strategy formulation and execution,
effective organization structure, ensuring that there is management focus on key functions, working
relationships, Product/Service Knowledge, Personal Qualitics, Leadership, Financial planning / performance,
External Relations, Knowledge and Skill, Paricipanon at Board’ Committee Meetings etc,

The Directors have expressed their satisfaction with the parameters of evaluation, the implementation and
comphiance of the evaluation exercise done,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

The Corporate Governance Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 ag stipulated in the Section I{A) -
Corporate governance of RBI Circular dated Apnl 19, 2022 on Disclosure in Financial Statements — Notes to
Accounts of NBFCs read with RBI Circular dated October 22, 2021 forms part of the Annual Report and is
anncxed to this report in Annexure 111

GENERAL MEETINGS:
The 8" Annual General Meeting of your Company was held on September 25, 2023,

During the vear under review, 2 Extra-ordinary General Meetings were held onOctober 25, 2023 and
MNovember 28, 2023,
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BOARD
MEETINGS

The size of the Board is commensurate with the size and business of the Company. The Company held a
minimum of one hoard meeting in every quarner with a gap of not exceeding 120 days between two
consecutive board meetings. During the year under review, the Board Meetings were held on May 30, 2023,
June 19, 2023, August 10, 2023, November 27, 2023 and February 12, 2024. The attendance of the Board

Members are as follows:

The Composition of the Boardand the attendance of the Directors at the meetings were as under;

Mo, of Meetings

Mame of the Directors Desigmation ;
ame of the Directors LSy attended out of 5

|, Mr |L"|:i{:.~=.|| Parmanand Khandwala . OO T7TATE :J?rll:::?f::ktt:n?f;ng 04
- Mamaging Direci
2z Mr, Vimal Parmanand Khandwala (04777608 |”_ “M_bll_u_..L e 4
T KECUIvE )
3 *Mr, Kushal Javesh Khandwala 03345686 Whote I.“m: thirector 05
2 (Execulive)
_ : ! ' Independem Director
<4 Mr. Satish Gordhan Mehia ! (CIRR T (Non-Exscotive) 05
Independent Director
“ T E Moatlmok hd sk MR TLAT ;
5 Wi Eartik Shailesh Mehia ! 23147 (Nor-Execiitive) i3
Independent Director
F a4 - e, — - ]
i M=, Purvi Jayvendra Bhavsar 2102740 ‘Non-Exccutive) {4
MNon-Executive
T e avia Govil  Dhisead 203747 : 1
] Ms. Bhavioa Govindbhiai Desai ! (MRO3 242 7 04

*The appointment of Mr. Kushal Khandwala as a Whole Time Director was regularized by the Sharcholders
at its Meeting held on September 23, 2023,

**Mr. Kartik Mchta was re-designated from Non - Executive Director to Independent Director of the
Company with effect from May 30, 2023,

**40s. Purvi Bhavsar was re-designated from Non - Executive Director to Independent Director of the
Company with effect from May 30, 2023,

*#**+4h4s. Bhavna Desal was re-designated from Independemt Director to Non - Executive Director of the
Company with effect from June 19, 2023,
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BOARD AND STATUTORY COMMITTEES:

The Company has the following Committees, which have been constituted in compliance with the
requirements of the business and relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes:

Audit Commtiee

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Borrowing and Investment Company

Asset Liability Management Committes
Information Technology Strategy Commitiee
Risk Management Committee

Customer Grievance Redressal Committee
Wiltul Defaulier ldentificanon Commuities
Wiltul Defaulter Review Committee

o ol ol o

=

During the Financial Year under review, all recommendations made by the above Commutiees were accepted
by the Board. Details of all the commuttees along with their composition, terms of reference, and meetings
held during the year are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of the Board Report in
Annexure 11

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

In accordance with the provisions ol Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder,
the Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprising Mr. Vimal Khandwala, Mr,
Rajesh Khandwala, Mr. Kushal Khandwala and Mr. Satish Mehta. Mr. Vimal Khandwala is the Chairman of
the Commitiee,

The role of the CSR Committee 1s to review the CS5R Policy, indicate activities to be undertaken by the
Company towards CSR and formulate a transparent monitoring mechanism to ensure implementation of
projects and activities undertaken by the Company towards CSR Activities.

KHFL was required fo spend Rs.38, 99, 424/- towards CSR activitics during the vear under review, Your
Company approved the CSR expenditure of Bs. 39,00 000/- and incurred CSR Expenditure of Bs. 17.00,000/-
towards Tata Mcemonal Hospital for treatment of cancer patients, Rs, 12,00,00{/- was spent towards Hunger
Free Palghar - an initiative by Govardhan Annakshetra, ISKON for free food distnibution and Rs. 10,00,000/-
was spent towards Sankara Nethralaya (unit of Medical Research Foundation) fortreatment of complicated
Major eye surgeries.

Deetanls of the composition of the CSR Committee and the C5R Policy have been provided in the Annual report
on Corporate Social Responsibility disclosed “Annexure 1V™” which forms an integral part of this Board's

Report.
The Company's CSR Policy can be accessed ot hittps:/Tkifs

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

During the Financial Year under review, a separate meeting of the Independent Dargetors was held on
February 12, 2024, without the attendance of the Non-Independent Directors and management of the
Company. The Non-Independent Directors, Chairperson, Managing Director, Statutory Committees, and the
Board as a whole were evaluated after assessing the quality, quantity, and timeliness of information flowing
between the Management and the Board, which is necessary for effective and reasonable performance of the
Board's duties.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

During the financial year under review, sitting fees as approved by the Board, has been paid to Mr. Satish
Mehta, Independent Director, Ms. Bhavna Desm, Non-ExecutiveDirector, Mr, Kartik Mehita, Independent
Director and Ms. Purvi Bhavsar, Independent Director for attending the Board and Committee Meetings.
Details of the sitting fees have been provided below

Particulars af Non-Executive Dircetors

Remuneration | Mr Kartik Mehta | Ms. Purvi Bhavsar | Ms, Bhavna Desal | Mr. Satish Mebta | Amount

Fee fon .|II..-II||i|||L

Board / Commmaliee 1,640, CHIC |, 18R4T | 2 0CHY 360,00 7. 540, (N}
mectings

LR TH TETEEES TR T - — = = -
Oighers® = | = - RN 3 (M) {H)
Tukl | 1ok, 54k 000
Iotal Manngernl

Remunerstinn

Crvgrall cenlang as

per the Act 1% of the Met Prodin of the Company

*Mr. Saush Mebia has received remuneration of Rs, 3,00,000 in the capacity of chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Rajesh Khandwala and Mr. Vimal Khandwala, Managing Directors and Mr. Kushal Khandwala, Whole
Time Director did nod receive any remuneralion or sittng fees from the Company.,

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER
RULE 5 (2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIALPERSONNEL)RULES 2014

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees and other details in
terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies { Appointment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 201415 not applicable as the Company 1s not a histed entity.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of Section 139 of the Act, M/s Manubhai & Shah LLP (FRN: 106041W/ W100136), Chartered
Accountants, were re-appointed as statutory auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the
& AGM of the Company Gl the conclusion of the 117 AGM. The statutory auditors have confirmed they are
not disqualified from continuing as auditors of the Company.

M/s Manubha & Shah LLP (FEN: 106041W/ W100136), the Statutory Auditors of the Company have
audited the books of accounts of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and have issued the
Auditors Report thereon. The Annual Accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Asg per the provisions of the NHB Notification No. NHB HFC .CGDIR. I'MD&CECQ/ 2016 and newly notified
Master Direction — MNon-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 202 1, partner of the audit firm is being rotated every three years.

Your Directors confirm that the Statutory Audit Report for Financial Year 2023-24 does not contain any
qualifications or reservations or adverse remarks.

In terms of the Master Circular - Housing Finance Companies - Auditor'’s Report (NHB) Directions, 2016, the
auditors have alse submitted an additional repert for FY 2023-24, There were no comments or adverse
remarks in the said report,

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any instance of frauds committed in
the Company as per Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, details of which needs to be mentioned in
the Report.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has an adequate system of internal control procedures which commensurate with the size and
nature of business. Detailed procedural manuals are in place to ensure that all the assets are safeguarded,
protected against loss and all transactions are authonzed. recorded and reported correctly. The internal control
svstems of the Company are monitored and evaluated by Internal Auditors and their Audil reports are
periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board.

Further, the Company has policies and procedures in place for Internal Financial Contrel ensuning the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial imformation.

SECRETARIALAUDITOR

The Secretanial Auditor of the Company have given an unqualified report for the financial year 2023-24,
however, thevhave reported certain observations which are as under:

Secretarial Audit Dbservations Commenis from the Board

l, The Company bad closed 3 branches wheretn there was deloy by 3-4 dayvsin | The Branches wereclsed due o
serving the notices in al least, one lending national newspaper and a lending | business exigency so the action was
local (covering the place ol branch’ olfice} vernacular newspaper as per ithe required o be laken on immediate

Master Direction of BB1 for closure of all tee 3 branches. basis, hence there has been adelay.
2 The Company was reguired o appoint Chiel Complinnee Officer as per the | The Company has finalised one of
RBI cirgular {DoS OO PPGAREC D] LO.005/2022-23) latest by 1si the candidatures for the position of

Chrel’ Complmnee Ollicer bul the
i : candidnie =0 sclected backed o
appomsed Mr Dharmendra Doshi as Chiel Comphance Officer with effect | 1500 minute. Hence. the delay
from 1 3th Febraary, 2024, occurmed -

Ocrober, W23, There was a delay in the appoiniment and the Company

The Sccretarial Audit report for the financial year 2023- 24 is annexcd to this report in Annexure V

INTERNALAUDITOR

Your Company has appointed M/s KKC & Associates, LLP, as Internal Auditor of the Company, to conduct
[Internal Audit for the Financial Year 2023-2024.

The Company has outsourced and has in place external system which is designed to ensure operational
efficiency, accuracy and prompiness in financial reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. The
intermal control system 15 supported by an Internal Audit team outsourced which s responsible for
independently evaluating the adequacy and effectivencss of all intermmal controls, risk management,
covernance systems and processes and is manned by team of qualified personnel.

The Internal Audit team during the course of its Audit also ascertains the extent of adherence to regulatory
guidelines, legal requinements and operational processes and provides timely feedback to the Management for
corrective action. Internal Audit Reports are obtained on a quarterly basis, which are reviewed by the Audit
Commuittee and discussed with the Management.

The Risk Management Commitiee and the Audit Commitiee peniodically review various risks associated with
the buginess of the Company and ensure effectiveness of the internal controls in the Company. The Company's
internal control system commensurite’ with the size and the nature of its operations.

The Intermal Awdit Report's observations were duly reviewed and addressed by the committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Your Company is in the lending business hence it faces various risks in its scale of operations. The Company
has in place a Risk Management framework so that risks that the Company faces are identified, controlled and
priced in a manner that the Company ¢an continue il operations in a profitable and sustainable manner.

The Risk Management Policy is to identify and mitigate elements of risk which in the opinion of the Board
may impact the Company and helps to promote risk awareness amongst employees and to integrate risk
management within the corporate culture.

Business risk evaluation and management 15 an ongoing process within the Company. The assessment 15
periodically done and examined by the Board of Directors of the Company and has delegated responsibility of
oversceing Risk Management Framework to the Audit Committee. In order to monitor the Risk in the
business and operations, the Risk Management commiitee was duly constituted. Your Company follows the
best practice for management of credit risk, market risk and operational risk and has put in place a
comprehensive Risk Management Policy envisaging a robust risk management programme.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In compliance with the provisions of the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder, the Whistle-Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy is formulated as pant of the Vigil Mechanism
established by the Company for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns, to provide a secure
environment and to encourage employees to report unethical, unlawful or improper practices, acts or
activities in the Company and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking any adverse personnel action
against those employees who report such practices in good faith.

KHFL is committed to developing a culture where it is safe for all employees to ruse concems about any
wrongful conduct, The Company believes in conducting 118 affairs in a fair and transparent manner by
adopting highest standards of professionalism. honesty, integrity and ethical behavior.

The Whistle-Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy aims to provide a channel to the Directors and employees to
report genuine concemns and gricvances about victimization, uncthical behavior, actual or suspected fraud,
viclation of the Codes of Conduct or policy. This Policy provides for adeguate safeguards against
victimization of Directors and employvees and also provides direct access to the Chairman of the Audit and
Risk Management Committes. The Whistle-Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism is uploaded on the website of
the Company al https:/kifshousing .com/govemance-policics’

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS & GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION
186 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

As the Company 15 a2 Housing Finance Company. the disclosure regarding particulars of the loans made,
guarantee given and security provided in the ordinary course of business are exempied under the provisions
of Section 1864{ 1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK
PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

The Company is committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of all its employees including women
employees and it has a policy which provides for protection against sexual harassment of women at
workplace and redressal of such complaints through the active Internal Complaint Committee to redress any
complaints received in umely and systematic manner.

Druring the year under review, no such complaints were received.

The policy along with all other required details is placed on the notice board of the Company, the same can be
accessed al hitps:/‘kifshousing . com/governance-policies’

Annual Report - 2023-24



REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT

Your Company has appointed M/'s. NSDL Database Management Limited as the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent,

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has lmd down a Code of Conduct for all the Board members and designated employees of the
Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGSANDOUTFLOW

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Company's operations call for nominal energy consumption cost and there are no major areas where
conservation measures could be applied on. However, the Company is making continuous efforts to conserve
energy and optimize energy consumption practicable by economizing the use of power,

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Since the Company is engaged in financial services activities, il does not require adoption of specific
technology and hence technology absorption is not apphcable to the Company.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTFLOW

a) Foreign Exchange camings — NIL
b) Foreign Exchange outgo - 0.32 Crore

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuning compliance with the provisions of Section 134(1)(c)
rend with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the preparation of annual accounts for the vear ended
March 31,2024 and states that-

(i} In the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial vear ended March 31, 2024, the
applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, il any;

(ii} Direciors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgment and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit and Loss of the Company for that penod;

(1) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{iv) The Directors have ensured preparation of annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) The Company has laid down internal financial controls. The Company has also assessed the adequacy of
the Company's internal controls over financial reporting as of March 31, 2024 and have found them to be
adeqguate and

(v1) The Directors have revised and reviewed proper systems o ensure compliance with the provisions ol all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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TOTAL BORROWINGS

A. DEBENTURES

As on March 31, 2024, there were no outstanding Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs). During the financial
year under review, your Company has not issued any NCDs and has redeemed following NCDs:

el SRR e Face Value
MName of ithe Debeniure Holders Drte of Redemption o of NCDs (per NCD in Rs)
| Canara Bank Juby 258 2023 125 101, CHO N

] Bank of Barodn August 11, 2021 230 100, ER (-

Your Company has been prompt and regular in making payment of principal and interest on the NCDs and the
same has been reported to BSE Limited, the Trustees and Depositories, During the year under review, the
NCDs were redeemed by your Company on ther respective due dates and there were no instances of any
NCDs which have not been claimed by the investor or not paidby the Company after the date on which the

MNCDs became due for redemption. Hence, the amount of NCDs remaming unclaimed or unpaid beyond due
date 15 Nil.

As the Company has redeemed all the NCDs s0 the Company is now delisted on BSE Limited.

Dhsclosure under Chaprer XI-Guidelines on Private Placement of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) OF
RBI Master Directions:

(i} Thetotal number of NCDs which have not been claimed by the Investors or not paid by the Company after the date
on which the non-convertible debentures became due for redemption; MNil

(i1} The total amount in respect of such debentures remaining unclaimed or unpaid beyond the date referred to in
Paragraph (i) as aforesaid: Nil

B. LOAN ASSETS
Loan Assets as al March 31, 2024 are of Rs. 797.42 Crores against Rs. 601.12 Crores as at March 31, 2023,

C. REFINANCE FROM NATIONAL HOUSING BANK

During the year under, your Company has received refinance sanction amounting to Rs. 1,60,00,00,000 (One
Hundred and Sixty Crore) and amount disbursed was Rs, 60,00 00,000 { Rupees Sixty Crores) from NHE.

D. BANK TERM LOAN & OTHERS

KHFL received sanctions and disbursements from various banks and financial institutions during the year.

Total loan received from Banks during the FY 23-24 amount to Rs. 300,00 Crores which included Rs. 60.00
Crores from the National Housing Bank, Rs. 40.00 Crores from Poonawalla Fincorp Limited, RS 30.00 Crores
from State Bank of India. Rs 25.00 Crores from CSB Bank, Rs.25.00 Crores from KarurVysaa Bank, Rs. 25.00
Crores from Canara Bank Limited, Bs. 25.00 Crores from Kotak Mahindra [Investments Limited, Rs. 25.00
Crores from the HDFC Bank Limited, Rs. 20.00 Crores from the Federal Bank Limited, Rs. 1500 Crores from
the Sundaram Home Finance Limited and Rs. 10,00 Crores from IC1ICI Bank Limited.

CAPITALADEQUACY RATIO

As required under the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank)} Directions, 2021 issued by RBI dated February 17, 2021, every Housing Fmance Company
shall, maintain a minimum capital ratio on an ongoing basis consisting of Tier-1 and Tier-I1 capital which shall
not be less than 13 per cent of its aggregate risk weighted assets and of risk adjusted value of offbalance sheet
iems. The Tier | capital, at any point of time, shall not be less than 10 per cent. The total of Tier 2 capital, at
any pointof time, shall not exceed 100per cent of Tier 1 capital.

The capital adequacy ratio maintained by vour Company as at March 31, 2024 ix 73.72% as compared 1o
93.93% as on March 31, 2023, which is far above than the minimmm required level of 15% as on March 31,
2024,
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CREDIT RATING

Following ratings are allotted to vour Company for borrowings mentioned below:;

Hating Agency Instrument Haoting type N rinanini Hatingzi{sh assipned

Acuite Batings &
Rescarch Limsted

ndin Ratings & Commercial Paper Short Term 3 Cr IND A
Kezearch Limsted

Bank Loans Long Term ;250 Cr HACUITE A~ Outhook; Stable

STATUTORY, REGULATORY AND OTHER COMPLIANCES

The Company has complied with the applicable statutory provisions icluding inter abia the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder. the Income Tax Act. 1961, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Crbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, Master Direction — Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, The National
Housing Bank Act, 198Tand all other various circulars, notfications, directions and guidelines issued by
NHE from time to time and all other laws as may be applicable to the Company. The Company has finalized
its financial statements for the vear under review as per the Accounting standards issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of [ndia,

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION & EVALUATION POLICY

The Nomination and Remuneration Committes has formulated a policy on Nomination and Remuncration of
Directors/KMP/Semor Management Personnel, following are the salient features of the Policy:

Scope & functions

Appointment Criteria for the Board and Other Emplovees/Composition of Board
Nomination Process & Disqualificalions

Removal& Retirement

Remuncration Criteria for the Board and the Employees

Evaluation Criteria of the Board and the Employees

The following changes were incorporated during the Financial Year 2023-2024.-

1. We have added the clauses relating to the principles of compensation and risk alignment, the composition
of fixed and vanable pay, the remuneration critena for control and assurance emplovees, and the malus
arrangements and clawback agreements, which could enable the Company to invoke the malus and
clawback clauses that are applicable to the entire variable pay.

2. The modification was made to the clauses related to the remuneration and increments of Key Managenial
Personnel (KMP)and Senior Management Personnel (SMP).

The detailed policy can be accessed at hitps:/kilfshovsing com/govermance-policies’.

INTERNAL GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the financial year under review, your Company adhered to all Intemnal Guidelines on Corporate
Governance in accordance with the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Darections, 2021 1ssued by RBI dated February 17, 2021, which lay down the
Corporate Governance practices.

The 1:H:+l|s.}' ol Inl:ma] Lll.lldtllnth on memala: (.-:Jv:nwnl.cwn b: a::t.:su::l at
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PROVISIONS NOT APPLICABLE

o  [hsclosure under section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 201 3 1s not applicable as the Company docs
not have any Holding or Subsidiary Company

* Maintenance of cost records under the provisions of Section 148( 1) of Companics Act, 2013 are not
applicable.

®  Pursuant to Rule 2A of the Companies {Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014, public
companies which have not listed their equity shares on a recognised stock exchange but have listed
Lheir non-convertible debt securites issued on private placement basis in terms of SEBI {1ssue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, shall not be considered as listed company
in terms of the Act, Hence, Section 197 (12) read with rules 5 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 arc not applicable.

*  The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Companies {Amendment) Act, 201 7 has amended the
provisions of Section92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 with effective from 28" August 2020. Post the
amendment, every company shall place a copy of the annual return on the website of'the company, if
any, and the web-link of such annual return shall be disclosed in the Board's report. The requirement
of annexing extract of annual return in Form MGT -9 has been repealed.

Accordingly, the Annual Return in Form MGT-T for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, shall be
available on thewebsite of the Company at hitps:/kifshousing com/financial-reports/ .

SENERALDISCLOSURES

"i"'m_:r Directors make the following disclosures with respect to transactions/ events during the vear under

review.

L. There was no issue of equity shares with differential rights as (o dividend, voling or otherwise,

Z. There was no issuc of Shares (Incleding Sweat Equity Sharces) to cmployees of the Company under any Scheme.

1. No significant or matenial orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going
concern status and the Company’s operations in [uture,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors take this opporfunity to place on record their appreciation to all employees for their hard work,
spirtted efforts, dedication and lovalty to KIFS Housing, The employees have worked based on principles of
honesty, integrity and fair play and this has helped KIFS Housing in maintaining its growth. The directors also
wish to place on record their appreciation to shareholders, referral associates, National Housing Bank, the
Reserve Bank of India, Financial Institutions, Banks, Auditors and such other entities/authorities for their
continued support.

For and on behalfl of Board of Directors of KIFS Housing Finance Limited,

sl sd/-
Rajesh Khandwala Vimal Khandwala
Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director
DIN: 477673 s n0477 768 A
F
Date: August 14, 2024 A

Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE-I

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
INDIAN ECONOMIC REVIEW-INDIAN ECONOMY CONTINUES TO SHOW
RESILIENCE AMID GLOBAL UNCERTAINTIES

The Indian economy is better placed than ever to take on economic challenges because of the policies adopied
and implemented in the last decade. The Union government has buill infrastructure at a historically
unprecedented rate, and it has taken the overall public sector capital investment from Rs. 5.6 lakh crore in
FY'15 to Rs. 18.6 lakh crore in FY 24, as per budget estimates. That is a rise of 3.3x. Whether the total length of
highways, freight corridors, number of airports, meiro rail networks or the trans-sea link, the ramp-up of
physical and digital infrastructure i the Jast ten years is real, tangible and transformative,

I'he financial sector is healthy. lis balance sheet 15 stronger. It is walling to lend and 15 lending. Non-food credit
growth, excluding personal loans, is growing at double-digit rates. The pursuit of inclusive development finds
Indian households in good financial health. Fittyv-one crore bank accounts under Jan Dhan Yojana now have
total deposits of over Rs. 2.1 lakh crore. Over 535 per cent of them are women. In Dec. 2019, household
financial assets were #6.2 per cent of GDP; liabilities were 33.4 per cent of GDP. In March 2023, these
nimbers were 103.1 percentand 37.6 per cent. respectively. So. Net Financial Assets of households were 528
percent of GDP in December 2019, and by March 2023, it had improved to 65.5 per cent of GDP.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In India, housing finance is offered by banks and housing finance companies (HFCs). Following the
imtroduction of several economic reforms and a rise in demand for housing nfrastructure across cibies,
globally renowned industrial houses are venturing into the housing market. At present, public and private
sector banks, as well as foreign banks. are extending loans to prospective buyers. However, the market is
dominated by HFCs.

In India, housing 1% considered as the engine of economic growth, Housing finance companies have been
posting record profits and surging business owing to multiple macroeconomic factors and the government
nudging in the right direction. The housing sector has strong linkages with many other industries. 78 paise in
every rupee invested in honsing sector, contributes to the Gross Domestic Product. At present there is high
growth rate in the housing finance sector.

As per the current market research conducted by the CMI Team, the India Housing Finance Market size 15
expected to record a CAGR of 24.1% from 2024 1o 2033, In 2024, the market size 18 projected to reach a
valuation of USD 385,14 Billion. By 2033, the valuation is anticipated to reach USD 2,669, 39 Billion,

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Housing and Housing Finance account for significant portion of Indian Financial System. Individual Housing
Loan Ouistanding of Primary Lending Institutions constitute 10,52 per cent of the India’s GDP at nowminal
price as on March 31, 2023, Housing Scctor accounts for 16,54 per cont of the Gross Bank Credit deploved as
of December 2023(Source: RBI).

Primary lending institutions continue to play an important role in stimulating growth of the housing sector as
evidenced from the quarterly disbursements of Individual Housing Loans by HFCs, Public Sector Banks and
Private Sector Banks. National Housing Bank's refinance has been a major source ol low-cost long-term fumds
for HFCs. Going forward, the housing sector is expected to witness a paradigm shift due to growing
urbamzahon { Source: NHEB ),

The long-term prospects for the affordable housing finance sector remain positive, driven by:

Continued Underpenetration: The vast rural and middle-class populations continue to provide a substantial
market for affordable housing loans.

Reduction in Interest Rates: A potential future reduction in RBI's interest rates could alleviate mangin pressure,
further boosting profitability.

The affordable housing finance sector in India offers significant growth potential due o under penetration and
increasing demand for low-cost housing, the sector 15 poised for a promising future,
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OPPORTUNITIESAND THREATS:

Opportunities:
1. Theroles of NHB in refinancing & providing regulation of housing finance system.
2, The government's imtiatives 1o promote the sector & 1ts contnbution in uplifiing the sector.
3. Under penetration and untapped market presents a huge opportunity for growth.
4. Rural cconomy is becoming structurally far more resiliont,
5. Demographic trends of urbanisation, nuclearisation, and population growth
6. Ability to partner and co-lend.
Threats:
1. Need for correct nisk profiling
2. Economic downtum
3. Difficultics in enforcing securities in rural arcas,
4. Access to inance
5. Rising competition and operational complexity.
6. Rising interest rates

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF KHFL

The Company's balance sheet stood at s 859,59 Crores as at end of FY 2023-24, Total loan book stood at Rs.
797.42 Crores. The Company's revenues for the year ended March 31, 2024 were Rs. 109.87 Crores and
profits for the year were Rs. 20.79 Crores. Asset quality remained stable with Gross NPAs of 0.89% and Net
MNPAs of 0.63%. Total provisions stood at Rs. 10.97 Crores, almost 4 times the regulatory requirement and
equivalent to a healthy 1,38% of loan book. The Company 15 also one of the best capitalized amongst peers
with capital adequacy ratio of 73.72% on a standalone basis.

OPERATIONALHIGHLIGHTS

Despite challenging macro-ceconomice conditions, the Company's focus on butlding a stromg balance sheet
through FY 2023-24 viclded rcsults with augmented capital adequacy levels, stable assct quality, high
provision buffers and comfortable liquidity on its balance sheet.

Asat March 31, 2024, on a standalone basis, the product-wise break-up of loans was — housing loans 81% and
non-housing loans 19%. The Company’s asset quality 15 stable with a high provisioning buffer. Gross NPAs at
the consohidated level were at 0.89% and Net NPAs at 0.63% of total loan assets managed. Total provision
bufferof Rs. 10.97 Crores at a conaolidated level, represents 1.38% of loan book.

SANCTIONS

Loans Sanctioned during the year were Rs. 488.03 Crores as against Bs. 392.29 Crores in the previous year.
Cumulative Sanction as on March 31, 2024 was Rs. 1826.53 Crores as against Rs, 133850 Crores in the
PreviDus yoar.

DISBURSEMENTS

Loan Disbursement during the year was Rs. 320,82 Crores as against Bs. 240.61 Crores in the previous year.
Cumulative Dishursements as on March 31, 2024 were Rs. 130690 Crores as against Rs, 986,08 Crores in the
Previous year.

ASSETSUNDER MANAGEMENT (AUM)

As on March 31, 2024, Company had Home Loan & LAPAUM Rs. 79742 Crores with a growing customer
base of 10,438,
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NON-PERFORMING ASSETS (NPA)

83 Loan accounts out of ~1 (438 loan accounts (1).89% gross NPA) were identified as Non-Performing Assets
as on March 31, 2024, As per region wise analysis, Maharashira had 32 cases which is 0.37% of the portfolio,
Delhi {NCR) had 9 cases which is (0. 18%, Gujarat had 20 cases which is 0.15%, Madhya Pradesh had 12 cases
which is 0,08%, Rajasthan had 5 cases which i1s 0L.07% and Chhattisgarh had | case which is (L.01%%, Punjab
had | case which is 0.01%, Uttar Pradesh had | case which 15 0.01%, Harvana had 1 case which is (0.0]"% and
Uttarakhand had 1 case which is 0.01% of the portfolio.

COLLECTION! RECOVERY

KHFL has a Collection and Recovery team headed by the experienced team members. Collection in the low-
income housing segment 15 quite challenging but highly important, The Company has a robust collection
management in-house team and also entire sales team also behind the collection drive across all the regions,
supervised by regional officers and the head office of the Company. The tcam manages the lifecycle of
transactions and monitors the portfoho guahty. KIFS's highly robust collection structure regularly monitors
all the loan accounts - from the zero bucket accounts o 3rd bucket (collection of instalments in standard
accounts) lo NPAs, Company's internal process controls are set up whereby information on chegue bounces
and returns are received on real-time-hasis.

The Company 15 further streambining this process through Collection mobilization to ensure unified approach
and control on recovery and essential legal measures are taken against the defaulting customers with the help
of the legal team who handles SARFAEST maners as well,

PRADHAN MANTRI AWAS YOJANA (PMAY)

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY ) is an initiative by Government of India in which affordable housing is
provided., KIFS Housing had signed the MOU with the government of India for the Credit linked subsidy
Scheme (CL55) under the Pradhan Manin Awas Yojana for EWS, L1G and MIG segments. KIFS Housing
been into affordable housing sector has successfully availed various schemes under the government initiative
- CLSS, KIFS has been an active contributor to the scheme during the year and availed subsidy for customers
under the scheme in order to reduce the burden of Home loan amount. During the financial year 2023-24
KIFS Housing has received the claims from the Institution of Rs. 1.37 crores for 60 Cases.

Institution Amount {in Bs.)

NHB — PMAY | 05-04-2022 3,13,29,100 129

NHB - PMAY | 01-11-2022 44,56,460 19

NHB - PMAY | 22122022 ' 4.34.23 609 177

NHB — PMAY | 06-01-2023 ' £.,55.86,665 275

NHB - PMAY 22.02-2023 ' 15.76.46,472 6%

NHHE — PMAY | -0%-2023 | 36, 7008 (T
Total _ L 316402390 1328

WILFUL DEFAULTERS

Pursuant to the policy circular 74 and 83 by National Housing Bank, during the year Company has no willful
defaulters/customers. With reference to policy circulars the Company is a member of four Credit information
Company namely CIBIL- Credit Information Bureau (India) Limited, ECIS- Equifax Credit Information
Services Private Limited, CRIF High Mark Credit Information Services Private Limited and Experian Credit
Information Company of India Private Limited.

GRIEVANCER EDRESSAL SYSTEM

The Company focuses on customer experience, we also strive 1o ensure transparency in our operations and
communication. All customer complaints received across branches’ front channels are managed through a
centralized complaints management system for tracking and timely resolution. We continue to ake steps (o
ensurc customer satisfaction.
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The Company has a well-defined grievance handling mechanism. It ensures that the Redressal is not only
prompt but satisfactory to the customer, For this the Redressal team is well trained and underpoes continuous
coaching to ensure that they are not only clear in their Redressal but are also patient and sensitive with
customers who may not be tech savvy and require exira support.

The Company has a Crievance Redressal Policy with escalation mechanism wherein complaints are
cscalated to the level of Branch heads, Head of Operations. Complaints forwarded by regulatory and
supervisory authorities are tracked separately.

Disclosure of Complaints as required under Scale Based Regulation (5BR): A Revised Regulatory
Framework for NBFCs) is attached herewith as Annexure VL

REPORTON LEGAL ANDTECHNICAL RISK

The Company's primary function is to advance loans to customers by taking land or bulding as the primary
security. Any legal defects in the underlying collateral may pose legal, financial and operational loss to the
Company. The Company has high expertise and dedicated Operations team and 15 led by an expenienced Head
having significant experience in the retail asset and mortgages sector. KIFS has a robust process to undertake
legal due diligence of the property documents involving in-house lawyers along with HOD's with expertise
and expenience of the sector. To ensure comphance with regional and local laws, detailed State-laws are
studicd and are placed in order to review and make note of the changes therein, The Company also cngages
subject matter consultants for independent due diligence in case of very specific regional matters and in some
cascs for cross valuation, end-to-end root cause and analysis. Legal opinions are taken and secarch for
encumbrances are done through empanelled advocates.

BRANCH NETWORK

Your Company had expanded its footprint with focus on affordable housing finance business, with a total of
B3 branchand | ofice as on March 31, 2024
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RESOURCE MOBILIZATION

SHARE CAPITAL

Share Capital Amount (in Ks,)

Authorized Share Capatal { 250,060,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) as on March

250, 1)
31,024 KRR

Issued. Subscribed and Paid - up Capital as on March 31, 2024 (249 96,452

7 : 149 98 6hd 57
Equity Shares of B4, 10esch) e

BORROWED FUNDS

Total loan received from Banks during the FY 23-24 amount to Rs, 300000 Crores which included Rs. 60.00
Crores from the National Housing Bank, Rs. 40,00 Crores from PoonawallaFincorp Limited, Bs 30.00 Crores
from State Bank of India, Rs 25.00 Croves from CSB Bank, Rs.25.00 Crores from KarurVysaa Bank, Rs. 25.00
Crores from Canara Bank Limited, Bs. 25.00 Crores from Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited, Rs. 25.00
Crores from the HDFC Bank Limited, Rs. 20.00 Crores from the Federal Bank Limited, Rs. 15.00 Crores from
thie Sundaram Home Finance Limited and Rs. 10,00 Crores from HC1CT Bank Limated.

CREDIT RATING
The Company has been assigned the following matings:

Rating Apency Insirumeni Ruting tvps Aumeant Fatingeis) sasigned

;;-CUIW Ratings & Bank Loans Long Term 392 50 Cr | & ACUITE A-' Outloak: Stable
esearch Limunied

India Ratings & Commercial Paper Short Termm £ C [ND A2+ |

Research Limited

HUMAN RESOURCE

The Human Resource department is the backbone of every Organisation, as they are the ones who bridges the
gap between the Top Management and the Employees. So, it is very important for any Organisation to have a
strong and sturdy HR Team.

The Human Resource team of your Company continued to remain focused on five key measures to drive
business outcomes, namely-building critical skills and competencies, sirengthening the current and future
lcadership bench, incorporating organizational design and change management, driving digital busingss
transtormation and enhancing employiee experience.

KHFL believes in providing a safe, inclusive and sustainable work environment for its employees, The
Company is commitied to acquiring and retaining talent, which plays a significant role inachieving its desired
goals. The Company is focused on hiring the finest talent and providing its people with equal opportunitics to
enhance their professional growth by matching their ability, aspirations and drive.

Your Company has a robust team of HR that takes the several initiatives for the benefit of the employees
including Induction, Traming. PIP Policy and Emplovee Engagement. The primary motive of the HR team is
to work for the continuous growth and development of the existing employees and procure the rich resource
from the Industry that would benefit in the growth of the Company. The Company's emplovee count stood at
576as of March 31, 2024.

REGULATORY AND STATUTORY COMPLIANCES

The Company 15 regulated by statutory regulators including but not limated 1w the Minstiry of Corporate
Affairs, Reserve Bank of India and National Housing Bank. All the relevant circulars, notifications,
guidelines, and Directions issued by the aforesaid statutory regulators were duly placed before the Board of
Directors at regular intervals to update the Board members on compliance of the same. Your Company has
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adhered with the provisions of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company -Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Secunities)
Regulation, 2021, Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Fimancial Company — Scale
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 1o the extent applicable, the provisions of the Compames Act, 2013as
amended from time o time, other laws to the extant applicable to the Company and mandatory Secretanial
Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICS1) and all the applicable circulars,
notficanons, and guidelines issued by the aforesaid regulators from me (o lime,

Your Company maintains a policy of absolute complianee with all regulatory and legal requirements, both in
letter and spirit. The Company places the highest priority on complying with all existing laws and regulations.
For absolute compliance with all requirements, the internal team works closely with the Company's business
and opcrations tcams. [n addition to complying with regulatory norms, the Company ensures cxcrcising
principles of corporate ethics, accountability, and integrity, thereby recognizing corporate governance as
more than merely complving with regulatory requirements. Corporate governance consists of transparcncy,
fairness, integrity, effective internal controls at all levels of operation, as well as timely and adequate
disclosures to stakcholders.

RISK MANAGEMENT

With the challenging macroeconomic ¢conditions and uncertainties, there are heightened nsks faced by the
Company which can be inherent or market - related risks. There has been a continuous focus on identifying,
measuring and mitigating risks by the Company. As a housing finance company, the Company 15 exposed to
varnous nsks like credit risk, market risk {interest rate and currency risk), liquidity risk and operational nisk
(technology, emplovee, transaction and reputation nisk). A key nisk in the competiive home loans, and
mortgage - backed funding in general, is losing customers that transfer out their loans for small gains in
interest rates. this represents significant loss ol opportunity to the Company given the long - term nature of
mortgage loans. To wdentify and mitigate all these nsks, the Company has an effective Risk Managemenl
Control Framework that has been developed encompassing all the above areas. The Company has a Risk
Management Committge (RMC) in place that comprises of its Directors and Members ol 1is Senior
Management team, who have rich industry experience across domains. The RMC met quarterly during the
year and kept an active watch on the emergent risks the Company was exposed to.

INTERNALAUDIT CONTROL, INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR
ADEQUACY

KIFS Housing has an adequate system of internal control in place which has been designed to provide a
ressonable assurance with regard 1o maintaining of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operalions,
protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and for ensuring reliability of
financial reporting. KIFS Housing has robust intermal audil programme, where the internal auditors, an
independent firm of chartered accountants, conduct the audits with a view to not only test adherence to laid
down policies and procedures but also o suggest improvements in processes and systems which are further
discussed with the management and appropriate measures and actions are taken thercafter. Intemal andit
observations and recommendations are repornted to the Audit Committee, which monitors the implementation
of such recommendations

The Company's internal financial control over linancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that-

# Pertaining to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company

# Provide reasonable assurnnce thatl tramsactions are recorded s necessary 10 permil preparaiion of financial
statements in accordance with gencrally aceepted sccounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in sccordance with anthorizations of Management and Directors of the Company
and
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® Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements.

KIFS Housing has put in place adequate mechanisms to promote business sustamability and maintain a
healthy work environment. It maintains a system of mtemal controls designed to provide a high degree of
assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of its operating procedures, safeguard its assets, and
financial controls that ensure transparency and accountability while complying with applicable laws and
regulations. The efficacy of the intemal control system 15 monitored by the internal auditors, working in
tandem with extermal while taking adequate steps to increase employee satistaction and engagement.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY &SYSTEM UPDATES

Information technology (IT) systems are vital to the busmess, and the Company remains commuitted to
upgrading them in order to improve operational efficiency, customer service and decision-making processes
while reducing the nsk of svstem failures and the negative impact they may have on the business. Digital
solutions are an integral part of various aspects ol business, including credit underwriting, risk management,
fraud detection, and collections to centrally process loan applications, analyse credit risks, identify fraud and
utilise an objective cognitive rule-based policy.

Commitment to I'T Syvstems:

Information Technology (IT) systems remain vital to our business operations, The Company is dedicated to
continuously upgrading these systems to enhance operational efficiency, improve costomer service, and
streamline decision-making processes while mitigating the risk of system failures, These efforts not only
bolster our business operations but also minimize potential negative impacts.

Digital Integration and Risk Management:

Digital solutions have become integral across various aspects of our business, including credit underwriting,
risk management, fraud detection, and collections. These systems allow us to centrally process loan
applications, analyze credit risks, identify frawd, and apply objective, cognitive, rule-based policies, The
exponential growth in the use of IT by both the Company and its stakeholders underscores the importance of
integrating these digital solutions into our operational strategies.

Loan Origination System Development:

In the past vear, signmificant advancements have been made i our Information Technology and Systems,
particularly with the development of a new Loan Onigination System within Salesforce. This comprehensive
system manages the entire loan lifecycle, including lead management, credit underwriting, decisioning, and
disbursement.

Automation and Fraud Preveation:

To enhance efficiency and accuracy, we have integrated vanous automation tools within the system. These
include advanced scoring models, fraud detection algonithms, and third-party verification mechanisms,
These tools evaluate both customers and assets_ significantly reducing the risk of fraud or false bookings.

KYC Verification and Faster Loan Processing:

We have also implemented automated Know Your Customer (K'Y C) verification processes, which are directly
linked with the respective authoritics. This integration allows for faster and more rehable processing of loan
pnboarding, ensuring compliance and reducing processing time.

Enhancing Financial Data Accessibility:

The Company has integrated an Account Aggregator (AA) system into our financial analysis processes,
significantly enhancing our ability to access and analyze customer financial data from muluple banks and
financial institutions. This integration allows for a more comprehensive and accurate assessment of a
customer's financial health, which is erucial for informed decision-making in loan underwriting and risk
management.
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Online Pavment:

To improve collection efficiency, the Company has parinered with banks and online payment aggregators,
offering onling payment facilities through a payment gateway on our website. This svstem supports various
dhgtal payment modes, including internet banking and UPL.

Cvbersecurity Concerns:

However, as our reliance on IT infrastructure grows, so do concerns regarding cyber security. The frequency
and sophistication of cyber threats have increased significantly, posing risks to the integrity, confidentiality,
and avairlability of our information. Safeguarding our information imfrastruciure is paramount m maimianing
a secure cyber environment and ensuring business contimuity.

Loan Management System Upgrade:

As part of our ongomng commitment W enhancing our T systems, the Company has adopted FinnOne Neo for
our loan management system, This advanced phlfﬂnn ig designed to streamline and optimize the loan
management process, providing a comprehensive solution that covers the entire loan lifecyele.

Adaptation to Remote Working:

In response to the shufl towards remote working. the Company has imp]em:nt:d secure VPN (Virtual Private
MNetwork) access for all employees. This secure VPN access ensures that our workforee can connect to the
Company’s network safely from remote locations, maintaining productivity while safeguarding sensitive
data.

These technological upgrades have not only improved cur operational efficiency but have also strengthened
our risk management capabilitics, ensuring a more secure and streamlined loan origination process.

15 Audit covers effectiveness of policy and oversight of IT systems, evaluating adequacy of processes and
internal controls, recommends corrective action to address deficiencies and follow-up, 1S Audit also
evaluates the effectiveness of business continuity planning, disaster recovery set up and ensures that BCP is
effectively implemented in the organization. It identify risks and methods to mitigate risk arising out of IT
infrastructure such as server architecture, local and wide area networks, physical and information security,
telecommunications etc.

During the FY 2023-24 the following 15 Audits were conducted:-

1. Application Audit Salesforee conducted by AQM Technologies Pyt Lid
2. Firewall Security Assessment conducted by AQM Technologies Pvt Ltd

The Company is in process of complying with Scale Based Regulation's Core Financial Services Solution
(CFS8), Reserve Bank of India (Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and Assurance
Practices) Directions, 2023 and all other applicable provisions relating to the Information Technology and
Master Direction on Outsourcing of Information Technology Service.
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ANNEXURE-II

FORM NO. AOC-2
[Pursuant to Section 13403 )(h) of the Compuanies Act, 2013 and Rule 82) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred o in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Compames Act, 2013 including certain arm's length

transactions under third proviso thereto,

I. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis

fal & i 4 {14 [ |'-.i'l|;'

2 o the relat |‘|i'l.l TV arwd nnfure of e

(bl Matore of contmcts’ srrangements’ transactioms

':.wulg; of property ot Vadusdam for Brunch Ofhee of
thes Cavinpany fur the bisiness s opcration purposs

() Dumtaod of the contracty) arrangements’ IFansocliong

Contimiing ad Ompodng

(d} Salbent terms of the contracts of ATANZEMEALE OF WML
inchading the vahse, it any

Terms of the contract 15 as per Rent Agreement.
The rental of Rs. 43,7125 pm (excluding taxes)
is paid to KIFS International LLIP for the usage
ol premises

(=] Justilication for endering into such comracts or AMARESIMEs o
fransactions

A5 per Rent Agreement

(f) Duteds) of approval by the Board. if any

February (2, 2024

(zh Amount paid as advances, if any MA
() Dare on which the special resobution was passed m general MA
meeting s reguired under first proviso 1o section | BR
I1.Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at 's length

{a} Mameis) of the related party and nature of relatonship

(b) Nature of coniracts’ amangemeants’ ransaciions

ElFS Trade Capital Provate Limated

Usage of propery o Mumbsi | Corporate Chfice)
of the Company for the business and operation
purpose.

(¢} Duration of the condracts’ arrangements’ ransactions

Continuing and Ongoing

(d) Salient terms of the contracis or arangements or
transactions including the valwe, if any

Term= of the cantract is as per Renl Agreemient,
The rental of Rs. 1 600000 pm (excluding taxes)
is paid w EIFS Trade Capital Private Limitedfos
the vsage of premiscs

(e} Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or iransaciions

Az per Rent Agreement

(f) Datc (s) of approval by the Board, if any February 12, 2024
() Amount paid a5 advances, if any NA
(h} Date on which the special resolution was passed in NA

general meeting as requinred under first proviso to
scchion 188
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111, Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis

fa) Mame(s) of the rélated party and nature of relaticnship

(b} Mature of contrscts’ armangements’ transactions
(¢} Durabion of the confracts’ ammangements’ transscions

(d) Salient terms of the contructs or grrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

KIFS Realty LLP

Usage of property at Ahmedabad for Registered
OHfice of the Company for the business and
OpeTalion purpose

Continang and Cngoing

Terms of the contract is as per Rent Agreement.
The rental of Rz, 82 800¢- pm (excluding faxes)
is paid to KIFS Realty LLP for the usage of

property.

(&) Justfication for entering into such conlruets or
ATUNEEMENTS O rAnsactions

As per Renl Agreement

(N1 Date (s) of approval by the Board, if any

Februarmyl 2, 2024

(g} Amount paid as advances, if any

NA

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso o
section |85

MNA

IV, Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis,

(u) Mamels) of the related party and nasture of relationshep

(b} Mature of confracts/ armangements’ transactions

EIFS Trade Capital Private Limnted

Acting as Hroker for invesiment in Mutual Fund

(o} Duration of the confracts’ amangements’ transaciions

Continuing and Ongoing

(d) Justification for entenng into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

Az per the Engagement agreement

(¢} Dateis) of approval by the Board, if any

Junme 03, 2021

(N Amount paid as advances, if any

MIL

(g1 Daie on which the special resolution was passed in
general mecting as required under first proviso to
soction 188

N

V. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis

(a} Mamefs) of the related party und nature of relationship

klIFS Finsiock Lin

Khandwaln Fins

(b} Mature of contracts’ armangements/ transactions

Inter — Corporate Deposits

(e} Durabion of the contracts’ arrangements’ transuctions

Repavable within T year from the date of
disbursement of the facility.

id) Salient terms of the contracts or smangements or
transactions including the value, if any

Az per the 1CD agreement

{e} Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(1 Amount paid as advances, if any

November 11, 2022

NIL

(g) Daie on which the special resolution was passed in
peneral meeting as required under first proviso to
section 138

NA
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Details of changein compaosition of the Board during the current and previous financial year:

The below are the changes which took place in the composition of the Board of the Company during the
Current Financial Year viz., 2023-24 and during Previous Financial Year viz., 2022-23, the details of the same
are provided below:

Sr.| Mame of the Capacity (i.e. Executive/ | Nature of change Effective date
Mo, | DMrectors on Execulive’

Chairman/
Promoterd Nomines
Independent

1. | M=, Bhovna Desai Mon-Executive Director Re-designated as a Non-Executive, | 19062023
(Mon-Independent Dirgcior) of the

Company from Men-Executive

Director {Independent Dhrector) of

the Company

2. | Ms. Purvi Bhavsar Independent Director Re-designated as a Non-Fxecutive 052023
Director (Independent Direcior)

froan Mom=Exccutive Director { Non=

Independent Director) of the

Coampany.

3. | Mr. Kartik Mchta Inedlependent Director Re-designated as a Non-Executive | 30/05:2023
Drirector (Independent Direclor)

fromn Mon-Exceutive Director {Non-

Independent Direcior) of the

Clompany

4. | Mr. Kushal Khandwala | Whole Time Director Appointed as a Whole Time Director | 20/03/2023
of the Company

5. | Mr. Satish Mchta Independent Direcior Appointed as a Independent Director | 30/11/2022
of the Company

6. | Mr. Padmanabh Vora Independent Director Ceased to be an Independent | UNURZ0ZZ

Director of the Company due 1o his
sad demisg

Where an Independent Director resigns before expiry of his’ her term. the reasons for resignation as
given by him/her shall bedisclosed.

Mo such instances during the Financial Year under review
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2. Committees of the Board and the composition:

The Board of the Company has established various committees, the names of which along with its
meémbers and summarized terms of reference is given below:

A.AUDIT COMMITTEE:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the Board of
the Company has constituted an Audit Commitiee. The Audit Committee of the Company as on March 31,
2024, comprnised of 5 (five) directors of the Company, of whom 3 (three) are Independent Directors, 1 (one)
is Managing Director and 1 (ene) is Whole Time Director. 4 (Four) Audit committee meetings were held
during the financial year nnder review.

Below are the requisite details of the Audit Committee:

Sr.| Name of the Director | Members of Capacity (Le. Moo ol Mectings Mo, of

No, Commitice since | Executive/ attended out of 4 shares
Mon Executive/ hild in
Chalrman/ the HFFC

Fromoter’ ™oamines
Independent

Held Attended

I Mr. Satish Gordhan MNow 30, 2022 Independent Director iy 5] il
Mehia [ Kon-Executive) -
Chairman of the
Commitice

2. | Mr. Yimal Pammanand Aoug (W, HOTH Managing Director ' (- 4 [k
Khandwala [ Execulive)

3. | Mr. Kushal Javesh Moy 30, 2023 Whole Time Directon 04 03 . i
Khandwala ( Executivie)

4, | Mr. Kartik Shailesh April 27, 20017 | Independent Director (4 02 250,00
Mehia (Mon-Executive) _

3. | Ms. Purvi Bhavsar April 27, 2007 | Independent Direcior (l 02 2 500 (M)

[ Mon-Exccutive)

During the financial year under review, the following changes took place in the Audit Commuttee:

. Ms. Bhavna Desai ceased to be the Member of the Committee with effect from August 10, 2023,

2. Mr. Kushal Khandwala was inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from May 30, 2023,
The summary of terms of reference of Audit Commuittee, inter alia, includes the following;

. .I:ﬁccummund:ﬂiun for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
ompany;

* Reviewing and examining the financial statements and the auditors’ report there on before submission
to the Board for approval;

¢ Recommending the quarterly, half vearly and vearly Financial Results to the Board:

* Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness ol audit
process;

¢ Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments of the Company;

*  Evaluationofthe internal financial controls and risk management systems of the Company:

FY
* Approval or any subsequent modification of ransactions of the Company with related pariies including ‘
the omnibus approval for related partics transactions proposed (o be entered into by the Company;
-
*  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; and F o,

* Toperform such other functions as entrusted to it by the Board of the Company and by the law from time
Lo time.
v,
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B. NOMINATION AMND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the Board of the
Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committec of the Company as on March 31, 2024, comprised of 5(five) directors of the Company of whom
one (1) 158 Managing Director , three (3) are Independent Directors and one (1) 158 Non-Execunve Director.
During the financial year under review, five(5) Meetings were held.

Below are the requisite details of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Sr.| Mame of the Director | Members of Capacity (i.e. [ Mo, of Meetings N, of

M. Committee sinee | Executive/ attended out of 5 shares
Mon Executive leld in
Chairman/ the HFC

Promater’ Nomines'
Independent

1. | Mr. Satizh Gordhan March 20, 2023 | Independent Directo 3 L 0
| Mehta (MNon-Executive) -
Charman of the
_ Comumnittce
2. | Mr. Rajesh Parmanand | November 04, Chairman & Managing 05 4 L
5 Khandwala 2017 Dhirector ( Executive)
1 ..".f1| Kartik Shailesh Movember 08, Independent Dircctor k5 kS 2 50 (WD
| Mehia 2017 {on-Executive)
4, g‘ﬂa-.. Purvi Bhavsar COctober 16, Independent Directos {5 {13 2500,
20149 (Mon-Executive)
3. : Mz, Bhavna Govindbhai | March 04, 2021 | Non-Execuiive {5 {1 {l
| [hezm Director

During the financial year under review, the following changes ok place in the Nomination and Remunération
of your Company:
|. Mr. Vimal Khandwala ceased to be the Member of the Committee with effect from August 10, 2023,
2. Mr. Kushal Khandwala was inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from May 30, 2023
and ccased to be the Member of the Committece with effect from August 10, 2023

The summary of terms of reference of NRC Committee, interalia, in cludes the following:

* |dentify persons who are qualified to become Directors of the Corporation and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal.

o Formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive attribute and independence of a director;

» Specify manner for effective evaluation of performance of Individual Directors including Independent
Directors, the Board and its Commuitices;

* Toselect and recommend from the Data Bank. if needed. Independent Directors to be appointed on the

Board;
*  Torecommend the Board, the appointment and removal of Directors and Semior Management; A
*  To recommend the Ifu:mrd a policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel ‘
and other employees;
o Todevise apolicy on Board diversity and succession planning; i

*  Toreview Nomination & Remuneration Policy, Fit & Proper Criteria Policy and such other Polices
om annual basis and recommendation of modification, if any, to the Board;
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®*  Toimplement and monitor the implementation of the ESOP schemes of the Company;
+« Togrant and allot the ESOPs as per terms and conditions of the ESOP Schemes of the Company;
s  Tomodify, alter, vary and / or cancel terms of ESOP schemes of the Company;
& To l‘l-!.'.‘rn'll'rrl such other functions s entrusted to it by the Board of the Company and by the law from time
to tme.
C. CORPORATE S50CIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thercunder, the Board of
the Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2024, comprised of 4 (Four) directors of the
Company,of whom [ {one) 15 Independent Director and 2 (two) are Managing Directors and | (one) is Whole
Time Director. During the financial vear under review 1 (one) CSR Committee mecting was held

Below are the requisite details of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

Sr.| Name of the Director | Members of | Capacity (Le. Mo, of Meetings Mo, of
M. | Committee since | Execative/ attended ot of 1 shares
| Mom Executivi held in
hairman/ the HFC
Fromoier’ dNomines
Independent
Abtended
Khandwala 2020 { Execunve)

Chairman of the

[. | Mr. Yimal Parmanand February 10, Managing [ Mrecior ‘ 0l ikl i
Committee _
[

2. | Mr. Rujesh Parmanand | February 10, Chairman & Managing | 0l [+ . i
E handwala A Director { Executive)

1. | Mr. Kushal Javesh Mlay 30, 2023 Whole Time Director ai L . i
Khandwala {Executive)

4, | Mr. Satish Gordhan February 07, Independent Director i1 il 0
Mehita 2023 {Non-Executive)

During the financial year under review, the following changes took place m the Corporate Social
Responsibility of vour Company:

1. Mr. Kushal Khandwalawas inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from May 30, 2023
The summary of terms of reference of CSR Commuittes, interalia, includes the following:

* Formulate and recommend o the Board for s consideration and approval, a CSR Policy for the
Company, which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company in areas or subject
specified in Schedule VII;

* Recommend for the approval of the Board, programmes’ projects dentified by the Committee to be
undertaken duringthe financial year which are in line with the activities specified in Schedule VII and
amount of expenditure to be incurred for each ofthe programmes’ projects;

*  Monitor the Comporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time;

* LUipdate the Board on the status of CSR programmes’ projects undertaken by the Company during the
financial vear and amount of expenditure incurred;

*  Recommend o the Board, the Company 's Annual Report on CSR Activities, [or inclusion in the Report
of the Board of Directors of the Company.

*  Formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual action plan for CSR activities of the Company; and

*  Performing such other functions as entrusted to it by the Board of the Company and by the law from time
to time.
v,

Annual Report - 2023-24



D, BORROWING AND INNESTMENT COMMITTEE:

The Borrowing and Investment Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2024, comprised of 5 (five)
directors of the Company, of whom 2 {two) are Managing Directors, | (one) 15 Whole Time Director, and 2
{twory are Independent Directors, The Borrowing and Investment Committee held | Heleven) meetings during
the financial vear under review.

Below are the requisite details of the Borrowing and Investment Committes:

Name of the Director | Members of Capacity (Le. Mo, of Meetings Mo, of
Commitiee since | Excontive/ attended out of 11 sharcs
Mon Exccutive/ held in

Chairman/ the HFC

Promoter! Momines’
Independent

L. | Mr. Vimal Parmagand | September 16, Managing Director ' I1 o i
Khandwala 2017 [ Executive)
Chairman of the
_ Committee
2. | Mr. Rajesh Parmanand | December 10, Chairman & Managing | L1 02 0
khandwala 2ils Dhirecior { Execulive)
i. | Mr. Kushal Jayesh Mlay 30, 2023 Whole Time Dhirector 8 07 ]
Khandwala [ Executive)
4. | Mr. satsh Gordhan February 07, Independent Direcior L 11 ]
Mehia 2023 (Mon-Executive)
5 | Mr. Kartik Shailesh July 18, 2019 Independent Director . L1 07 2.50 000
Mehta (Mon-Executive)

Druring the financial yvear under review, the following chanpes took place in the Borrowing and Investment
Commitice:

1. Mr. Kushal Khandwala was inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from May 30, 2023,

The summary of terms of reference of Borrowing and Investment Committee, interalia, includes the
following:
® To bormow from banks Mfinancial instlutions MWBFCs! National Housing Bank with in the overall limits
of the Company;

* To secure the borrowings of the Company by way of mortgage or chargeonall or amy of the movable
or immovable propertics of the Company in favour of banks / financial institutions / NBFCs / National
Housing Bank;

& To perform such other functions as entrusted to it by the Board of the Company and by the law from
time to time.
E. ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

The Asset Liability Management Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2024, comprised of 8 (eight)
members, of whom 3 (three) are Independent Directors, 2 (two) are Managing Directors, | {one) 15 Whole
Time Director and other 2 (two) members are officials of the Company. The ALM Committee held 4 (four)
meelings during the financial year under review.
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Below are the requisite details of the Asset Liability Management Committee:

Mo, of
shares

No. of Meetings
attended owt of 4

Capacity {i.e.
Executive!

Sr.| Mame of the Director | Members of
M. LCommitiee since |

Mon Executive
Chairmain/
Fromoter) Somines,
Independent

held in
the HEC

Attended |

I. | Mr. ¥imal Parmanand December 06, Managing Director 4 4 0
Khandwala MG [ Execulive) -
Chayrman of the
Commillee _
2. | Mr. Rajesh Parmanand | Decomber (06, Chairman & Managing 04 03 i
Khandwala 206 [irectar ( Executive)
3. | Mr. Kushal Jayesh May 30, 2023 Whole Time Director 4 3 . (¥
Khandwala {(Executive)
4, | Mr. Satish Gordhan February 07, Independent Director 4 = i
Mechia 2023 {Mon-Execotive)
5. | Me Kartik Shalesh .zl.llazllhl I, ||!||_|-:_:i'ﬂ;l'||.].|.:|'|! Divectar 4 [l 2 50, (HM]
Mehia 2023 {Mon-Executive)
6. | Ms. Purvi Javendra August 11, Independent Director 4 i ' 250, 00x)
Bhavsar 2023 (Mon-Executive)
7. | Mr. Vikki Vijay Soni August 10, Chiefl’ Financial L (k4 i
2023 Orficer
d. | Mr. CGundopant Salokhe| July 1K, 2009 Chief Information and 4 (k4 il
lechnology Officer

During the financial year under review, the following changes took place in the Asset Liability Management

Camimitlee:

|. Mr. Avinash Srivastava ceased to be the Member of the Committee with effect from February 12,

2024

Mr. Kartik Mehta was inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from August 10, 2023,
Mr. Purvi Bhavsar was inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from August 10, 2023,
Mr. Kushal Khandwala was inducted as a Member ofthe Committee with effect from May 30, 2023,

%
3.
4.
The swnmary of terms of reference of Asset Liability Management Committee, interalia, includes the following:

® Toreview Liguidity and Funding risks

*  Toassess the liquidity levels and the adequacy of liquid funds in relation to Company's Plan.

* To review Year-to-date operating results and hgqudity position {current and prospective) and monitor
alternative funding arrangement.

® To receive and review the structural Liquidity Report (SLR), Interest Rate Scnsitivity Report (IRS),
Dynamic Ligquidity Report and Review mismatches in the Assel and Liabilities (including off-balance

sheel positions)

* Toanticipatc loan demands and the funding needs.

*  Toreview Spreads and the internal cost of Tunds (recent pricing)

* To review the Capital levels (risk based and total) to determine sutficiency in relation to:  expected
growth, interest rate risk, price risk, and asset mix/quality.

* Toreview Borrowing Mix and Fixed Interest Borrowing and Fixed Interest Lending and Currency Risk,

ifany.

* Develop the contingency liquidity plan.

* Review of Capital Adequacy Ratio and Debt to Equity Ratio.

Annual Report - 2023-24




& Profit planning and growth

®* Reviewof RPLR.

®*  Toreview the assel-liability profile of the Company with a view to manage the market exposure assumed
by the Company; and

* Toperform such other functions as entrusted to it by the Board of the Company and by the law from time
o time.

F.AINFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY COMMITTEE:

The Information Technology Strategy Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2024, comprised of 6
(six) members, of whom 1 (One) is Managing Director, | (One) is Whole Time Director, | (one) is
Independent Director, 1 (one) is Non-Executive Director and 2 (two) are officials of the Company, The
Committee held 2 (two) meetings during the financial year under review.

Below are the requisite details of the Information Technology Strategy Committee:

Sr. i Mame af the Director | Membaers of | Ca |‘_|;||:"'|| ¥ (e, Mo, of Meetings M, ol
M. Committee since | Executive/ attended oul of 2 shares
Mon Execulivel held in
Chairman' e HFC
Promoter/ ™Mominee!
Independent
Held Attended
I. | Mr. Satish Gordhan Fchruary 2E, Managing Dircctor 02 r2 f
Mehita 2023 { Executive] -
Chairmean of the
Commithee
2. | Mr. ¥imal Parmanand | Ociober 16, MManaging Direclor N2 [+ i
k. handwala 2009 { Executive) |
3. | Mr. Kushal Javesh Aungust 25, Whaole Time Director 02 ]} i
K handwala 2023 { Executie)
4. | Ms, Bhawvna Cowvidblan | November 11, Mon-Executive ' 02 02 Lk
Dz 2022 Drirecto
3. | Mr. Vikki Vijay Som MNovember 11, Chief Financial 02 2 0
2022 CHiicer
6. | Mr. Gundopant Salokhe| Oxtober 16, Chiel Information and a2 2 i
2001% Technology (Mficer

1. During the financial year under review, the following changes ook place in the Information Technology
Strategy  Committee: Mr Avinash Srvastava had resigned the Company with effect from December 02,
2023 and thereby ceased to be the Member of the Commitiee.

2. Mr. Kushal Khandwala was inducted as a Member of the Committee with cffcet from August 25, 2023,
The summary of terms of reference of Information Technology Strategy Committee, mteralia, includes the
following:

o Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensunng that the management has put an effective
gtrategic planning process in place;

o Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the 1T delivers Fy
value o the business: ‘

*  Ensuring I T investments represent a balance of nsks and benefits and those budgets are acceptable; A

* Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the 1T resources needed to achieve strategic
goals and provide high level direction lor sourcing and use of [T resources;
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®  Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining HFC's growth and becoming aware about
exposure towards [T risks and controls.

*  Ensure that the Company has put an effective [T strategic planning process in place;

o  Cuide in preparation of IT Strategy and ensure that the [T Strategy aligns with the overall strategy of the
Company towards accomplishment of its business objectives;

® Satisfy itsclf that the IT Governance and Information Security Governance structure fosters
accountability, 15 effective and efficient, has adequate skilled resources, well defined objectives and
unambiguous responsibilities for each level in the organisation;

* Ensure that the Company has put in place processes for assessing and managing IT and cyber security
risks:

® Ensure that the budgetary allocations for the IT function {including for IT seourity ), cvber security arc
commensurate with the Company's I'T maturity, digital depth, threat environment and industry standards
and are utihised in a manner intended for meeting the stated objectives; and

*  Review, al least on annual basis, the adequacy and efectivensss of the Business Continuity Planning and
Disaster Recovery Management of the Company.
G. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

The Risk Management Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2024, comprised ol B (eight) members,
of whom | (one¢) is Managing Director, | {onc)is Whale Time Director, 3 (three) are Independent Director and
other 3 (three) members are officials of the Company. The Committee  held 4 (four) meetings during the
financial year under review.

Below are the requisite details of the Risk Management Commuittee:

ar.| Mame of the Director | Members of Capacity (Lo, Moo ol Mectings Moin. o
MNa, Commitiee since | Exceative/ attended out of 4 shares
| ™onm Executivey held in

Chalrman/ the HFC

Promoter! MNomines/
Independent

Held

. | Me Wimal Parmanand | Ociober 16, Managing Director (4 03 f
Khandwala 29 {Executive) -
Chavirman of the
Committes

1. | Mr. Kushal Javesh May 30, 2023 Whole Time Director LR (b3 {1

Khandwala { Executive) l
3. | Mr. Batish Gordhan February 07, Independent Director 4 4 | [
Wehia 2023 {Mon-Executive)
4. | Mr. Kartik Shailesh August 11, Independent Director 4 i | 250,003
Mehia 2023 [(Mon-Executive)
|
3. | Ms, Purvi Javendra August 11, Independent Direcion 4 (¥ | LRI R T
Bhiavsar 2023 {Mon-Executive) I
6. | Mr. Saurabh Goel August 10, Head — Credit and 04 02 . i
2023 Risk
1. | Mr. Vikkl Vijay Som Augrust 10, Chief Financial 4 2] I [k
2022 Oficer
8. | M. Gundopant Salokhe| March 04, 2021 | Cheef Information and 14 i i

Technology Officer
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During the financial year under review, the following changes took place m the Risk Management Commities;

1. Mr Avinash Snvastava had resigned the Company with effect from December 02, 2023 and thereby
ceased 1o be the Member of the Commuittee.

2.  Mr. Kanik Mehta was inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from August 10, 2023,
3. Ms. Purvi Bhavsar was inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from August 10, 2023,
4, Mr. Saurabh Goel was indueted as o Member ofthe Committee with effect from August 10, 2023,
5.

Mr. Kushal Khandwala was inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from May 30, 2023,

The summary of terms of reference of Risk Management Committee, interalia, includes the following:
* Tooversee implementation of risk management framework across the Company.
*  Dwversee and recommend the risk management policies and procedures of the Company

* Review and recommend changes as needed to ensure that the Company has in place at all times a Risk
Management policy which addresses the various types of risks.

*  [mplement and maintam a sound risk management framework which identifics, assesses, manages and
monitors the Company’s business risks

H. CUSTOMER GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL COMMITTEE

The Customer Grievance Redressal Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2024 comprised of 5 (Five)
members, of whom 1 {one) is Managing Dircctor, | (one) is Whole Time Director and other 3 (three) members
are officials of the Company. The Committee held 4 (four) meetings during the financial vear under review.

Below are the requisite details of the Customer Grievance Redressal Committee:

Sr.! Mame ol the Director | Members of Capacity (Le. Mo, of Mectings i ol
M. Committee since | Executive/ attended out of 4 shares
Mon Executive held in
Chairman/ the HFC
Promoter/ Nominee/
Independent
Held Attended
. | Mr. Vimal Parmanand | July 18, 2019 Managing Director (4 04 0
Khandwala (Executive)
Chaimman of the
Commithee
2. | Mr. Kushal Jayesh July 18, 2019 Whale Time Director (4 4 Ll
Ehandwala { Executive)
3. | Mr. Vikk: Vijay Soni August 10, Chief Financial (4 04 0
2022 Officer
4. | Mr. Gundopant July [8, 2019 Chief Information and (4 . {14 0
Sabokhe Technology Oilicer
5. | Mr. Sanjay Chavan February 12, Operations Head [k 00 0
2024

During the financial year under review, the following changes took place in the Customer Grievance
Redressal Commitiee;

1. Mr. Avinash Srivastava had resigned the Company with effect from December 02, 2023 and thereby ceased
tobe the Member of the Commitiee,

2.Mr. Sanjay Chavan was inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from February 12, 2024,
3. Mr. Dharmendra Doshi ceased to be the Member of the Committee with effect from February 12, 2024,

A/
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The summary of terms of reference of Customer Grievance Redressal Committee, interalia, includes the following:

* Penodically meet and review the position of complaints received and action taken on various
complaints,

*  Formulate standard responses and corrective actions to reduce the incidence of complaints.

* Evaluate feedback on quality of customer services are followed

®  Ensure that all the regulatory instructions regarding customer services are followed.

*  Review that all the regulatory instructions regarding customer services are followed.

*  Review unresolved complaints! grievances and offer their advice/ commective actions.

*  Monitor the type of Gnievances! Complamis received and corrective prachices (o reduce complainis,
I. WILFUL DEFAULTER IDENTIFICATION COMMITTEE
The Wilful Defaulter Identification Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2024, comprised of 6 {six)
members, of whom 2 (two) are Managing Directors, | (one) is Whole Time Director and other 3 (three)

members are officials of the Company. The Committee held 4 { four) meetings during the financial vear under
TEVIEW,

Below are the requisite details of the Wilful Defaulter ldentification Commuittee:

S5r.! Mame of the Director | Members of Capacity {i.c. So. of Meetings Mo, of
M. Committee since | Executive’ attended out of 4 shares
“on Executlive) held fn
Chairman/ the HFC
Promaier Nomines
Independeond

Fleld Attended

1. | Mr. Vimal Parmanand | Jung 03, 2021 Muonaging Director (14 {14 0
K hamndwala iExecutivel -
Charrman of the
Commitlee
2. | Mr. Rajesh Parmanand June 03, 2021 Chairman and Managing 1= {13 il
Khamdwals Ihrecior | Execuirve)
3. | Mr. Kushal Jayesh June 03, 20321 Whole Time Directio (4 114 0
Khandwala (Executive)
4, | Mr. Vikki Vijav Soni August 10, Chief Financial 4 e 0
2022 Oifficer
5, | Mr. Saurabh Goel MNovember 27, Head — Credit and (ER) ¥l [}
H2% Risk
6, | Mr. Yopesh Khakam Movember 27, Sentor Manaper - i L 0
2023 Collections

During the financial year under review, the following changes ok place in the Risk Management
Committee:

1. Mr. Avinash Srivastava had resigned the Company with effect from December 02, 2023 and thereby ceasad
to be the Member of the Committee,

2. Mr. Saurabh Goel was inducted as a Member of the Commitiee with effect from November 27, 2023

3. Mr. Yogesh Khakam was inducted as a Member of the Committec with cffeet from Movember 27, 2023

The summary of terms of reference of Wilful Defaulter Identification Committee, interalia, includes the
following:

* To review the order of the executive level committee that identifies accounts to be reported as willful
default to comply with the regulatory guidelines.  /
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J. WILFUL DEFAULTER REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Wilful Defaulter Review Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2024, comprised of 3 (thres)
members, of whom 2 {two) are Managing Directors and 1 {one) is Mon-Execulive Director. There were no
meetings held dunng the financial yvear under review.

Below are the requisite detals of the Wilful Defaulter Review Commuttee:

Sr.| Name of the Director | Members of Capacity (Le. Executive/ | No Meetings were | No. of
Mo | /| Member Commities since | Monm Execuniivef held im the Y. shares held
Chairman' Fromosier/ ME3-Z024 im the HFC
Mominee! | ndependeni
1. | Mr. Rajesh Parmanand | June 03, 202 ] Managing Director i) : i
Ehandwala (Executive) — Chairman
of the Committee
2, | Mr. Vimal Parmanand | June 03, 2021 Managing Direclor 00 0
Khandwala (Executive)
3. | Ms. Bhavna Govindbhai [ June 03, 2021 MNon-Executive 00 0
Diesai Dhirector

The summary of terms of reference of Wilful Defaulier Review Committee, mterabia, mclodes the followimg:

* To review the order passed by Wilful defaulter Identification Commattee declaning a borrower as a
Wilful Defaulter and to further review the required actions 1o be taken.




3. GENERALBODY MEETINGS:

Below are the details of the General Meetings held during the financial year under review:

Type of Meeting

Duate and Place

Special Kesolutions Fassed

(AnnualExtra Ordinary)

1. | Annual General Mesting

Dte: Seprember 25, 2023

Ploce: Repgistered Office of the
Company, situsted ot 6" Floor, KIFS
Corporute House, Beside Hodel Flamet
Landmork, Mear Ashok Watika BRTS,
ISKON-Ambli Road, Bodakdey, Ambl,
Ahmedobad, Gujarnt - 320054,

® To approve appoimbment of Mr, Kushal
Ehandwala (DN U33256846) as a
Whede Time Dhirector ofthe Company.

® To approve bormowmp limits wmwder
Section 1BO(IWe) of the Compamies
Act, 20013

& To provide seounty by way of Pledge,
Hypothecation, Morngape, Lien and'or
charge in such form or manner on all o
any mavable or immovable property of
thee Company under Section | 80§ 1){a).

& To conaader and approve conversion of
Loan intoe Equity under Section 62 3),

# To approveratify the Related Pany
Transasctions.

& Toapprove re-designotion of Mr. Karik
Belehinn (DIN: 02083347 from 4 Mon
Executive Director fo an Indepenident
Threctoral the '|1|11pc||:|}'

& Ty approve IE"\-IJE":\-iFI'Iillil i o Wla. Purvi
Bhavsar { DIN: 02 102 740 from a Mon -
Exceutive Dinactor 10 an Independent
Directorof the Cormpany

2. | Extrs Ovdinary General
Meeting

Dade: Oetober 25, 2025

Ploce: Corporate Office of the Company.
situaded al O =912 Lot € '1:-r|.1|.1|:a.|1.' Park,
Graham Firth Compound, Wesicrn
Express Highway, Goregaon {East),
Mumbai - 40063

To approve Re-Designation of Ms.
Bhavnn Desm (Den: (GED3242 from an
Independent Direcior o a Mon -

Executive Director of the Company.

1. Exira I:,:Ir'n:|.|:l|:|.r'_|. CGreneral
Meeting

Dage: Movember 28, 20023

Flace: Corporate Office of the Company,
situated at C - 902, Lotus Corporate Park,
Grahom Firth Compound, Western
Express Highway, Goregaon (Easth,
Mumabai - J{KRM3

To alter the Object Clause of
Memorandum ol Associabion ol the
Coanpany.

4. DETAILS OF MON-=COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
(GIVE DETAILS AND REASONS OF ANY DEFAULT IN COMPLIANCE WITHTHE REQUIRE
MEMNTS OF COMPANIES ACT, 2003, INCLUDING WITH RESPECT TO COMPLIANCE WITH
ACCOUNTINGANDSECRETARIALSTANDARDS)

There were no default/non-compliance with requirement of Companies Act, 2013 during the financial vear

under review.

5. DETAILS OF PENALTIES AND STRICTURES: (NBFCS SHOULD DISCLOSE DETAILS OF
PENALTIES OR STRICTURE IMPOSED ON IT BY THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA OR ANY
OTHERSTATUTORYAUTHORITY)

During the financial vear under review, there were no penalties or stricture imposed on the Company by the
Reserve Bank of India or any other statutory authority.
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ANNEXURE-IV

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (*CSR") ACTIVITIES
1. BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY.

The Company's Act, 20013 (“Act”) has made t compulsory for Compamies 1o carry oul Corporate
Society Responsibility Activities. The Government of India, on February 27, 2014, notified provisions and
comresponding Rules pertaining to CSR. Corporate Social Responsibility 15 a Company’s sense of
responsibility towards the community and environment in which it operates. It is the continuing commitment
by business to behave ethically and contribute to economic development of the society at large. KIFS is
committed to remain a responsible corporate entity mindful of its social responsibilities and to make a positive
impact in the society.

The CSR Policy applies to the formulation, execution, monitoring, evaluation, and documentation
of CSR activities in the target locations, in and around the Company’s office.

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:
sr.| MName of the Director Degignation’ Mature Mumber of Mumber of
Nk of Mrectorship meetings of CSR meetings of CSR
Committee held Committee attended
during the year during the year
| Mr.Vimal Parmanand Chairman’ Managing | I
Ehandwala Dhrector
2. | Mr. Rajesh Parmanand Member! Charmman and | I
K handwala Managing Director
3. | *Mr Kushal Jaycsh Member' Whole Timic | i
K. handwala irector
4, | Mr Satish Gordhan | Member Independeni |
hehta Dharector

* appointed as a Member with effect from May 30, 2023,

3. Web - link for compaosition of CSR Committee, CSR policy and CSR projects disclosed on the
wehsite: https:/kifshousing. com/governance-policies/

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in porsuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable:

Mot Applicable

A

. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, ifany:

Sr.| Financial Year Amount available for sef-off from Amount required (o be sel - off for

M, preceding financial year (in Rs.) ihe linancial vear, if any (in s,

| | | 2022-23 et 1| ML |

6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) : Rs, 194971, 21(0- A

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) : Rs, 38, 09, 424).
{(Company has spent amount of Rs, 39,00,000/-as against 2% of average profit i.c.Rs. 38, 99, 424/-), ‘

(b} Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial vears: Nil &
(e} Amount required to be set ofT for the financial yvear, if any: Nil

(d} Total CSRE abligation for the financial vear (Ta+7h+7¢): Rs, 38, 99, 424/-
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Hs.}

Total Amount Total Amount fransferred to Amount transferred to any fand
Spent for the Unspeat CSR Account as per specified under Schedule V11 as per

Financial Year.
{in Rs.)

sectinn 135{6) second provise (o section 135(5)

Amounnt Date uf'I'r:Tnh:r. Mamc of the Amuount Date of transfer
(T

I!_'n|1'.|'..|r|:-.- hins
apent amount of
T e
F1.-:|1|1~:-|I|'-.'}'I':-'qu:l i NI NIl NIl NIE NIl
awerage profil e,
Ks, 38, G0 4340

(b} Details of CSKE amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial vear:

3 3 4 5 | i T B 9 i 11
VR Fbom Losal Lncaitirn Project SAmnand Smounid Amouni Suode of Viede ol
of the o e Tir ] il ik 3 wllscated | wpeml im the | IFamsferred Impleme | lmpleimenia
Project It of {Wew™n) profec. fisr the CUrrent tin Unspent NERTTHT thn
activitles progict linumis C5R ~Mhirect - Throwgh
im Schedmle iim Hs.) Yoar Secoumt bor| (Yes'No), Implemen

W Eo [im Hs. the project timg

|
Il Age s [ Apvmey
LER ]
L3516}

Jim Hs.].

State [Mstrict Hegkstrarion
(&1 ]

Mot Applcable ag there are no ongoing projects for the Onancin] wead
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(¢} Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

i,
S,

=

{d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: None

Mame
of theé
Pirgjece

Irem
Irm 6=

Fisi aff

in Sehcdiles
Vil 8o
the Agt

Ll
Pt

[Wen P

Aol
il LangT
P s il

ke Hisigs
Froe Paluhar

L ard i

fanakshens

I HT
ol R I
TLERIT

JPT
periirmiel
o1 mil|gere
PRI 0

[ =aap i ]

Prormatmg
Fszalth caie
trw; beadinap

preventing
kzidth wairg

F s scaing

PFromomms
| aithime
i linking

i imlive

Feaalili 2dee

5

LIRTEERE [T
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Folrm i
Ly

Pluhisraiaimm

Pelarm b

Pobiibii rarei I

Lhoram
iy

el Pamciy
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Riiiwadiil
allgaatiad
bar R
parij et

|hf HE.j

5

i kol i
wjtenl in the
CHTTEnR
T o i |
Ve
fin Hi

K

LT
irsnadirired
oo L nspen

5
Locnnmi foa
the projec

a3 per

Ripctlion

1. ¥5¢0)

fin M),

lingliane
LSS

Timi el it o | e
- Through Implemending

[EITETR] hgency

Y™}

[
Ragisiration

ik

L]

12 s el -

03,

| N ]

1.3 10 -

(LR AN e

Fsi

(€} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

) |sim Mlenorl | USHANNES| 2%

" L e ol CEREON2S
| Bocicty for
K risliing
L emnpaanees
1 ' |

bl tarba CRRINHIGD T
iy
unri ol sadical
Mescanty

Poumdsrinn)

(1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (Bh+8c+8d+8e): Fs. 3% (0 (HHY-

(2) Excess amount for set off, if any

Particulars

Two percend of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(3)

Lmounds (in B

1R, 99, 424/.

! 2 - Total appount spent for the Financial Year ' A D0 0 I
I 3 Excess amount spent for the financial vear [(u)-{i}] 5T/~
| T . |
' q Surplus ur_i:-iru__? oul of the E:SH projecls of programmes or activities of the Nil

previpus financial years, if any
: 5 - Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [iiii)-(iv]] - 57 |
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial vears:

Sr Preceding Amound Amuount Amount transferred to any fund Amaumnt
Mo, Financial transferred spent in specificd under Schedule V1T as remaining
Year io Unspent the per section 135(6), if any. 0 be spent
CSR reporting in
Account Financial sucreeding

under Year (in Ks.) linancial
section 135 VNS
{6 iin Es.) {in Bs.)

Mame of Amount ate of
the Funid (im Rx) transler

Ml

(b) Details of CSK amount spent in the financial vear for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
vear(s):

5L Project  Name of Financial Project Total Amount  Cymulative  Status of

No D the Project Year in dlurathon  amoon spent on amouni the projeci
which the allecated the project  spentat - Completed
project was for the in the the end of  /mpgoing

commenced project reparting reporting
{in Rs.) Financial Financial
Year Year,
{inm Hs) iin It

| _ _ _ NIL |

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furmish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial vear: None

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s); Nil

b} Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil

¢) Details of the entity or public authority or benehiciary under whose name such capital asset 1s registered,
their address ete.: Nil

d) Provide detals of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and [ocation of
the capital asset): Nil

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 133(5): None

For KIFS Housing Finance Limited,

sl [~y
Rajesh Khandwala Vimal Khandwala
Chairman & Managing Director (Chairman of CSR Committee)
DIN: 477673 Managing Directo

DIN: 00477768

Date: August 14, 2024 ‘
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE-V

KIRAN DOSHI & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES

G2, Xth CENTRAL MALL, MAHAVIR NAGAR, KANDIVALIL (WEST), MUMBAL — 400 067
(W) www.cskdco.com (M) 9920345370 { E) kirani@cskdeo.com / infof@cskdco.com

Form Mo, MR-3
SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managenial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

tth Floor, KIFS Corporate House, Beside Hotel Planct Landmark,
Near Ashok Vatika BRTS, Bodakdey, ISKON-Ambli Road, Ambli,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380054,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by KIFS Housing Finance Limited (CIN:
U65922GI2015PLCOBS079) (heremnafter called “the Company”) for the Financial Year ended on 3 15t March,
2024 (the “audit period’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a ressonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducis/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit; we hereby report that in our
opimon, the Company has, during the audit perod complied with the statutory provisions histed hereunder
anid also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place 1o the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records mamtamned by
the Company for the Financial Yeusr ended on 3 1st March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) and the Rules made thercunder;

2. The Securities Contracis (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the roles made thereunder [Not Applicable
during the Audit period]

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Bormowings
[MNot Applicable during the Audit period]

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’):

{a) The Secunities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition ofInsider Trading) Regulations, 2015 | A
Mot Applicable as on 315t March, 2024]: ‘

(b) The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 4
Regulations, 2011 [Not Applicable during the Audit period): A

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 |[Not Applicable during the Audit Period];
vAY |
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(d) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client [Not Applicable during the
Audit period]|;

ie) The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, |Not Applicable as on 31st March, 2024 as the Company was delisted on
September 11, 2023 post redemption on Maturity.|

(1) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2005, | Not Applicable during the Audit period|;

({g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Dehlisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
| Not Applicable during the Audit period]:

(h) The Securitics and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Sccuritics) Regulations, 1998 [Not
Applicable during the Audit period]:

6. We further report that based on the information received and records maintained by the Company, in our
opinion the Company has complied with the provisions of:

a. Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021, issued by Reserve Bank of [ndia.

bv. The National Housing Banking Act, 1987

¢. Guidelines, Directions, Policy, Circulars, Notifications of Reserve Bank of India and National Housing
Bank as applicable.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Sccretaries of India (ICSI),

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards ete. mentioned above.

7. We further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, Women Director and Independent Director. The changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors that took place durning the penod under review were camed out in comphliance wath the provisions
of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mectings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and where the same were given at shorter notice than seven days,
necessary provisions were complied and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clanfications on the agenda ilems before the meeting and for meamngful participation at the mesting.

Deecisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company and at Committees were camied through
on the basis of majority and views of the members are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that —

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and gudelines.

8, We further report that during the Audit Period:
a) Designation of Mr, Kartik Mehta (DIN: 02083342) was changed from non executive director fo
Independent Director with effect from 30th May, 2023,

b) Designation of Mrs. Purvi Jayvendra Bhavsar (IDIN: 02102740) was changed from non executive
director to Independent Director with effect from 30th May, 2023,
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¢) Designation of Ms, Bhavna Govindbhai Desai was changed from Independent Director to Non
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 19" June, 2023,

d) The Company had altered the object clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company to
include following clause in the main object of the Company : "To solicit and procure Insurance
Business as Corporate Agent in respect of all classes of insurance and to undertake such other activities
as% are incidental or ancillary thereto,”

¢) The Company had closed 3 branches wherein there was delay by 3-4 days in serving the notices in at
least, one leading national newspaper and a leading local (covering the place of branch’ office)
vernacular newspaper as per the Master Direction of RBI for closure of all the 3 branches.

f) The Company was required o appoint Chief Compliance Officer as per the RBI circular
(DoS.CO.PPG/SEC.01/11.01 005/2022-23) latest by 1% October, 2023, There was a delay in the
appointment and the Company appointed Mr. Dharmendra Doshi as Chief Compliance Officer with
effect from 13 February, 2024,

FOR KIRAN DOSHI & CO
Company Secretaries
KIRAN P. DOSHI
{Proprietor)

CP. No.: 9890, FCS No.: 13007
Peer Reviewed Firm; 197772022
UDIN: FO13007TFOO0537707
Place: Mumbai

Date: 6° June, 2024
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KIRAN DOSHI & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES

G/02, Xth CENTRAL MALL, MAHAVIR NAGAR, KANDIVALI (WEST), MUMBAI - 400 067
(W) www.cskdco.com (M) 9920345370 {E} kiranimcskdeo.com | infoiaicskdeo.com

To

The Members,

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

fith Floor, KIFS Corporate House, Beside Hotel Planet Landmark.
Near Ashok Vatika BRTS, Bodakdev, ISKON-Ambli Road, Ambli,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380054,

1.

Our report of event date is to be read along with this letter. Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
seoretarial records based on our andit,

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretanial records, The venfication was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the

COMmpany.

. Where everrequired, we have obtained the Management representation about the comphiance of lTaws, rules

and regulations and happening of events ete.

. The comphance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is

the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedurces on test
basis.

. The Secretanal Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the

efficacy oreffectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

FOR KIRAN DOSHI & CO
Company Secrclanies
KIRAN P. DOSHI

{ Proprietor)

CP. No.: 9890, FCS No.: 13007
Peer Reviewed Firm: 1977/2022
UDIN: FO 3 TF0E 37707
Place: Mumbai

Date: 6th June, 2024
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ANNEXURE-VI

DISCLOSURE OF COMPLAINTS

L. Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customer sand from the Offices of
Ombudsman

Marticulars Mo March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Comploints received by the NBFC from its customers

| Mumber of compluints pending o1 begannimg of the vear (] i)
z Mumber of complants recesved dunng the year i S
i Mumber of complaims disposed during the yeos 4K iy
i OF which, number of complaints rejected by e NBFC ) T

Mumber of complaints pending at the end of the year Maintainable
|.-:m1;1'l.|| |I'~ r-l.l.'-:l.'.- il |1'| 1h|. ‘H.'III'[ frewm o Il:lu..l, ||! {]I'Ill'lll-ll".lnull'l

= liales

& Mumber -.rf r'|'|"|I|'|r"|Ir'|J|:I|-. complaints received h». the WBFC fmm l]fnt-. o0 00

of Ohmbudsman

M0 (b

Of 5, numbser of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of

5.1 LR (L}
Oombud savean
i OF 5, number of complaimts resolved through concilintion/mediatiom 00 00
. |
B advisories issucd by Office of Ombuodsinan
P OF 5, number of complainis resolved after passing of Awards by Office 00 00
77| of Ombudsman ugainst the NBFC '
Number of f'm ards .|z1|m|'.-l-:|1:|ta|l-:d '-'.J'i']lll. ihe stipulated ll.m-. -

h Ml (i

fodbier thisy those appealed)

*Ombudsman scheme is not applicable to the company for the year ended March 31, 2024,
2. Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customer.

Ciroumnds of \umhtr- f Number of o imcrease’ Number of OF 5, number of
wimis, (i £ i complainis decrease in the complaings complainis

e plainds pe l-'l1|lﬂ" ut the receiveil doring | number of pending at the pending beyond

|I:|:a|i.|lq L] bepginning ol thie yeur -."|ln'||r|||i|l[\ end of NEar 3l davys

the Year received aver the
PrEVItUS Veur

PR S S N N RN PR S I

Current Year

Forechosure Relobed {imn 2l |h3% 1] ] |
Fraud Sanction Letier {0 07 - L] L1
Loan Related o i ' : : o) 1
PMAY Related {0 3 TS (H} 1K
Refund Relaed i 2 B L (¥} L]
{Mhors . LA 24 1 200 % - I--I g {3
Tdal Ll . .

Forecksure Relnbed {n 13 I6lra . L1 L1
I’l'nl."."l' H.l.'l.]'.'\.."'lj:. 0o . Ll 1.33% {} 00
i '-,1| ||;,_|H|,_-.L| {0 ﬂr; | £ | () - .-un
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on Compliance with the Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

T
The Board of Directors of
KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Background

Pursuant to the Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021 (“the Darections”™) which became elfective from February 17, 2021, we have examined the matters
specificd in the Paragraph 70 of the said directions in respect of KIFS Housing Finance Limited (the
“Company ™) for the year ended 317 March 2024,

Management's Responsibility

The Management is responsible for the design and implementation of the internal procedures, systems,
processes and controls to ensure compliance with the Directions on an ongoing basis. This responsibility also
includes reporting non-compliances, if any. to the National Housing Bank (*the Bank™), Board of the
Company and its Audit Committee,

\uditors' R ibility

Cur responsibility is to report on the matters specified in Paragraph 70 of the Directions based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Aoditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). Those involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the
compliance with the Directions. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the information and records, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk asscssments, the auditor considers intemal controls relevant to the Company's
compliance with the Directions in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for owr
report,. We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and
Certiticates issued for Special Purpose by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Opinion

Based on our examsnation of the books and records ol the Company as produced for our examination and the
information and explanations provided to us, we report that:

(1) The Company had applied for registration as required under Section 29A of the Natonal Housing Bank
Act, 1987 and has been granted the certificate of registration dated October 27, 2016, In Financial Year
2019-20, the Company has been converied from private limited fo public limited (through revised
certificate ol incorporation dated 24* February, 2020) and thus, it has applied to Reserve Bank of India for
fresh certificate of registration vide their application letter dated 27" February, 2020, The fresh certificate
of registration is received dated 127 August, 2020,

(2) The Company is meeting the required Net Owned Fund as prescribed under Section 29A of the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987,

(3) The Company has complied with Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987,

(4) The total borrowings of the Company are within the limits prescribed under paragraph 27.2 of the
Directions.

W
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(5) The Company has complied with the prudential norms on income recognition, accounting standards, asset
classification, loan-to-value ratio, provisioning requiréments, disclosure in the balance sheet, investment in
real estate, exposure o capital market, engagement of brokers and concentration of credit / investments as
specified in the Directions.

(&) The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the retum submitted to the National Housing Bank has been
comectly determined and such ratio is in compliance with the mimimum capital to nsk weighted asset matio
a5 prescribed by the Directions.

(T7) The Company has furnished to the Bank within stipulated period the schedule 11 return for the half year
ended on 30" September, 2023 as specified in Directions. The Company has fumished provisional
Schedule 11 retumn o the Bank for the half year ended on 31" March, 2024 as at the date of our repor.
However, final retumn is vet to be filed as at date of our report.

(8) The company is not required to file Schedule I retums as the same is not applicable.

(%) The Company has complied with the requirements relating to opening of new branches / offices or closure
of existing branches / offices as specified inthe Directions,

(10} The Company has not given any loans against security of shares, loans against security of single product
(Gold/ Jewellery) and loans against Company's own shares.

(11) The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution for non-acceptance of any public
deposits.

(12) The Company has not accepted any public deposits duning the year ended and asa 31 March 2024,
Restriction of use

This report 15 issued pursuant 1 the requirement as per Paragraph 70 of the Directions and should not be used
by any other person or for any other purpose. We neither accept nor assume any duty or liability for any other
purpose or to any other party 1o whom our report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior
consent in writing.

Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 10604 1%, WI100136

Vitesh D, Gandhi

Partner

Membership No.: 110248

UDIN: 241 10248BK.CQGOQTETS

Flace: Mumbai
Drate: August 14, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To
The Members of KIFS Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KIFS Housing Finance Limited ('the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 317 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes o the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other cxplanatory information Cherein after referred to as 'the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our iInformation and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
soction 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, as amended,
(“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state o affairs of the Company
asat 31" March 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit ol the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (hereinafter
referred to as "SAs™) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
ouraudit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Keyv audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our andit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thercon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined that the matter described below to be the Key Audit Matter to
be communicated inour Report.

keyv Andit Matters How was the matter addreszed in our andit
I. Impairment of Loans as at Balance Sheet We have performed following audit
Date (Expected Credit Losses): procedures:
{Refer Note Mo, 7, 39 & 60 to the financial
statements) (a) Assessed Company's accounting
policies for impairment of loans and
Ind A% 108 requires the Company to provide their compliance with Ind AS.
for impairment of its loans designated at {b) Evaluated reasonableness of
amortised cost Lsing the ].':.Rpﬂil:."-d Credit management estimatcs 5] ¥
Loss (ECL) approach. ECL involves an understanding the process of ECL
ﬂ:‘-Eil“i.ﬂlU“ L'IJ.I plnbﬂb]lli}- 'I-'l-"l.':lglﬂﬁ'lj Jﬂbh L1 .:-51_"“3_“'"” E-l".I- |'¢[a|_|__l|j H},;E_Luupli“n!.;
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Kev Audit Matters

loans receivable over their hfe, considering
reasonable and supportable information
about past events, curment conditions and
forecast of future economic conditions
which could impact the credit quality of the
Company’s loan receivables.

In the process, significant degree of
judgment has been applied by the
management lor;

(a) Staging of the loan receivable (ie..
classification in significant increase
in credit risk (“SICR™) and default
categories)

(b) Grouping of borrowers based on
category of loans,

(c] Estimation of life of loans under
various stages for each category,
recoverable amounts in case of
defaults cte,

{d) Determining macro-economic
factors impacting the credit quality of
loans.

(¢) Estimation of losses for loans
reccivable with no / minimal
historical defanls,

(Y Determination of whether
restructuring of principal / interest o
a borrower under regulatory
directions resulting in restructuring
conclusion under Ind AS is subject to
interpretation / judgment.

(g) Determination of probability of
defaults (PD) and loss given defaults
{ LGD) bascd on the default history of
loans, subsequent recoveries made
and other relevant Factors and

(h) Assessment of gqualitative factors
having an impact on the creditrisk.

Since the loan receivable form major
portion of Company's assets and due to the
significance of judgments used in
classifying loans into various stages as
stipulated in Ind AS 109 and determining
related impairment provision requircments
this is considered to be area of key focus of
overall Company audit and thus a key audit
matter.

Haw was the matier addressed in our audii

and tested the controls around data
extraction and validation.

(c) Assessed the critena for staging of
financial assets based on their past-
due status 1o check compliance with
the requirement of Ind AS 109,
Tested a sample of stage | assets to
assess whether any SICR or loss
indicators were present reguiring
them to be classified under stage 2
and stage 3.

{d) Tested the ECL maodel, including
assumptions and underlying
computation. Asscssed the floor |
minimum rates of provisioning
applied by the Company for loans
receivahle with inadequate historical
defaults,

(e} Assessed the additional
considerations applied by the
management for staging of loans as
SICR.

Tested a sample of exposures, the
appropriatencss of determining ¢xposure at
default (“EAD™), calculation of probability
of default (“PD™) and Loss given default
(“LGD)incalculation.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors 1s responsible tor the preparation ol the other mformation. The other
information compriscs the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report
i luding Annexures to Board's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
ourknowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwase appears to be materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate actions necessitated by the circumstance and the applicable laws and regulation. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Thoese Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with
respect 1o the preparation of these hinancial statements that give a true and fair view of the honancial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles gencrally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Scction
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate nternal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a truee and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends 1o liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alterative but o do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financials Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements a8 a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstalements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material 1f, individually or in the ageregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and mamtain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also;

®  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the hinancial statements, whether due to fraud
o error, design and perform awdit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnide of internal control,
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¢ Obtain an understanding of intemal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on Whether the company has adequate intemal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

& [Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

&  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
hased on the audit cvidence obtained, whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doulbst on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, o modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company o cease to conlinue as a going
CONCErn.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and cvents in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in the internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current peried and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11 ) of the Act, we give in the Amnexure A, a statcment on
the matters specilied in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

2y Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and behelwere necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(k) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as 1t appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph
2hivi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report arc in
agreement with the books of account;

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act;
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i) Onthe hasis of the wrnitten representations received from the directors as on 017 April, 2024, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on 317 March, 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 16402 ) of the Act;

(f} Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adeguacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

() With respect o the other matters 10 be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Acl,

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance wiath Rule 11
of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

{1} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements -Refer Note 35 to the Financial Statements.

(i1} The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

{1i1) There are no such amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, 1o the best ofits knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the notes to Financial Statements, no funds(which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, incloding foreipn entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or pm'wlcln: any guarantec,
security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the notes to Financial Statements, no funds{which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficianies™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultmate Beneficiaries:

{¢) Bazed on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided
under (a) and (b)above, contain any material misstatement,

(v) During the current vear, the Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend,

ivi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned .
below, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for b
the year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded in the 4
respective sofiware.
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® The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) was not enabled in respect of a software used
for maintaining books of accounts from April 01, 2023 to July 20, 2023

® The feature of recording awdit trail (edit log ) was not enabled in respect of a software used
for maintaining records relating to loans given from April 01, 2023 to March 27, 2024.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the vear for
the respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting
under Rulel1 (g) of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention i1s not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 10604 1W, WI100136

Vitesh Iv, Gandhi

Partner

Membership No.: 110248
LD 241 10248BRCOGPYT60

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 14, 2024
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ANNEXURE —ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of
our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books
of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of andit, we state that :-

(1) (a) 1. The Company has maintmned proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and sttuation of property, plant and equipment;

ii. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

{h) The Company has a program of verification to cover all items of property, plant and equipment ina
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant 1o the program, centain items of Property, Plant and Equipment
were due for verification during the vear and were physically verified by the Management during
the yvear. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
have been noticed on such venfication.

(e}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company does not have any immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the Company )y disclosed in the financial statements included in Property, Plant and Equipment.

{d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.

(e} WMo proceedings have been imtiated duning the vear or are pending against the Company as at 3 i
Moarch 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions ( Prohabition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2011 6) and rules made thereunder.

(1)  (a) The Company s in the business of providing loans and does not have any inventory, Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i1)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital hmits in excess of Rs. five crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutionson the basis of scourity of Term Deposits. According to the information and
explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination, there was no regquirement of filing any
guarterly retums or statements by the company with such Banks, hence reporting under clause
311 b) of the Order is not applicable.

(1) (a) The Company's principal business is to give loans, and hence reporting under clause 3(niMa) of
the Order 15 not applicable to the Company.,

(b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made, security given and the terms and condition of the grants of loans and advances in the nature
of loans, during the vear are. prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

() In respect of loans given and advances in the nature of loans, the Company has stipulated the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest. However, given the nature of
business of the Company being NBFC, there are some cases during the vear and as at March 31,
2024 wherein the amounts were overdue vis-a- vis stipulated t2rms,

{d} In respect ol loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company, there is
no overdue amount for more than ninety days as at March 31, 2024 except for the following cases:

v
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{Hs in Lakhs)

Mumhber of Principal Amount Interest amounnt Total Amount

Casies overdie irverdue duie

B3 LA LY 138.54 Bd5.64

According to the information and explanation made available 1o us, reasonable steps are taken by the
Company for recovery of the principal and interest.

(e} The Company's principal business is 1o give loans, and hence reporting under clause 3(iilie) of
the Order is not applicable.

() Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has nod granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specilfying any terms or
period of repavment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii){f) is not applicable.

(v}  According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not advanced loans or made
investments in or provided guarantees or security to parties covered by section 185 and section 186 is
not apphicable to the Company, Hence reporting under paragraph 3(1v) of the Order i1s not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted amy
deposits from the public and hence provisions of Sections 73 1o 76 and other relevant provision of the

Actand Compames (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 20014 are not apphicable,

(vi)  According 10 the information and explanations given to us, the Central Govermnment has not
preseribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, in respeet of the services
rendered by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3ivi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) According to the informanon and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company
expmined by us, in our opinion, the Company 1s generally regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory ducs, including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance. Income-tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, ne undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues, a5 applicable were in armears as al 317 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payvablce,

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods
amd Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as at 317 March 2024 which have not been
deposited on accounts of any disputes except as stated below:

ature of Nature of Dues Forum Where Period 1o which Amount

Statute Dispute is Pending the Amount Relates (Rs. Lakh)

The Tncome

e T —— SRS -
Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax (A) AY 2020-21 96

(vinn) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of

1961).

(ix) (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayvment of loans or other borrowings or in the payvment of Y
interesi thereon to any lender during the year. b

™
{h) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other “
lender.
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(¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
utilized the term loans obtained from banks during the year for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

id) On an overall exanination of the inancial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term
hasis have, pnima facie, not been used durmg the year for long term purposes by the Company.

(e} The Company does not have any subsidianes, associates, or joind ventures, Accordingly, reporting
on clause 3(ix){e}ofthe Order is not applicable,

i(f) The Company does not have any subsidianes, associates, or joint ventures, Accordingly, reporting
on clause 3(ix ¥} of the Order is not applicable.

(x}  {a} The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the vear and hence reporting under clause 3({x}a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3{x){b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a} According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no
material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) Noreportunder sub-section | 12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Auwdit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up 1o the date of this report

(¢} As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
company durng the year,

(xi1) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

(xi11})  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standands.

{xiv) {a) Inouropinion, the Company has an adequate internal andit system commensurate with the size and
nature ol s business,

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and covering
the penod upto March 31,2024,

(xv)  According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of the
vecords of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable.

{(xvi) (a) Thecompany isnot reguired 1o be registered under section 45-1A ol the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, hence reporting requirement of clause 3{xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b} The Company is a registered Housing Finance Company (HFC') and holds a valid Certificate of
Registration from National Housing Bank and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b} of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (C1C) as defined in the regulations issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) (¢} of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.
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{d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group has more than one Core
Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group as per the defimtion of Group contained in the
Core Investment Companies { Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016, There are 2 CICs forming part of
the Group.

ixvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviit) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company. Hence, reporting under
clause 3{xviir)of the Order 15 not applicable.

(xix])  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial asscts and
payment of financial liabilities. other information accompanying the financial statements and owr
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the andit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing al the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a perod of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 15 nol an assurance as (o
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guaraniee nor any assurance that all Liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

(xx)  (a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule V1T o the Companies
Actincompliance with second proviso to sub-section {5) of Section 135 of the said Act.

(b} In respect of ongoing projects, no amount is remaining unspent towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR), which was reguired to be transferred to special account in compliance with
provision of sub- section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act.

Manubhai & Shah LLF
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 106041W/ W100136

Vitesh D). Gandhi

Pariner

Membership No.: 110248
UDIN: 241 10248BKCQGP9T6D)

PMace: Mumba
Date; August 14, 2024
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph () under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements™ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of KIFS Housing
Finance Limited{“thc Company™) as of 317 March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management and the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining
inletnal Anancial controls with reference to inancial statements based on the mternal eontrol with reference ta
financial statements crilena established by the Company considerng the essential components of internal
conirol stated in the Guidance Note on Awdit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilibies include the design,
implementation and mamtenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for
cnsuring the orderly and cfficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policics, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of Trauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) 1ssned by ICAT and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143( 10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obiain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and it such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Owur audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating elTectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reférence to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ermor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial stalements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertaim (o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; ( 2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary 1o permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
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authorizations of management and directors of the company: and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the linancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference (o financial statements o future penods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opimion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to financial statemenis were operating effectively as at 317 March,
2024, based on the critena for mternal financial conirol with reference to financial statements established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chanered Accountants of
India.

Manubhai & Shah LLF
Chartered Accountants
FRM: 1004 1% WI1001 36

Vitesh D. Gandhi

Partner

Membership No.: 110248
UDIN: 241 10248BRCOQGPYT60

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 14, 2024
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FY 2023-2024

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 Rs in lakhs
Particulars Mote Mo, s s
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
(1} Financial Asseis
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 333.56 KE.90
{b) Bank balance other than (a) above 3 5, 448.66 4,747 48
() Dervative financial imstruments -
(d) Beceivables
(1) Trade receivables 6 - -
{11) Diher receivables 6.1 1434 1986
{¢) Loans ) TH.O044 .97 53908626
Asset held for sale
{1} Investments # .
{g) Other financial assets 9 123.66 [49.32
Total Financial Assets 8469719 64,091.82
(2) Non=-Financial Assets
{a) Current tax assets (Net) - 11.67
(b) Deferred tax assets (Net) 33.2 G8.39 324.74
{€) Property, Plant and Equipment 10 RREE.RR R3l.4R
{d) Other intangible assels 11 15,59 3057
(2) Intangible assers under development 11.1 -
{1} Other non-financial assets 12 258,78 116.25
Total Non-Financial Assels 1,261.94 1589.71
Total Assets B5,959.13 65,681.53
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial liabilities
(1) Pavables Pavables 13
i} Total owtstanding dues to micro
enterprises and small enterprises ) 31.89
i) Total ouwtstanding dues to creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enlerprises 440,02 304 .34
{b) Debt sccuritics 14 - 2,079.01
(c) Borrowings (other than debt secunties) |5 45,345.26 25 046,59
{d) Other financial liabilities 13 f. 40460 5.435.63
Total Financial Liabilities 52,191.82 33,859.46
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(2} Non=-Financial Liabilitics

(a} Cuarrent tax liabilitics (Net) 55.27

(b} Provisions 17 184,70 124 BH
{¢) Other non - financial liabilities 18 630,52 484 42
Total Mon-Financial Liabilities R70.49 609,30
(3} Equity

(a) Equity share capital 19 24.998.65 24.998.65
(b} Other equity 20 7.898.17 6.214.12
Total Equity J1896.82 3N 21277
Total Liabilities and Equity B5.9549.13 65,681.53

The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements | 10 97

As per our report of even date For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
For Manubhai & Shah LLP KIFS Housing Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reg. No. 106041W/W 100136

gl sd/- i
Vitesh D.Gandhi Rajesh P. Khandwala Vimal P, Khandwala
Puriner Chairman and Managing Director Managing Director
M. Mo, 110248 DN 0477673 DIM: (477768
sdl- _ sdi-
Vikki Vijay Somi Samrudhi Satish Shetty
Chiel Finaneial Officer Company Secretary
PAN - BRLPST102) M. Mo, ACS-61085
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: Aogost 14, 2024 Date: August 14, 2024
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Rs in lakhs
Particulars Note No. 0¥ e :r.t'-ﬂn'ludm TAEESE o e
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations
(1} Interesi Income 21{a) 62861 T.A328.62
(i) Fees and commission income 21{h) 247 3| 121,33
(i1} Net gain on fair value changes 24 47.14 16.58
{iv) Other operating revenue 23 1.062.14 451 .00
(I) Total Revenue from Operations 10.980.20 8.007.53
B EII} Other Income B 24 ] 6.40 ™
] (111} Total Income (1 - 1T) 10,986.60 %,007.53
Expenses :
{1} Finance cost 15 368096 2.319.96
(11} Impairment on financial mstroments under
amortised cost 26 132.72 149.02
(11i) Emplovee benefits expense 27 3.091.74 292234
{iv) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 10,11 322.06 277.39
{v) Other expenses 28 G31.04 BR2.45
(IV) Total expenses 8,158.52 6,351.16
(V) Profit before tax (111 - IV) 2.828.08 1,656.37
Tax Expense :
Current tax 33 096,92 467.36
(Excess)’ provision of 1ax for earhier yvear 23.97 [ 0.93
Deferred tax 33 28.58 (165.92)
(V1) Total tax expenses 749.47 312.37
(V1) Profit for the Year (V - V1) 2,078.61 1,344.00
(VI Other comprehensive income (OCT)
lems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or I-:'rzcefr
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 3.21 2513
Income lax expense on remeasurement -ur'tiv::fin:f:l Fs
benefit plans (081 (6.38) ‘
Total Other Comprehensive Income 2.40 18.95
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1
(IX) Total Comprehensive Income for the
vear (VII + VIII) 2 081.01 1.362.95
iX) Earning per Equity Share ; 30
Basic (Rs.) 0.83 0.54
Diluted (Rs.) 023 0.54
The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements 1 10 97
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Manubhai & Shah LLP KIFS Housing Finance Limited
Chartercd Accountants
ICAL Firm Reg. No. 106041W/W 100136
s/~ sad/- -
Vitesh DCeamdhi Rajesh P. Khandwala Vimal P. Khandwala
Partner Chairman and Managing Direcior Munag‘ing [Mrector
M. Moo 110248 DIM: (KATTATS DM D047 TTHR
ad/- sd/-
Vikki Vijay Soni Samrudhi Satish Shetty

Chief Financial Officer
PAN - BRLPST392]

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: August 14, 2024 Date: Augusi 14, 2024

Company Secretary
M. Mo, ACS-634985
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended March 31, 2024

A Equity Share Capital Rs. in Lakhs

Champes in Egubiy
Share Capiial
during the yeur

Halsnce as ui

Halamor as ar

Particalars Warch 11, 2024

Aprill 01, 2023

Equity Share Capatal 14,008 a5 . 14, 998,65

Chanpes in Equity
Shore Capitul
dwring the yeir

Balamee us al
¥arch 31, 2023

Ralssce as al

Particulars hpril 01, 2022

Equity Share Capital 14,908 .65 . 14.998.65
B. Other Equity Ru I Lukhs
Heseryes and Surplus Dteas al (31
e Retained iher
l.'.l !'1“.'“':1.!'!- Sinlulery Freserye I_t‘!““":-ll' enmpreiensive
[ [mcome (THC1)
Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,M7.73 354344 - 4,851.17 |
Profit for the vear - 1,344 00 - 1,344.00
Iransfer from retmned carmings ELTL AL (36801} -
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans - I 8.95 - |89 |
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.675.74 453838 - 6.214.12
Profit for the year - 2.078.6l1 - 2.078.61
Deduction ws 36 1 Wviiald)-Cpening® [ 356 96) - [ 35696}
Transler from retained earnings 546.67 (54667 -
Remeasurement benefil of defined benelil plans - 2.4 - 240
Balance as at March 31, 2024 | 2241 | 56787 | - | 789817

* Note ; Refer note no, 32

The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements (1 to 97)

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Manubhai & Shah LLP KIFS Housing Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAL Firm Reg. No. 106041 W/ W 100136

gl s/~ gl
Vitesh D.Gandhi Rajesh P. Khandwala Vimal P. Khandwala
Pariner Chairman and Managing Director Managing Director
M. Noo 110248 DIN: 00477673 [MM; (4TTT68
sd/- sdl-
Vikki Vijuy Soni Samrudhi Satish Shetty
Chief Financial CHficer Company Secrelary
PAN - BRLPST102) M. Mo, ACS-61085
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Drate: Angust 14, 2024 Date; August 14, 2024
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Kifs Housing Finance Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31,2024 s, In Lakhs

For the Year ended  For the Year ended

Parficulars

March 31, 2024 Slarch 31, 2033

A, Cash Row from operating activitics

Profit before tax 2HIR.O0H | 65637
Avlljusiments for :

Depreciation and amaorzation 322.06 2T71.39
Mt paim o fair value I.'|1III1|_J|-|.-'<. i47. 143 [Th.5K)
Interest income on foans W E28.61) {72 T'“ P4
Inlenesl expenses on bomowings 1 AR0.96 23149896
l|5.||1a11n:|u:||t o fimameial insruments 13273 149,02
'Dpunllilg pru-ﬂ: before m:nrldn:. t:q.rl-lﬂ:l changes [ (2, 7T11.93) {3,042 .46)
Movemeni in working caplial :

Increaseddecrease) m other financial iahdlities G31.71 | K96
InereaseN decrease) in provisions 712 16, Th
Increnseddecrense) m other on-tinancinl liabibitses 149,31 134493
Ineneaseidocrass) m trade payahles 43.72 | e
{ Incrense Ndeoreass in trade receivahles {(126.448) (15.98)
{ Inerense Vdecreass m osens {12512 M (16N BT0.13)
{Increaseldecrease in other financial asses 35 B (2380
{ Incrense Vdeorease i other non-fmmncinl axscis (14283} 1.5
Movemment in working capital - tafal (18,593, 78) {51720
III'GI.'FL'H! HECANITC {801 IL"HI'I | pmia | '-l\.'ll I-‘ 'qF.'I l":l -I 1 I -"-._".2
Inicres E'\I:FII.'I'I"K,'!. i barrronw |nLr-: Tmld l 1._-'4 5 -l‘:'] 1_. 13“.—1-“
i uh ggn-rulnl Fraim .{m-:-d Lrn up-cralrl-nm [ 1I5.5f|-"-' ﬂlr [.-.ﬁ:l'll.-ﬂ:l
Chirect faxes paid (ned of refumds) | [5RT.0) (460 24
et cash flow generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) |l (16, 154.97) (B 142.71)
B. Cash flow from investing activities :

Purchase ! Sale ol PPE (Net) 246 1LY {10502 )
Sale of Mutist] Fiard § MNet) 4714 T.HI5.461
Fixed Deposis matumed | (placed) (Net) (.17 (T T
el ush ltuw nrnrrllﬂ! lrmn ! 1|.l-ml in) invesfing sctivities (H) (S0 403 T MGH. 89
. II.:uI:l Hm't from finaneing sctivitics :

Hepayment of Dbt Sccuntics (207900 ) { 1 A20L54)
Bepayment of (iher Bormowings {19,797 1 {6,063
Proceads of (iher Bomowings 39.195.77 550000
Repuyment of lease liahilines {19450 (130.76)
Mt cash ow generated from ! (used in) financing activities () I 17,299,567 114336
Mt morease decreass) in cosh and cash equivalents (AFHBHC) 244,66 6o55
Crpening Balance of Cash and cash equvidents HE.90 19,35
Closing Balance of Cash and cosh equivalents 3356 ER.90

T

Slarch 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Components of cash & cash cquivalents

Cash on hansl

Balanee with banks in camrent accounis
Deposits with mabunty less than 5 months

Toial

|82
32074

33556
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(ii) Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using Indivect Method as per Ind AS 7.

(iii) Reconciliation between the opening and closing halances in the balance sheet for liahilities arising
from financing activities are as below ;

Ha. I Lakhs

A ad Cash fla bair Valie  Corrent ! Non-Corrent s ad
March 31, 2023 WL HOW Charges Classificathon March 31, 2024
Borrowings - Non Curmen 16| 5,94 14,007, T4 363373
Bosreowings - Current 12,607.54 364 70 - - [6,577.25

The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements (Note No, 1 to 97)

As per our report of even date For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
For Manubhai & Shah LLFP KIFS Housing Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firm Reg. No, 106041W/WI100136

sl gilf= 5l

Vitesh D.Gandhi  Rajesh P. Khandwala Vimal P. Khandwala
Puriner Chairman and Managing Director Managing Director
M. Moo 110248 DIN: 0477673 DIN; (0477768
_sd- sd/-
Vikki Vijay Soni Samrudhi Satish Shetty
Chiel Fimancial COfficer Cormpany Secretry
PAN - BELPST392) M. Mo, ACS-63985
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: Appust 14, 2024 Date: August 14, 2024
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information

KIFS Housing Finance Limited (the Company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companics Act. The Company 15 a non-deposit taking Housing
Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank (NHB) and is governed by the regulatory
framework for Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) as issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and other
directions, regulations and circulars issped by NHB. The Company's registered office is Regd. Office: 6th
Floor, KIFS Corporate House, Beside Hotel Planet Landmark, Near Ashok Vatika BRTS, ISKON-Ambl,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380054at B-81, Pariseema Complex, C.G. Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad, India. The
principal place of business of the Company 18 ar C-902, Lows Corporate Park, Graham Firth Compound,
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai. The principal business is providing finance to
individuals, corporates and developers for the purchase, construction, development and repair of houses,
apartmenis, residential and commercial properties in India. The Company also provides loans for specified
purpases against the security of immovable property. The Board of Directors approved the financial
statements on August 14, 2024,

2. Basis of Preparation & Presentation of Financial Statements
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS}) as notified
under section 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act') read with Companies { Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2005 and amendments issued therealter and the provisions of the RBI on the historical cost basis
cxcept for certaim financial mstruments that arc measured at fair values. The financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Effective April 1, 2020, the Company adopted Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with [nd
AS 101, 'First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’, with April 1, 2019 as the iransition date. The

transition was carried oul from [ndian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescnbed under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended (1GAAP).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and
presented in the format prescribed in the Division 111 of Schedule 111 to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows
15 prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'",

The Company presents its Balance Sheet in the order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or
settlement within 12 months after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date is
presented in Note 29,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS 1s imtially adopted or
arevision to an existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

The Company prepares 118 financial statements in Indian rupees (Rs) which is the functional and presentation
currency. The Company presents its balance sheet in the order of liguidity. Amounts in the financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by
Schedule 1 to the Act, Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two decimal places.

2.3 Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

o [ntheprincipal market tor the assetor liability, or
» [Intheabsence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and mimmizing the use
ofunobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the Tair value measurement
in its entirety, which are desenibed as follows:

» Level | —Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or liabilitics.

« Level 2 - Inputs, other than quoted prces included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability either directly or indirectly.

s Level 3—where unobservable inputs are used for the valuation ol assets or liabilities,

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assefs and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
year. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimales. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates, Revisions 1o accounting estimates are récogmised prospectively,
The Management helicves that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statcments arc prudent and
reasonable.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting cstimates involving complex and
subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements ave:

Valuation offinancial instruments

Measurement of expected credit loss

Provisions and contingencies

[Income tax and deferred tax

Liseful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Measurement of defined employee benefit obligations

- " 8 8 B =

A, Material Accounting Policies
A1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, the
revenue can be reliably measured, and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.

AL L Interest income

Interest income on financial instruments 15 recognised on a ttime proportion basis taking mto account the
amount outstanding and the effective interest mte ("EIR") applicable. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated [uture cash receipis through expected life of the financial asset o the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. When caleulating the effective interest rate, the company cstimates the
expected cash flows by considenng all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses. Penal Interest/late payment interest and cheque bounce charges are recognized on
receipl basis.

incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts. For financial assets measured al Fair Value through Profit and Loss (*FVTPL"),
transaction costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss at initial recognition.

ke,
The calculation of the EIR mncludes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are ‘]
L

v,
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

The Company calculates interest income by applving EIR to gross carmmying amount of financial assets other
than credit-impaired assets. For credit impaired financial assets, the Company calculates interest income by
applying the EIR to the amortized cost (i, gross carrying amount less allowance for expected credit losses) of
the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to
calculating interest income on a gross basis.

1. 1.2 Dividend
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established.
A.1.3 Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an intcgral part of EIR. The Company
recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts/ agreement
and when it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration.

A L4 Other Income

Other Income represents imcome eamed from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised when
the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

3.1 Property, plani and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 15 recognised when it 1s probable that future cconomic benefits
associated with the item is expected to flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
PPEs are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises the purchase price inet of trade discounts and tax/duty credits availed) and dircetly attributable cost
of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. All other expenses on existing fixed assets,
including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the
statement of profit and loss for the penod duning which such expenses are incurred.

PPEs not ready for the intended use on reporting date are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress™.

An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
its comtinued use. Any gain or loss anising on the disposal or retirement of PPE is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and its carmying amount and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

A3 Intangihle assets

An intangible asset is recognised, only where it is probable that future economic benchits attributable to the
asset will acerue to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at cost_ less
sccumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of
tax/duty credits availed, if any. less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impainment. Administrative
and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are
allocated and capitalised as a pant of the cost of the intangible assels.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on reporting date are disclosed as "Intangible Assets under
Development'.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Any gan or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of intangible asset is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and its carrying amount and is recognised in the statement of profitand
loss.
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

3.4 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on PPE is recognised on straight-line basis over the useful life prescribed under Schedule 11 to
the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for additions/deductions duning the year 15 calculated pro-rata to the
period of use. Assets costing up to 5000 each is depreciated fully in the year of purchase. The residual value
and uscful lifc and method of depreciation are reviewed at cach financial year-end with the effect of changes
recognised prospectively,

Improvements of immovable nature at the leasehold properties are depreciated over the inihal Tease period.

Intangible assets are amortized over the expected duration of benefit on a straight-line basis. Amortisation for
addriions/deductions during the year is calculated pro-rata to the penod of use. Software cost related o
computers is capitalized and amortised using the straight-line method over a period of three years. The
residual value and useful live and method of amortisation are reviewed at each financial vear-end with the
effect of changes recognised prospectively,

1.5 Impairment of PPE /Intangible assets

The Company assesses al each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 1
any indication exists, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable amount 1s
the higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset docs not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, Where the cammying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset s considered impaired and 1s written down to its recoverable amount, The impairment loss is recognised
un the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Aows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, it available. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

3.6 Cash and cash equivalent

C'ash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank {including demand
deposits) and in hand and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject (o an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

3.7 Statement of cash flow

Statement of Cash flows is reported using indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
elTects ol the transactions of non-cash mems, such as depreciation, amortisation, provisions, unrealised gains
and losses, any defermals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and payments and 1tems of
imcome or expenses associated with investing and financing cash fows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.8 Earnings pershare

Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the year. For calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net profit or loss for the year attnbutable 1o equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,
except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

1.9 Borrowing costs

Bommowing costs include interest expense calculated using the EIR on respective financial imstruments
measured at amortised cost, The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs,
and all other premiums or discounts,
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210 Goods and Services Input Tax Credit

Goods and Services tax input credit 15 recognised in the period in which the supply of goods or service
received 1s recognised and when there 15 no uncertainty in availing/utilising the credits,

A1 Income taxes
Current Tax

Current tax 1s recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current tax 18 also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to ftems that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax 15 also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equaty, respectively. Deferred tax assets and habilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax
credits could be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rules and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilities arc
offsct when there is legally enforceable right to st off current tax assets against current tax liabilitics and
when they relate to income laxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle ity
current tax assets and Labilitics on o net basis.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realired. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date, and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset o be recovered.

312 Employee Benefits
Short-term employvee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised during the vear when the employees render the service. These benefits
includes performance incentive and compensated absence that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the reporting period in which employvees render the related service.

Long-term Emplovee Benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the penod in
which the emplovee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date, based on actuarial valuation,

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. All employees of the
Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the retated service.
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Crratuity

The costs of providing benefits under the plan is determined based on actuarial valuation at each year-end.
Independent actuary using the projected unit credit method carries out valuation at the end of each reporting
date, Re-measurement are recognised in other comprehensive income and 15 reclassified to profit or loss ina
subsequent pertod. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair
value of planned assets.

A1 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels

A provision 18 recogmzed when the company has a present obligation as a result ol past event and 1t s
probable that an outflow of resources embodving economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision is measurcd using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and if the cffect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nisks specific to the hability, When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to seitle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is
a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The company does not recognize
acontingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent asset

A contingent assel is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
be¢ occurrence or non-oecurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
company. The company does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses 1ts existence in the financial
statements.

3.14 Commitments
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classificd and disclosed as follows:

a) Loans sanctioned but not disbursed and undisbursed amount of sanctioned Ioans;

b} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execuled on capital account and not provided for;

¢) Uncalled hability on shares and other investments partly paid;

d} Other non-cancellable commitments, if any. to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the
opinion of management.

3.15 Segment Reporting

The Company's main business is financing by way of loans for the purchase or construction of residential
houses, commercial real estate and certain other purposes. The Company operates with in India only. All other
activities of the Company revolve around the main business. This in the context of 'Ind AS 108 — Operating
Segments' reporting is considered to constitute one reportable segment.

A.16 Foreign currencies

F
Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency are recorded on mitial recognition 1
using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items &

are reported al the rates prevailing at the vear-end. Exchange differences that arise on seitlement of monetary 4
items or on reporting of monetary items at each Balance Shect date at the closing spot rate are recogmised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
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3.17 Lease

The Company has various lease arrangement for many assets incloding properties. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inceplion of a contract. A contract I8, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified assct for a period of time in exchange for consideration. At
the commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-Use (ROU} asset and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease amangements, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term
leases) and low value leases. As a lessee, the company recognises a nght-of-use asset and a lease hability at
the lease commencement date. The ROL is imitially measured at cost, which comprises the mitial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct cost incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underying asset or 1o restore the
underlying assct/sitc on which it is located, less any lcasc incentives reccived,

The ROLI asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
In addition, the night-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
re-measuremaents of the lease liability.

The lease liability 15 initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments, discounted using the
mcremental borrowing cost. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments, The lease lighility is measured al amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

When the lease liahility is remeasured, a comesponding adjustment is made to the cammying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero. The company presents right-of-use assets as part of PPE and lease liabilitics as part of "other
financial liabilitics' in the balance sheet,

Shori-term leases and leases of low-value assels

For low-value assets and short-term leases, lease rentals are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on
acerual basis,

A8 Financial Instruments

3.18.1 Recognition and initial measurements

Loans are recognised when fund transfer 15 initiated or disbursement cheque is issued to the customer. The
Company recognises debt securities, deposits and borrowings when funds are received by the Company. The
company recognizes all other financial assets and fnancial habilnies when it becomes a party to the
contractual provigions of the instrument,

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs and
revenue that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not at tair value through profit or loss are added to or deducted trom the fair value of financial assets or
financial liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs and revenue directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial Lhabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recogmised
immediately in profit or logs,

I the wransaction price ditTers from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will account for such
difference as follows:

o [f fairvaluc is evidenced by o quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or iaility or based ona
valuation technigue that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss on initial recognition {i.e. day 1 profit orloss);

= [nall other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price {Le. day | profit
or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability ).
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After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a
rational basis, only to the extent that it anses from a change in a factor (including time) that market particip
ants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

XL18.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities
3.18.2.1 Financial Assets

The Company classifics and measures all its financial asscts based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset's contractual terms, either at;

= Amortised cost
= Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
o FairValue through Profit and Loss

A 18,211 Amortized cost

The Company classifies and measures Cash and Bank balances, Loans, Trade Receivable and other financial
assets at amortised cost it

» these are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual
cash Mows and

= the contractual terms of the financial asseis give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest,

3.18.2.1.2 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A financial asset 15 subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 1f it 15 held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest.

3.18.2.1.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets at FVYTPL are

o Agsets with contractial cash Aows that are not SPPI: andfor

= Assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect
and sell; or

» Assetsdesignated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arsing on remeasurement recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

3.18.2.1.4 Business Model Test

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed together
te achieve a particular business objective. The Company's business model does not depend on management's
intentions for an individual instrument, therefore the business model assessment is performed at a higher level
of aggregation rather than on an imstrument-by-instriment basis.

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financial assets
are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect a new business model. The Company reassesses
it's business model at each reporting period 1o determine whether the business model has changed since the
preceding peniodd, For the current and prior reporting peniod the Company has not identified a change in its
business model.
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A18.2.1.5 Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (“SPPI™) on the principal amount outstanding

Foran assct to be classificd and measured at amortised cost or at FVOCL, its contractual terms should give nse
to cash flows that meet SPPI test. For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset
at imtial recogmition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are
repayments of principal). Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit sk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPP] assessment is made in the currency in which the financial
asset is denominated. Contractual terms that introduce exposure to nisks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending armangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or
commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPL

3.18.2.1.6 Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

These assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the efTective interest method. The amortised
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income and impairment loss are recogmised in statement of
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Debt Instrument at FVOCI

These assets are subseguently measured at fair value. Interest income and impairment loss are recognised in
staternent of profit and loss, Any gain or loss on subsequent measurement is recognised in OCI and on
derecognition the cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCT will be recycled to statement of profit and loss,

Equity Instrument at FVOC]

Gaing and losses on equity instruments at FVOC] are never recyeled to the statement of profit and loss.
Dividends are recogmised in profit or loss as dividend income when the nght of the payment has been
established. Equity instruments at FVOC] are not subject to an impairment assessment. Profit or loss on sale
of investments is determined on First in First out (FIFO) basis.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gain and losses, including any interest or dividend
meome, are recognised in statement of profit and loss, Profit or loss on sale of investments 15 delermined on
Firstin First out (FIFO) basis.

J.18.2.1.7 Reclassifications

IF the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets alfected
are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply
prospectively from the first day of'the first reporting period following the change in business model that resull
in reclassifying the Company's financial assets. During the current financial yvear and previous accounting
period there was no change in the business model under which the Company holds financial assets and
therefore no reclassifications were made.

A.18.2.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

The Company classifies these mstruments as financial habilities or equuty instraments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.

Equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual imterest in the assels of an entity afier deducting

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the face value and proceeds
recelved in excess of the face value are recogmised as secunties premium.
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Financial liabilities

The Company's borrowings include decbenturcs, borrowings from banks, ctc. Borrowings arc initially
measured at fair value plus directly atiributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at their
amortised cost using the effective interest rafe method.

3.18.3 Impairment and write-off

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on the financial instruments that
are not measured at FYTPL. ECL 15 required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to;

s | 2-month ECL, i.¢. loss allowance on default cvents on the financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date, {referred 1o as Stage 1); or

o Lifetime ECL, i.c. lifetime ECL that results from all possible default events over the life of the financial
instrument, {referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for lifetime ECL 15 required for a financial instrument if the credit nsk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECL is
measured al an amount equal to the | 2-month ECL.

The Company has established policy to perform an assessment at the end of cach reporting period whether a
financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by considering the
change in the risk of default occurning over the remaimng life of the financial instruments . The Company
applics athree-stage approach to measure ECL.

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of
default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognized. Exposures with days past due (DPDY) less
than or equal to 30 days are classified as stage 1.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL—- not credit impaired

For credit exposurcs where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since imitial recognition but that
are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized. Exposures with DPD greater than 30 days but less than
or equal to 90 days are classified as stage 2.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

Financial asset 15 assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial asset that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognized on principal outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD more than 90 days
are classified as stage 3.

A loan that has been renegotiated due 1o a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually considered to be
credit-impaired unless there 1s evidence that the nsk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment,

Methedology for caleulating ECL

The Company determines ECL based on a probability-weighted outcome of factors indicated below to
measure the shortfalls in collecting contractual cash flows. The Company does not discount such shortfalls
considenng relatively shorter tenure of loan contracts.

Probability of default (PD) - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given

time horizon (12- month or lifetime, depending upon the stage of the asset),
b/
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Exposure at default (EAD) - It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Company at a future date after
considering repayments by the counterparty before the default event occurs.

Loss given default (LGDY) - It represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of
default occurs.

The measurement of ECL 1% caleulated using three main components: (i) probability of default ( PD) (1) loss
given default (LGD) and (iii) the exposure at default (EAD). The 12 month ECL is calculated by multiplying
the 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetime PDs represent the PD occurming over the next
12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively, The EAD represents the expected
balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from the balance sheet date to
the default event together with any expected drawdowns of commitied facilities. The LGD represents
expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the
mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of monev.

ECL is recognized on EADY as at period end. If the terms of a financial asset are rencgotiated or modified duc to
financial difficulties of the borrower, then such asset 15 moved to stage 3, hfetime ECL under stage 3 on the
outstanding amount is applied.

The Company assesses when a significant increase in credit nisk has occurred based on quantitative and
qualitative assessments. Exposures are considered to have resulted in a significant increase in credit nisk and
are moved to Stage 2 when:

Quantitative test: Accounts that are more than 30 days past due move to Stage 2 automatically. Accounts that
are more than 90 days past due move to Stage 3 automatically.

Reversal in Stages: Exposures will move back to Stage 2 or Stage | respectively, once they no longer meet the
guantitative criteria set out above. For exposures classified using the qualitative test, when they no longer
meet the criteria for a significant increase in credit risk and when any cure criteria used for credit nisk
management arc met.

The definition of default for the purpose of determining ECLs has been aligned to the Reserve Bank of India
definition of default, which considers indicators that the debtor 15 unlikely to pay and 15 no later than when the
exposure 1s more than 90 davs past due.

The measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date are based on
historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The measurement of ECL
involves increased complexity and judgement, including estimation of PDs, LGD, a range of unbiased future
economic scenarios, estimation of expected lives and estimation of EAD and assessing significant increases
in credit risk.

Considering the prudence, the Company recognizes impairment on financial asset on higher of the provision
required as per the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India or using expected credit loss (ECL) model as
prescribed in Ind AS for the financial assets which are not fair valued. The expeeted credit losses (ECLs) 15
recognized based on forward-looking information for all financial asscts at amortized cost. no impairment
loss is applicable on equity investments.

At the reporting date, an allowance is required for the 12 month ECLs. If the credit risk has significantly
increased since imtial recognition (Stage 1), an allowance {or provision) should be recogmized for the lifetime
ECLs for financial instruments for which the credit nsk has increased significantly since imtial recognition
{Stage 2) or which are credit impaired ( Stage 3).

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring
in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any
refationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the RBL
inflation, ete. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its mternal data. Whale the
internal estimates of PG, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships,
temporary overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably,

b/
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Write off

lmpaired loans and receivables are written off, against the related allowance lor loan impairment on
completion of the Company’s intémal processes and when the Company concludes that there is no longer any
realistic prospect of recovery of part or all of the loan. A wnite-off constitutes a de-recognition event. The
Company has a right to apply enforcement activities to recover such written off financial assets. Subsequent
recoverices of amounts previously written ofT are credited to the income statemaenl.

Recovery from NPA
Appropriation of recoveries from NPA cases are made in the order of priority as under:

a) Principal,
b} Unrealised Interest
¢) Other charges

L1844 Modification and derecognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash lows of a financial
assct are rencgotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A
modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future
date, The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and
minimize the nsk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all
reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has
already happened and the borrower 1s expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most
of thie cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes 1o the timing of the cash flows of the loan
(principal and interest repavment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest
forgiveness).

Mot all changes in terms of leans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a class of obligors
that are not overdue is not considered as renegotiation and is not subjected 1o detenoration in staging.

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractal rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109, A
financial liability 18 derecognized when obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

3.18.5 Collateral Valuation and Repossession

The Company physically repossess propertics and engages external agents to recover funds, generally at
auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this
practice, the residential propentics under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet
and not treated as non—current assets held for sale.

X186 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derccogniscs financial liabilitics when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amounts of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and pavable is recogmised in the statement of profit and loss.

319 Off-setting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when

the company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amount and intends either to
settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Annual Report - 2023-24




Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March, 31, 2024

Fs in lakhs

45 ai hWs at
Mote No. Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
4 Cash and cash equivalents
4.1 Cash on hand 12.82 5.54
42 Balances with banks
In current acconnts 320,74 M3 36k

In term deposit accounts with orginal maturity
of 3 months or less

320,74 #3.36
Total 333.56 85.90

5 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent

Balance with banks in fixed deposits held as margin
money 5.448 66 4. 747 4%
(Refer Note 5.1)

Total i 4. 74748
3.1 Represents margin money placed against lerm loans
from banks and others.
[ Trade Receivables
Receivables considered good - Linsecured - -
Less - Provision for expected credit loss = E:
Total
f.1 Other Recelvables
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 176,76 15, 56
Less - ECL Provision on Other Beceivables (3042
Total 14634 19.86 j

6.2 There are no dues from directors or other officers of the Company or any firm or privale company in
which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
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6.3 Other Receivables Ageing Schedule

CHber Receivables
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Whach have slgnificant increase in
credit risk
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Credit Impaimed

Gross Tetal
Less . EUL Provasion on CHber Recervables
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Mo D
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I Year
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Wlore than
3 Yesrs

Rs. In
|Lakhs

Tunal

| Tdr. Té

176. %8
M4z

14644 |

U lier Hecervables
{F.Y 1h231-13)

(1) Undizpused Other Becaivablbes -

Mol Due

Uhnivianding for follawing Eu-rimlt froan due date of
FI"'." ment

Liss thon

i Wlonths

e Nloaig -

I Year

1-2

Yeors

More than

} Years

R=, Im
|.ukhs

Intal

Considered Good = 19 80 01.10& = - 159,85
din) Undispsined Other Beceivables -
Which have significam incresse in
credit risk
(i p Umli '\.F'I.tll.'d (Oilser Receivablis - ¥ - ; " 5
Credit Impaired
Civ) Dispute] Other Receivables - ;
Clomeslemed Crond
vh f:liﬂpnu._'d [Hher Becoivahles =
Whisch lave Hi:..'hi!-l.\'-dlkl inChsEsE i = 3 = = F =
credif nsk
(vid Disputed Oher Roceivables - 3 A
Credit Tmpaired
Girnss Tatal 19,506 il 19.86
Less : BCL Provagion on Oiker Beceivables - |
Tutal 1986 [
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March, 21, 2024

Mofe Mo,

Particulars

Loans

Al amortised cost

As al

March 31, 2024

Hs. In Lnkhs

As al

March 31, 2023

Individual Loans 79,741 .52 60,112.23
Corporate bodies

' “Total - Gross (A) 79,741.52 60,112.23 |
Less: Impairment loss allowance (Expected A
Credit Loss) ( 1,096.55) (1,025.96)

" Total - Net (A) T8.644.97 59.086.26 I
Secured by tangmble assers 79,74]1.52 60,112.23 |
Secured by intangible assets
Covered by bank / Governmenl gurantees - -
Unsecured |

' Total (B) - Gross 79,741.52 6l 112.23 |
Less: Impairment loss allowance {Expected '
Credit Loss) (1,094.55) (1,025.96)

 Total (B) - Net 78,644.97 59,086.26 |
Loans i India |
Public Sector - |
Crher than public sector 79,741.52 60,112.23 |

 Total (C - 1) - Gross 79,741.52 6011223 |
Less: Impairment loss allowance { Expected .
Credit Loss) (1.096.55) (1,025.96) |

- Total (C - 1) - Net 78,644.97 59,086.26

" Loans outside India j{' - 11} - -

" Total C (1+11) | T8.644.97 59,086.26

Note N Pttt As ar As at
i e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
) Investments
A Fair value through profit or loss
Mutual funds
Total (A) - Gross = =
B

Investments in India
Il't".-'L!:hl!'l'I:..‘l'l_l li:!l.__ﬂ.‘-i'id_,li..‘ _Iml._i;.l_

: Total (B) - Gross

Less: Allowance for impairment loss (C)

Total - Net D= (B) -(C)
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
Hs. In Lakhs

A% al Ax al
March 31, 224 March 31, 2023

Mole Mo, Particulars

9 Other financial assels
Security Deposils 59.16 63.42
Loan to employee %87
[nterest Accured But Not Due on Fixed Deposits 4543 44.06 '
| Advance to Emplovee | 1020 _ 41,854 !
Total 12366 14932 |

1p | Property, Plant and Equipment I
a | Gress Block | | {
' BalanceasatApril 12022 | 15540 | 92235 | 9me0 | 6736 | 3290 | 2144 | 129604 |
Adidithons 162 | 14486 1% K| 7.20 24,39 . K88 |
Deductions (5837 (0.35) . . (58.72)
|Balance as at March 31, 2023 | 15902 | 100884 | 12741 | 7421 | 5729 | 2044 | 144821 |
| Addditrons - 5.100 l AT 3 . 3150 - 487 1333 - . 422 16 :
Deductions - [ (257 58) x (011 (2T = (25793 |
Balance as at March 31,2024 | 16412 L1862 | 15891 7897 | 7039 | 2144 | 161245 |
b | Accomalated Depreciation |
| . H ' . M i |
Balsance as at April 1, 2022 G2 XT3.80 46,98 1302 | 021 .19 40450 |
[ Addions 432 | 18030 24,74 12.54 904 | 2.56 | 25348 |
Deductions - | 141,20 - {13} - - {41.35)
|BalanceasatMarch 31,2023 | B461 | 41290 | TLT2 | 2541 | 1825 | 384 | 61673 |
Additions 1911 | 244.76 2718 &, 68 10,23 255 | 31051 |
Deductions . | (20339 - (0L05] (LZX) - (203.6T)
| Balance as at March 31,2024 | 103.72 . 45427 | eme0 | 3204 ] M6 | 639 | 723587
c | MNet Block | |
Balance as at March 31, 2023 74,40 405,04 8560 4880 | 3905 | 1760 | 33148
Balanve as at March 31, 2024 40 | 66435 Gl 4693 | 413 1505 | REEBEH
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

10.1 During the Year, The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use Assets).

Particulars Rs. In Lakhs

11 Other Intangible assets

4 Ceross Block
Balance as at April 1, 2022 42.91
Additions 33.07
. Peduction _*_
Balance as at March 31, 2023 75.98

Additions -
Dreductions :
Balance as at March 31, 2024 T5.98

5] Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at April 1, 2022 12.50
Additions 231.9]
Deduction .

| Balance as at March 31, 2023 EXTI
Additions 23,69
Deductions =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 il 11
[ MNet Block
Balance as at March 31, 2023 39.57

Balance as at March 31, 2024 15.89

11.1 During the Year, the Company has not revalued its Intangible Assers

Fs in lakhs

Particulars i : o
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
12 Other non-financial assets |
Balance with Government Authoritics 14.31 12.11
Prepaid expensc 92.46 51.36
Advances to vendors §2.52 35.39
Advances to others h7.53 12.27
Capital advance .96 5.12
Total 258.78 116,25
13 Trade payables
Dues to micro emterprises and small enterprises [.94 389
Due to creditors other than micro enterprises and small "i
enteTpriscs 440.02 394 34
8 Total | 44196 9823 | :i..
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
Rs in lakhs

Mot Ax al A5 al
doi Particulars i o

MNo. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

13.1 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per
Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006
i. The principal amount and the interest due thereon

remaining unpaid to any supplier

11, The interest amount remaiming unpaid o any supplier - -

fini. Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along
with the amounts of the pavment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year

.i'v'_ !l‘l.[l.!'l'l:..“il dhie :,|r|.1.] pavable for the period nf:iul:!}' in. | | |
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the vear) but without adding the - -
interest specified under Micro Small and Medium
Entcrprisc

| v. The amount of further interest remaining due and

payable even in the succeeding years

13.2 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified based on information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the
munditors

133 Payables Aging Schedule

Crrtstanading for following pericds from doe dute of Paymenit Rs. In Lakhs

Trade Pavaldes(F.Y DE23-24) Pl e

Less tham I =X Yeary 2 =3 Yedns Wiore Ehan

I "Year T -

(i) MSMI | 194 | ‘ | .94 |
{if} Others a a3 | | a9s . gz |
(iif) Disputed Dues-MSME___ | - | - | - ] - a I = |
{iv) Dhspabed Daies - (khers | | |
Total [ 1m4 | 43306 | : 6.95 E wies |

Crytstunding for Following perieds frem doe dote of Paymeni  Hs In Lakhs

Trade Favablesiby 20K22-23) Mool Dhuse

Lisx thas 1 =2 Yoars 4 -3 Yedirs Nbore chan
o FH Tsial
I Year 1 Yaars
1) KSR LEY - - - . LR L]
{11} Others . iMT Al RE! . = T, 34

() Mspoted Chees - MSME
{1v) Drspuated Dues - (Rbers
Tiwial

T4 6,93 - - 395.23

= ey . = = e e m s ]

389
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

14 Debt Securities Rs in lakhs
. A5 af A5 at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i At amortised cost
Non-Convertible Debentures
Sccured - 2083.33
Ll vsecuered
_Less - Unamortised borrowing cost : (432)
Total (A) - ' 2,079.01
= s | oty
i Debi securities in India - 2.083.33
Less = Unamortised bormrowing cost . (4.32)
Total (B - 1) - | 2.079.01
i Tfhil"n_a:':'*.-;:'-:.-‘uriiin::-'-__nu[_.-*-id_c India - i
Total (B - ii) z ' :
Total B{1+ii) - | 2 .079.01

14.1 Mon Convertible Debentures

] A Faite ol Dt ol Lhaie ol A% ai Ahs i

Particulars
- imleresi alloimeni redempiion March 3. 2034 March 51, 2034

l. | 9.81%PA. Kifs Housing Finance | %81% | August 11, 2020 | August 31, 3023 . £33.33
Limited Series B/2020-21

3. | 10.10% PA. Kifs Housing Finance | 19 100 | July 30, 2020 July 30, 2023 . 12500
Limited Series A2020-21

10333

Details of contractual repayment of debt securitics {excluding interest accrucd and unamortised issue cost)
at March 31, 2024 is given below,

-1 vears 1-3 vears =5 years Total

| g Ly H|".| - . =

. 1% to 1% | - - -

1. The company has issued 125 Series A/2020-21 Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) of a face value of Rs.
1.000,000/- 1o Canara Bank repayable in 3 years at a coupan rate of 10.10% p.a.. The same is listed on BSE
on August 17,2020, The Principal amount is to be paid at the end of tenure and Interest 15 payable annually.
The debentures are issucd on sccurity of hypothication of reccivables cquivalent to 1.10 times. The
company has also provided Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P. Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala. The
1ssuied debenture has been repand.

2. The company has issued 230 Series B/2020-21 Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) of a face value of Rs, ‘
100,000 - 1o Bank of Baroda repavable in 3 vears at a coupan rate of 9.81% p.a.. The same 15 hsted on BSE
on September 14, 2020, The principal and Interest 18 payable annually, The Debentures are issued on - &
sccurity of hypothication of reccivables equivalents to .25 times. The company has also provided Personal
guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vinod P Khandwala. The issued debenture has been repaid.

v
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

15 Borrowings (other than debt securities)

WOt
M.

Particulars

Al Amortised Cosi

As ot
March 31, 2024

Rs in lakhs

As ot

March 31, 2023

i Term loan from hanks - Secured 24 674,80 |4, 570,94
il Term loan from Natonal Housing Bank - Secured 12 604 67 O 53K 35
i1 Term loan from - others-Secured 8,324,604 2.000,00
IV Loans repayable on demand from banks - Secured -
Less - Unamortised bormowing cost (348.85) [162.66)
N __Total borrowings 45.345.26 25,946.59
B
i Borrowings in India 4569411 26,109.25
| Less- Unamortised borrawing cost (348.85) (162.66) |
Total (B - i) 45,345.26 25,946.59
q | ﬂﬁm:wing}; outside India o I |
Less - Unamortised bormowing cost - -
Total (B - ii) - -
Total B (i+ii) 45.345.26 25.946.59

15.1 There has not been any default in repayment of borrowings and interest during financial year ended
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

15.2 Terms of repayment
As at March 31, 2024

Sr. ™o, Inferest rate

(-1 yenrs

1-3 vears

3-5 vears

Shove 5 vears

1 Term loans from banks
9% - 1% 5.625.43 043432 | 404699 - 19,106.74
10%-11% 1.503.15 245460 | 107368 519.96 5.551.40
%=1 2% 1667 - - 1667
| Tem 714525 1188892 | 512067 519.96 24.674.80
z Term loans lrom SHEB
B 2,054, [EF 5,200 gl 223275 1.000.22 | 265467
R DAl L SR | ston SR EAATNE.
i Loan from (Mhers
9% 10% |.743.45 142449 1.823.77 6,991.31
10a-11% bbb 7 it il I3RS
Total 2.410.12 409076 | 182377 8.324.64
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2023

S v Intercest rate =1 wemnrs 1-3 vears 55 years Ahave S years

| Term lnans from kanks
8% -9 190 25 431.42 121.34 . T43.01
| S5 1 |.&5T.26 1 20062 T R5.05 - B SRR
1081 1 192217 3,022 25 1 47455 . frd LB .96
: Tiotal . 396968 | G, Gl 29 3.940.94 - | 14,5704} .
1| Term lsans from NHEB 5
Tha-H'% 4650 s XL LER ] 56238 2.756. 44
-9 1.350.00 3.362.0d 2.06%.47 - TR 47 |
Tl 1696510 4, 286 A0 2.993.47 Sh1IA U.53R.35
K | Laonn from {yhers
oRe- 10 6T 1.333.33 . - 2,000, |
{ | | | | |
Total b7 1.333.33 = - 2000 |

153 a) The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Lid (TL1) of Rs, 475 lakhs repavable in 60

monthly installments starting from October 29, 2018 and carry Interest (@9.20 % Pa. (PY: @9.20 % P.a.)
{One year MCLR + 0.70%:) on security of cash margin of 10.00 % of loan amount and hypothecations of
receivables equivalent to 1. 10 times and letter of comfort by promoter entity i.¢. KIFS Intemational LLP.
The Term Loan has been fully repaid during the Year

b) The Company has taken term loan from South Indian Bank Lid of Rs. 500 lakhs repayable in 60
monthly mstallments starting from January 29, 2019 and carry Interest @9.65 % Pa. (PY: @9.65 % Pa.)
{One year MCLER + 0.55%). Ths tacility is secured by cash margin equivalent to 10,00 %% of term loan in
form of fixed deposit and paripassu charge on all current assets, book debts, and housing loan assets both
present and future of the company with minimum cover of 1,10 times. The Company has also provided
corporate guarantee of KIFS Intemational LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr.
Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala,

¢) The Company has taken term loan from AU Small Finance Bank Limited of Rs. 1000 lakhs repayable
in &0 monthly installments starting from May 3, 2019 and carry interest &2 11.85 % pa. (PY: @ 10.41 %
Pa.) (12 Month's average ofone year T-Bill + 4.85%). This facility is secured by hypothecations of
present and future loan receivables equivalent to 1.20 times for the loan principal outstanding. The
Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS Intemational LLP (the holding enterprise) &
Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

d) The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Ltd (TL2) of Rs. 500 lakhs repayable in 60
monthly installments starting from May 23, 2019 and carry Interest (@ 10.65 % Pa. (PY: @9.35 % Pa.)
(One year MCLR = 1. 30%) on security ol cash marging of 10,00 %5 of Toan amount and hypothecations of
receivables equivalent to 1.10 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS
International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr.
Vimal P Khandwala.

) The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Lid (TL3) of Rs. 600 lakhs repayable in 60
monthly installments starting from October 30, 2019 and carry Interest (@) 10.40 % Pa. (PY: @9.50 %
Py (One year MCLR + 1.00%%) on secunty of cash marging of 5% of Toan amount and hypothecations ol
receivables equivalent to 1.20 times, The Company has also provided corporate guaraniee of KIFS
International LLP (the holding enterprise} & Personal guaraniee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr,
Vimal P Khandwala.

1) The Company has taken term loan from Karur Vyasza Bank of Rs. 1500 lakhs repayable in Quarterly
installments starting from May 31, 2020 and carry Interest (@9 90 % Pa. (PY: @ 10.40% Pa. ) (Repo Rate
+ 3.40 %) on security of hypothecations of receivables equivalent 1o 1.20 times. The Company has also
provided corporate guarantec of KIFS Intemational LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee
of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

2) The Company has taken refinance facility from National Housing Bank of Rs. 4500 lakhs repayable in
10 years 2 months 12 days in quarterly installments starting from January 15, 2020 carrying Interest
OB 40 %, B.45% & 855 % Pa. (PY: @ e@7.95% & 8.00% P.a.). Security againgt this is hypothecation of
receivables equivalent to 1.25 times and bank guarantee equivalent to 20.00 % of loan amount
sanctioned. Further the Company has also provided Corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP.

h} The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Lid {TL4) of Rs. 400 lakhs repayable in 60
monthly installments starting from February 29, 2020 and carry Interest @@ 10,80 % Pa. (PY: @ 10,30 %
Paa.) (One year MCLR + 1.00%) on secunty of cash margin of 3% of loan amount and hypothecations of
receivables equivalent to 1.20 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS
International LLP (the holding enterprise} & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & M.
Vimal P Khandwala.

1) The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Lid (TLS) of Rs. 1004 lakhs repavable in 60
monthly installments starting from January 31, 2021 and carry Interest (@ 10.60 % Pa. (PY: @ 10.00 %
Pa.) (One vear MCLR + 1.00%) on security of hypothecations of receivables equivalent 1o 1.20
times. The Company has also provided corporate guaraniee of KIFS International LLP (the holding
enterprise ) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr, Vimal P Khandwala.

11 The Company has taken refinance facility under lift scheme from Mational Housing Bank of Rs, 1500
lakhs repayable in 5 Years in quarterly installments starting from July 1, 2020 carrving Interest @ 8.45 %
Pa. (PY: @& 15 % Pa.). Security agamnst this i1s hypothecation of receivables equivalent to 1.35 nmes.
Further the Company has also provided Corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding
enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

k) The Company has taken refinance facility under regular refinance scheme from MNational Housing
Bank of Rs. 10000 lakhs repavable in 7 Years in quarterly installments starting from April 1, 2021
carrying Interest i B.65 % Pa. (PY: @8.10% Pa.). Security against this 18 hypothecation of receivables
equivalent to 1.20 times and bank guarantee equivalent to 10,00 % of loan amount sanctioned. Further
the Company has also provided Corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise)
& Personal puarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

[} The Company has taken term loan from Federal Bank Lid (TL6) of Rs. 10404 lakhs repayable in 60
monthly installmenis starting from October 30, 2021 and carry Interest @9.60 % Pa. (PY: i@8.70% Pa.)
{One year MCLR + 0,.20%) on secunty of hypothecations of receivables equivalent to 1.10 times. The
Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS Intemational LLP (the holding enterprise) &
Personal guarantes of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

m) The Company has taken term loan from IDBI Bank of Rs. 1000 lakhs repayable in 60 monthly
installments starting from January 31, 2022 and carry Interest (@ 10,10 % Pa. (PY: @ 9. 10% Pa.) (One
yvear MCLR + 0.85%) on secunty of cash margin of 5.00 % of loan amount and hypothecations of
receivables equivalent to 1.20 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS
International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr.
Vimal P Khandwala.

n} The Company has taken term loan from State Bank of India of Rs. 5000 lakhs repayvable Quarterly.
installments starting from May 31, 2022 and carry Interest (@9.25 % Pa. (PY: @ 10.20% Pa.) (6M
S0OFR + 225 bbps) on security of (Immovable property/cash collateral) equivalent to T8% of loan
amount and hypothecations of recervables equivalent to 1.25 times. Further, the loan has been converted
as a FCNR TL which has been considered as fixed price loan wherein hedging risk has been taken care by
Bank.The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding
enterprise) & Personal guaraniee of Mr, Rajesh Pkhandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala, A

o} The company has taken term loan from Capital Small Fimance Bank of Rs, 2500 lakhs repayable in 60 ‘
maonthly installments starting from December 31, 2022 and carry interest (@ 9.50% (PY: (@9.50 % Pa.)
(One Year MCLRH0.30%) on security of hypothication of receivables equivalent to 1.10 times. The &8
company has also provided corporate gpuarantee of KIFS Intemational LLP (the holding enterprise) &
Personal guarantes of Mr, Vimal Khandwala.
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

p) The company has taken term loan from Utkarsh Small Finance Bank of Rs. 1500 lakhs repayable in 60
monthly installments starting from November 01, 2022 and carry interest G@ 10.32% (PY: @10.07 %%
P )i 364 Days T-Bill Rate 6,.35% + 3.72%) on security of hypothication of recervables equivalent 1o 1,10
times and 3% cash collateral of loan amount sanctioned in the form of FDR. The company has also
provided corporate guarantee of KIFS Intemational LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee
of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala and Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

qh The company has taken term loan from CSB Bank of Rs. 2000 lakhs repayable in 60 monthly
installments starting from January 12, 2023 and carry interest (@ 92.45% (PY: @9.15 % Pa (6 Month
MCLR 9.40% + 0.05%) on security of hypothication of specific recevables with only principal
componcnt of standard asset equivalent to 1. 10 times and 5% cash collateral of loan amount sanctioned
in the form of FDR. The company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the
holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala and Mr. Vimal P Khandwala,

r} The Company has taken term loan from South Indian Bank Ltd of Rs. 500 lakhs repayable in 60
monthly installments starting from December 30, 2022 and carry Interest &2 10,25 % Pa_ (PY: @9.50 %
Py (12 month MCLR + 0,45 %5). Thas facility 15 secured by hypothication of receivables of standard
asset equivalent to 1.25 times, The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS
International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr.
Vimal P Khandwala,

5} The Company has taken term loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Lid of Rs. 2000 lakhs repavable

in 12 quarterly installments starting from May 5, 2023 including imterest and carry Interest @1 0.40 %%
Par. (PY; 2990 % Pa) . This facility is secured by hypothication of receivables of standard asset
equivalent to 1.10 times and 3% cash collateral of loan amount sanctioned in form of FDR. The
Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS Intemational LLP {the holding enterprise) &
Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr, Vimal P Khandwala.

tiThe Company has taken term loan from Federal bank (TL7) of Rs. 1000 lakhs repavable in 60 monthly

mstallments starting from October 29, 2022 including interest and carry Interest @ 10,25 % Pa. (PY;
0935 % Pa.) .(One year MCLR-+0.85 %). This facility is secured by hypothication of receivables of
standard asset equivalent to 1.20 times and 5% cash margin. The Company has also provided corporate
guarantee of KIFS Imernatonal LLP (the holding emerprise) & Perseonal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P
Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

u) During the yvear, the Company has taken term loan from Sundaram Home Finance Limated (TL 1) of
Rs. 1000 lakhs repayable in 60 monthly installments starting from May 31, 2023 including interest and
carry Interest @ 9.86 % P.afLinked with 3 months TRLR).This facility is secured by hypothication of
receivables of standard asset equivalent to 1.10 times. The Company has also provided Personal
guarantee of Mr, Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

v} During the year, the Company has taken term loan from HDFC Bank Limited (TL1) of Rs. 100 lakhs
repavable in 36 monthly installments starting from June 30, 2023 including interest and carry Interest
.60 % Fa. (One Year MCLR + 0.55 %6). This facility is securcd by hypothication of receivables of
standard asset equivalent to 1.10 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS
International LLP (the holding enterprise} & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr,
Vimal P Khandwala,

w ) During the year, the Company has taken term loan from HDFC Bank Limited {TL2)of Rs. 1500 lakhs
repayable in 36 monthly mstallments starting from June 30, 2023 including nterest and camry Interest

960 % Pa. (One Year MCLR + 0.55 %).This facility is secured by hypothication of receivables of A
standard asset equivalent to 1,10 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS ‘
International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh ' Khandwala & Mr.

Vimal P Khandwala. L.
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

x) During the year, the Company has taken term loan from Sundaram Home Finance Limited (TL2) of
Rs. 500 lakhs repayable in 60 monthly installments starting from July 31, 2023 including interest and
carry Interest @992 % Pa(Linked with 3 months TBLR). This facility 15 secured by hypothication of
receivables of standard asset equivalent to 1.10 times. The Company has also provided Personal
guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala,

v} During the year, the Company has taken term loan from Federal bank (TLE) of Rs. 2000 lakhs
repayable in 60 monthly installments starting from July 23, 2023 including interest and carry Interest
w960 % Pa(One year MCLR+0.40 %). This facility is secured by hypothication of receivables of
standard asset equivalent to 1,10 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS
International LLP {the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr.
Vimal P Khandwala,

2} During the vear, the Company has taken term loan from Karur Vyasa Bank of Rs. 2500 lakhs repayable
in 20 quarterly installments starting from January 31, 2024 including interest and carry Interest (@9.90 %
Pa.{Repo Rate + 3.40 %), This facility 15 secured by hypothication of receivables ol standard asset
equivalent to 1,20 times. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS Intemational
LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P
Khandwala,

aa) During the year, the Company has taken term loan from Kotak Mahindra Investment Limited of Rs,
2500 lakhs repavable in 60 monthly installments starting from September 30, 2023 including intercst
and carry fixed Interest (@ 1000 % Pa. This facility is secured by hypothication of receivables of
standard asset equivalent to 1.20 times and 5% cash margin. The Company has also provided corporate
guaraniee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guaraniee of Mr. Rajesh P
Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

ab) The company has taken term loan from CSB Bank of Rs. 2500 lakhs repayable in 60 monthly
installments starting from October 22, 2023 and carry mterest G 9.65% (6 Month MCLR 9.40% +
11.25%) on secunty of hypothication of specific receivables with only principal component of standard
asset equivalent to 1.10 times. The company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International
LLP (the holding enterprise} & Personal guaraniee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala and Mr. Vimal P
Khandwala,

ac) During the vear, the Company has taken term loan from Poonawala Fincorp Limited of Rs. 4000 lakhs
repayable in 60 monthly installments starting from Novemeber 5, 2024 meluding interest and carry
Interest (@9.75 % P.a. Ths facility is secured by hypothication of receivables of standard asset equivalent
to 1.10 times. Interest (i9.75 % Pa.This facility is secured by hypothication of receivables of standard
assetequivalentto 1. 10 tmes.

ad) During the year, the Company has taken term loan from Canara Bank Limited of Rs. 2500 lakhs
repayable in 84 monthly installments starting from October 30, 2023 including interest and carry Interest
wn 10,50 % Pa.(One vear MCLR+1 80 %), This facility is secured by hypothication of receivables of
standard asset equivalent to 111 times and 10% cash margin, The Company has also provided corporale
guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P
K handwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

a¢) During the vear, the Company has taken term loan from ICICI Bank Limited of Rs. 100 lakhs
repayable in 24 monthly installments starting from October 30, 2023 including interest and carry Interest

@950 % Pa. (Repo Rate + 3.00%). This facility is secured by hypothication of receivables of standard

assel equivalent to 1.25 times and 10% cash margin, The Company has also provided corporate 4
guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P ‘
K handwala & Mr, Vimal P Khandwala.
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

al) The Company has taken term loan from State Bank of India of Rs. 3000 lakhs repayable in 60 months
in Quarterly installments  starting from April 29, 2024 and carry Interest @925 % Pa. (PY: @ 10,20%
Pa.)(6M SOFR + 225 bbps) on security of (Immovable property/cash collateral) equivalent to 18% of
loan amount and hypothecations of recervables equivalent to 1.25 times. Further, the loan has been
converted as a FONR TL which has been considered as fixed price loan wherein hedging risk has been
taken care by Bank. The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS International LLP (the
holding enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Me. Rajesh Pkhandwala & Mr, Vimal P Khandwala.

ag) During the year, the Company has taken term loan from NHB Refinance of Rs. 3500 lakhs repayable
in 10 years in quarterly installmenis stariing from July 1, 2024 including interest and carry Inierest
i ®.70 Pa, Thas facility 15 secured by hypothication of receivables of standard asset equivalent 1o 1.20
times . The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS Intemational LLP (the holding
enterprise) & Personal guaraniee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

ah) During the year, the Company has taken term loan from NHB Refinance of Rs. 2500 lakhs repavable
in 10 years in quarterly installments starting from July 1. 2024 including interest and carry Interest
w870 Pa. This facility 18 secured by hypothication of receivables of standard asset equivalent to 1.20
times . The Company has also provided corporate guarantee of KIFS Intemational LLP (the holding
enterprise) & Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajesh P Khandwala & Mr. Vimal P Khandwala.

15.4 The Company has obtained borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of secunty of
Current Assets.

15.5 The Company has used the Borrowangs from banks & financial institutions for the specific purpose for
which it was taken.

Rs in lakhs
MNaote As al Ax at
.

. Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Ia | (nher financial liabilivies

Book overdraft 4.865.70 419788
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings and debt securities 101.29 163.82
Pavable o Employees hh. 82 50.08
Payable to Customers 596,549 12948
| Lease liabiliy | 774.20 | 6E4.47
. Tatal | b, 404,60 | 543563

17 | Provisions
Employee benehi

Ciratuity 5086 42,32
ﬂ_'ullipl.:'llhﬂrmj ::|:'r:~ ' | [l |."f_1_5;| H:" 5
ECL Provision on Other Assets 1.19

| Total 18470 | 12488

18 | Oiher non Anancial Habilities

Statatory dues 12111 RO 50
Advance EMI 17.09 1744 A
Advance from cosiomers 42.60 I8.62 ‘
Provizion for expenzes 449,72 33881
Tutal 630,52 184.42
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024 o
5 1M R 5

Ax ai As al

arficulars
Particular March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

149 Equity Share Capital

19.1 | Awnthorised Capital

250,000,000 Equity Shares of Es. 10/- gach (MY 250,000,000

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each) 25 JCHL (WD 25 000 (W)
Total 2500000 | 25,000.00
19.2 | Isswed, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital | |

249 986,452 Equity Shares of Bs.10V- cach (P.Y 249 986,452

Equity Shares of Es.10/- each) 24 998 .65 24,998 65

Total | 2499865 2499865

19.3 Rights, preferences and restrictions :

i The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-. Each holder of equity
share is entitled 1o one vole per share.

1 Any dividend propoesed by the Board of Directors 15 subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Dividend declared and paid would be in Indian rupees.

iil Intheevent of iquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive any of
the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The amount
distributed will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

19.4 Details of equity sharcholders holding more than 5% shares :

r : As om As on
Name of the Sharcholde: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Mo, of Shares %0 No. of Shares %%

KEIFS International LLP 24,94 85,752 24,94 85,752
99 80% 99 B0

19.5 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding & the amount of Share Capital :
Rs in lakhs

Particulars 13- 24 1032 - 2023

. of Shares A i o, of Shares i

Equaly Shares at the bepinming of the yeal 2499 H6.452 24 65 24.99 Bb 452 2499865
Changes my Equaty share Capital during the Year

Equity Shares at the cnd of the year 24.99 B 452 2499865 24,99 B6, 452 24 908, .65

19.6 The Company has not reserved any shares for issuc under options and contracts/commitments for the
sale.

19.7 The Company has neither allotted any shares pursuant to contracts without payment being received in
cash or as bonus shares nor it has bought back any shares during the preceding 5 financial vears.

19.8 The Company has not 18sued any convertible securities and has not 1ssued any shares where calls are
unpaid. The Company has not forfeited any shares.
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
19.9 Details of shares held by the Promoters at the end of the year

Promoter Name As at March31, 2024

s af March3l, 2023 %o Change

: - . L Juring the vear
Mo, of Shares % of Holding Mo, of Bhares %, of Holding I M A

KIFS International LLP 2494, 85,752 B 24594 85, 73200 Lhk R -

20. Other equity

Rz In Lakhs
Cher equity As al As at
March 31, 2024 Narch 31, 2023
Retained Earmings RATRTR 4 53838
statutory Kescrve 2.222.41 1.675.74
Total 7.898.17 6,214.12

Retained Earnings
This Represnts surplus in profit and loss account after appropriations.

Statutory Reserve

As required by section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934, the company maimains a reserve fund and transfers there ina
sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit every vear as disclosed in the profit and loss account and
before any dividend 1s declared. The company cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund except for
the purpose specified by Reserve Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose
for appropriation of reserve fund maintained under section45-1C of RBI Act, 1934,

Other Comprehensive Income - Emplovee Benefits
This represents remecasurement gaind(loss) on post employement bencfit obligations,

Rs, In Lakhs
Nale For the vear emiled Far the YEUr ended
N Particulars 223-2024 DIZE-2023
2lin) | Imterest Income
Interest on Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
Interest om Loans 9.628.6] T328.62
| Total 9.628.61 7.318.62
ILib) | Fees and Commission Income
Fees and commission income 242.31 121,33
 Total 24231 121.33
Il | Net gain on fair value changes
Met gain on linancial instruments designated ot fair value
through profit or loss 47.14 7658
| Tetal 47.14 76.58
2L1 | Fair value changes
Realised 47.14 132,15
Unrealised - {55.57)
Total 47.14 76.58
I} | Oher operating revenuge
Interest on fixed deposits with banks 321.60 229 58
Other ancillary services T40.54 251 42
Total 1062.14 481.00
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024 Rs. In Lakhs

Nl For the vear emded  For the vear ended

iy 2023-2024 2ik22-20023

Wie.  Particolars

4 | Oither Income - tolal
Interest on Income Tax Refund . 6.40
 Total ' 6.40 -

25 | Finance Cost
251 | Imterest on financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Interest on borrowing 346393 [948.53
Interest on debd securities 1555 266,27
Interest on lease habilities 55449 49.76
| Other borrowings cost | 8589 | 5540
Tuial | 3.680.9 231996
6 | Impairment on financial instruments
On financial instmments measured at amortized cost 132.72 [49.02
| Total |  13am 149.02
17 | Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries and wages 2.898.26 2.761.21
Contribution o Provident Fund and other funds 150033 142.65
Stalf Welfare expenses 43.15 18.48
Total YR 2,922.34
I3 | (ither Expenses I
Rent, taxes and energy costs B4l 33.15
Repair and Maintenance 20423 | 79.35
Communication cost 41.61 37.44
Printing and Stationery 34,00 23.09
Advertisement expenses 13.33 H.85
Recruitment Expenses 5.15 B0
Dvirectiors Sitting [ees & Others B35 6.7
Auditor’s Remuneration (excluding GST) I6.18 8,57
Legal and Professional charges 13829 97.59
Business Promotion expenses 10.07 1.83
Commission & Brokerage .69 1.46
Travelling and Convevance 165.34 93.39
Insurance 4515 63.60
Membership & Subscription fees 2.59 1.88
CSR Expenses 349,00 40,00
Office Expenses 24 Bb 2503
Chhers 102,11 29,66
| Total -. 931.04 682.45 _i
81 | Payment to auditors
for statutory audit 9.50 342 F
for Limited Review 1.4} 2.70 ‘
for tax audit 1.50 0.90 2
for other services (Certification, ete) 345 1.24 s,
| for out of pocket expenses L 0.73 0.31
Total 16.18 B.57T
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

29, Current & Non-current Assets & Liabilities

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024 R, i Lakhs

Particulars Current Non=Carrent latal

_Assels 8 | !
FinanchalAsses | —

‘Cash and cash equivalents 33356 | - 33356 |

_Bank balance other than cash & cash equivalents. o353 | 241712 5 448,66

Derivative financial instruments - | - -

Receivables ?

0 _Trade receivables I I i T
it Other receivables 4634 | - [46.34 |

Loans TR T1.096.93 TH.644.97 |

[nvesiments | - -

Other Financial Agsets 1‘}'!.‘]? 10 50 123,66
_Total financial assets 1TSS | TI6IRGE3 | B4697.19
| Non-Financial Assets |

_Clurrent ax assels INEI_:I . . | - -

 Deferred 1ax assets (Net) . | YR 39 9839

Property, Plant and Equipmeni . KRR HR HER. X

Intangible asscts under development - I - =

Other intangible assets -1 15,59 15,89
| Oiher non-financial assets 25878 | - 258 TR

Total Non-financial assels 1878 | 1,003, 16 1.261.95
| Total Assels 11,337,233 I 74,62 1.80 $5,930.13

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY i

LIABILITIES f

Financial liabilities |
TradePayables 1

i toral outztanding dues o micro enterprizes and

_small enterprises 1.94 : 1.94
i total mlﬁtnndlng dues o creditors other than micro

cnt:rpnm:q .mrl -m'l.llll enterpriscs 444002 | = 44002

Other Pavahles

piy total owtstanding dues o micro enterprises and snall

enlerprises - - -
it tobal outstanding dues o creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises . . -

Dbt securities = i . =

El-nrmv.mqh [mh-::f than debt zecuritics) 11.,711.535 31363372 45 345,206

_Subordinated liabilitics ~ - ¥
| Other financial liabilities 5829.21 | 57339 6AD460 |

Total financial liabilities 1798271 | 34,2090 52,191.51

Non-Financial Liabilitics |

Current tax liabilities (Net) B 5527 5527

Prowisions = 184.70 184.70

Other non - financial Liabilities 57062 | 59.89 63152
| Total non-financial liabilitics 57062 | 19947 H70.49

Eaquity [ ‘
| Equity sharc capital - | HWWEES | HWEEE |
Oither cqulty T TR KU ‘

share application mone pending allotments - | - -

Total Equity - ; 12,594.82 13,5%6.51 A

Total liahilities and Equity 18.553.33 67,405, 79 B5,959.13 ‘L
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023

R, ln Lakhs
Particulars Cuarrent MNon=Current Tofal
Assets |
Fi |||a|14:-h:|l Aum«u |
ik Mh and LEH]'I oquivalenis HE.90 | - RO
Fi:mk hal.'lru:f n'rhr:r Than Eﬂ.‘il‘l dt :alih ::qun-nlcntli ; J ‘i"" 2 216956 d T-I']’.d-ﬂ )
1) Trade receivables o P -
0 Other reccivables 1986 |- | 1986
Loans _ L4747 | STGIRT9 59,186.26
Tnvesiments . - -
_Other Financial Assets RI.68 | 6364 149.32
Total financial asseis 61783 il T4 hd 09182
Non-Financial Assets ]
Curren lax assels {Net) | 17.67 77.67
Delerred tax assets (Met) 324.74 524.74
Property, Plant and Equipinent E31.48 E31.48
Intangible assets under development -
Other intangible assets - 59 51 149.57
Other non-financial assets 115.71 0.54 116.25
_Total Non-financial assets Ns71 | 147400 1,589.71
_Total Assets 73353 | 6LMMEO8 | 6568153
_ LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ] |
LIABILITIES
_ Financial liabilitics
Payables
Trade Payables
i fotal nuhnnding dues (o micro enterprizes and
small enferprises 3,80 S.R0
Ay pentaal nui*:mndlng dues to creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 394,34 kL BT
Other Pavables
i total outstanding dues 10 micro enterprises amd small
enterprises . . -
iy taatasl ouitstanding dues o creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
Debi securities 2,079.01 - 2,079.01
Barmowings (other than debt securitics) b 330,65 19.615.594 2594659
Subordinated liabilities - - -
(iher financial liabilities 4,902 46 473,17 543563
Total financial liahilities 13 77035 20,BR9.11 I3 B59.dh
Mon-Financial Liabilitics
_ Current wax iabilities (Net)
Provisions 13.17 11171 114.88
Chlver non - Jumnual Llahlmlﬂ 66,93 _1_'3 49 4R4.42
_Total non-financial liabilities ] 48000 | 12920 LR
Equity
Equity share capital - 24,998,635 24.998.65
Oither coquity - B, 2 14,12 621412
[ Share ﬁpj’-lh.mmﬂ money pending allorments | e -
Total Eqguity . NILTT LT
Total Liabilities and Equity 14, 250.46 S1L430.07 65,681.53

Annual Report - 2023-24




MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

30. Earnings Per Share

Pariwulers For the vear emled 2033-3034  For the vear ended J032-2003
| Basic | |
| Met profit as per statement of Profit & Loss (Rs. In Lakhs) | 207861 |, 344,040 .
| Profit available to equity shareholders (Rs, In Lakhs) | 2078610 [ 344,00 |
1|.".Il.,'l¥||:|ll:-d AvErage rrmbser -:1‘|I|.'|,||||I§' shares
| ||-'-||.Ihl:|.|1|,|||1E l,latri:uE thi VL Li|1 Mos 1 | 24 90 Bh452 X O B 452 I
Basic earnings per share of lace value of
| Rs. 10 each (Rs.) | (183 0,54 |
I¥Mluted earnings per share of face value of
s 10 each (Rs.) .83 | [k, 544

The Company is not having any instruments which are dilutive in Nature

There are no instruments outstanding that could potentially dilute basic earmings per share in the future bul
wire nod included in the caleulation of diluted camings per share because they are anti dilutive for the periods
presented.

There were no transactions that have occurred after the reporting date that would have changed significantly
the numbser of ordinary shares outstanding or potential ordinary shares outstanding at the reporting Date.

31.5egment Reporting

The Company 1s engaged i lending business. The Company provides morgages Loans (Home Loan, Loan
againsl properties, construction reality ) and operates with in India only, The Board of company reviews the
company's performance as a single business. There being only one scgment, disclosure for scgment is not
applicable.

32, Transfer to Special Reserves

Special Reserve has been created from the Financial Year 2019-20 onwards in terms of Section 364 1 Wviii) ol
the Income-tax Act, 1961, out of the distnibutable profits of the Company.In the current financial year Rs.
546,67 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 368.01 lakhs) has been transferred to Special Reserve & Statutory Reserve
in terms of Section 364 1 W viit) of the Income tax Act, 1961 & Section 29C the NHB Act as per notification no.
RBL2020-21/73 DOR.FIN HFC.CC No.1 20003, 10.136/2020-21.

As per National Housing Bank's (NHB) circular vide circular NHB{NDYDRS/Pol. 62/2014 dated 2Tth May,
2014, the Company has adjusted the opeming balance of reserves for creation of Deferred Tax Liabality (DTL)
Rs. 396.96 lakhs on the Special Reserve as at 1st April, 2023 created under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income
tax Act, 1961, Further, an amount of Rs. 137.58 lakhs has been provided duning the current vear.

33. Taxation
Income Tax expense in the statement of Profit and Loss Comprises of R T Lk
Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
20232024 Z22-20023
Current Tax | 69692 | 46736
Current Tax - Short{Excess) provision of fax for earlier vem 23.97 1093
Total current tax expenses T20.89 4TR.29
‘Deferred tax in statement of profit and loss I A
Relating to ongimation and reversal of temporary difference 28 5% [ 16591}
Impact of changes in tax rates ' - - ‘
_Total Deferred tax expenses/(income) 1 _I8.58 l (165.92) | &
Total Income (ax expenses T42.47 31237 A

The tax cxpense & tax assets have been computed as per applicable tax laws and genecrally accepted tax
computation policies and procedures. There is no unceriain tax treatment.
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
The details of income tax assets/{liabilities) and deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Rs, im Lakhs

Farticulars Ax at March 31, 2024 Agart March3l, 2023
~Net Income tax assetsi(liabilities ) | (35.27) | 17.67 i
Dizferred tax assets/ labilimies) HE.3Y 52474 |

330 A reconciliation of income tax provision to the amount computed by applving the statutory income
tax rate to the income before income taxes is summarised below

K, im Lakhs

Particulars For the year For the year

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Accouniing profit before fax _ 2 H28.08 [ 1.656.37 [
Stalutory lax rate 25 168% i 25, 168% i
Computed enacted fax cxpenses 71137 | 416.87 |
Im E“ﬂt of . | . !
Expenses disallowed under Income Tax Act . 9 K2 | 1007 |
Income tax deduction mcluding l-.:-l Special Reserve |
available to financial II'|~\.1IIulI.|.|II-I.*> & (137.58) | (92.63) |
lax expenses perlaining (o previous Year . 3. 97 [ 10493 i
(hers 141.50 (32.87) i
__fﬂl.'lm'h.' {FRY l"l.l;ll.'llﬁt'rl H 1Y |!|ﬂ" ]:ul'ﬂla I T49.47 | 3 IZ.J'?‘ I
Effeetive income tax rale _ 6. 50% | 18.86% |

33.2 Details of cach type of recognized temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
Re, im lLakhs

As ot As at

Farticulars :
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deeferred tax related to ltem recognised through profit or loss
Ikeferred tax liahilities
Unreilised gain on investments

Unamartised expenses for borrowings ' [ K7.RIN ' (32.02)
{}Ih..r:-ll'JlTI on Special Reserve Ref Note 327* . (53454 . - .
Total — Deferred tax liabilitics (62234 (42.02) |
Delerred tax assels _ . . . | . |
Unamontised income/expenses (net) on loans given 153.52 242 80 |
Expected credit losses o 775,08 258 2| I
Emplovee benefits -_l:g.'_?l 343 i
Related to Property, Plant and Tqmpm..n' and 1:.'h-:|: 44 45 34.23 |
thers 1_.I._F-3 - ‘
Tutnl- Deferred tax assets TI.TA 566, Th
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) ' 9839 ' 524.75
Details of movement in deferred tax balances
B, in Lakhs
As at (Chargeieredit  1Charer)orvds \s at
Purticulars April 1, i profit and . o '.;“m.,_-..._ March 31,
Hi23 birss account s

Unamertised i income/eXpenses (net) on loans given 242 80 11095 - 1531.82
Unamortised CXENSES rnr-l:-n.'-nﬂmn;za {42.02) (45.749) - (a7 80y |
Unrealised gain on investments | - I - I - I -
Others | - 1 (snasa | - | (534.54)
Expected credit losses | 25821 | 1777 | : | 27508
Emplovee benefits | 3143 | 1529 | (o) | 4591
Property, plant and equipment and leases | 3423 | 1021 . - | 4445
Onthers | - | o038 | - | 05K
Total | 52474 | (42555 | (081 | 9839
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

Digtails of moyvement in deferned tas balanees R, I Lakhs
As al (Chargeieredit i s il
FParticulars April 1, o profit and cammprabentive March 31,
222 Inss account {0 caami 2023
Unamartised meome/expenses (neth on loans given L T7.13 . = [ 24289 |
LInamoriscd expenses for homowings | _(43.07) | .00 . - [ (420 |
Linrealised gain on invesiments | (359 | 13.99 | - | - .
Expected credht losses | Z23E5 | 5430 | - [ 25821 |
Employee benchits ] ) | 2470 | j3.1] | {h.3H) | 3143 |
Property, plant and equipment and leases | ZrEe | h.54 | - | i N
Tustal [ 365.19 | 165.92 _ {h.38) [ 51474 |

34. Capital Management

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover nisks inherent in business & in meeting the
capital adequacy requirements of Reserve Bank of India. The adequacy of the company capital is monitored
using, among other measures, the regulations issued by regulators. The company has compiled in full with all
its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported periods

Ks. in Lakhs
Particulars A5 ad March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Dbt | 50.210.96 | 32,223.49 i
Equty 32 Kthh 02 312800
Debi lo equity ratio 1.53 1.403 !

Loan Covenants
Under the terms of major borrowing facilities, the Company has complied with the covenants throughout the
reporting period.

35. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

The company has filed its Income tax return for FY 2019-20. There are outstanding demand of Rs. 5.96 Lakhs
(including interest) relatng to leave encashment as per intimation order received by company dated
December 24, 2021, Company has disagreed with demand dated October 03, 2022, Matter is under litigation
(CIT Appeal)as on March 31, 2024,

Loan Commitments

The Company has outstanding undrawn commitments to provide loans to customers. These loan
commitments aggregated Rs. 7,166.69 Lakhs at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 6,880.43 lakhs).
Furiher, the commitments have fixed expiration dates and are contingentl upon the borrower's ability to

miainiain specific credit standards,
Capital Commitments

Estimated value of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital account and not provided for is Rs.1.93
Lakhs(PY : 1.61 Lakhs).

36, Leases

The Company has taken various office premises under lease. The lease terms in respect of such premises are
on the basis of individual agreement entered into with the respective landlords.

Movement in Carrving Value of Right of Use Assets is given below R R
Particubars As al March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2423 ‘

o o —

| Deletion (257.58) (58.37) '
Depreciation for the vear . (41.36) | 139,100 {

| Closing bakunce 664.36 _ 595.94
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

Movement in carrying value of lease liability is given below,

Ks, in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 224 As al March 31, 2023
Upﬁu}' palance 684 47 '.‘El.l__‘.‘_i |
Addition 16716 144 .86 :
Deletion (61607 (27.03)

_Finance cost accrued during the peniod | _71.64 1 _S%6d .
P.!:‘.-I:lfln:ﬂl _ | 2itwl, BLD | (222.72) i
Closing balance . TT4.20 | (84,47 .

Currend | 198 8] J11 .30 :
- Nesn-current 575.19 | 473.17

Contractual maturities of lease Hability on an undiscounted basis is as given below,

s, im Lakbs

Particulars As at March 31, 2024  As al March 31, 2023
Less than 1 vear 255,56 210,41 |
Between 1 and 2 years | 240,40 l 18740 ’
Between 2 and 3 years | | B, 1 | 166,47
Between * and 4 years ' 117.31 | 11684 '
Hetweein 4 wind & VAT 47491 51,46

E Hﬁj e than § vears [ ;._,'_-'T_".ig']_ ' -!' Ti_- JH !

Total 911.05 | 84346 |

—— el

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets
are sulficient 1o meel the obligations related 1o lease habilities as and when they fall due.

The Company did not have any variable lease paymenis and also did not sub-leased night of use assers.
Further, the Company does not have any sigmificant restrichions or covenants imposed by leases,

37, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses :
Hs. im Lakhs

For the vear ended For the vear ended

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Ciross amount required to be spent by the Company during the vear 18 05 10 45 [
Amount of Expenditure Incurred 3'1._{"::! | 400K i
Amount spent during the vear on purposes other than |
consiruction | acquisition of any assel 39.00 40.00 ‘
Paid 149.000) | 40.00

Yel o be paid - -

Total 39,00 ' 40.00 |

37.1 Shortfall in Payment:

There 1s no shortfall in the CSR amount required to be spent by the Company as per Section 135(5) ol the Act
for the financial ycar ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

37.2 MNature ofl CSRE Activities:

For the vear ended March 31, 2024: A
Out of the total amount of Rs.39.00 Lakhs, the company: ‘
- spent Rs.12.00 lakhs towards Hunger Free Palghar, an initiative by GovardhanAnnakshetra, ISKCON;
- gonfributed Rs. 17,00 lakhs to TATA Memorial Hospital for the purchase of medical equipmenis; A~
- contributed Rs.10.00 lakhs to Medical Rescarch Foundation for cataract surgerics performed of 200 g8
paticnis.
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
For the year ended March 31, 2023:

Chut of the total amount of Rs.40.00 Lakhs, the company:
- spent Rs, | 2.00 lakhs towards Hunger Free Palghar, an initiative by GovardhanAnnakshetra, ISKCON;
-contributed Ra.18.00 lakhs to TATA Memorial Hospital for the treatment of the Cancer Patients;
- contributed Rs. 10,00 lakhs to Medical Research Foundation for major eye surgenies performed of 58
patients.

37.3 Related Party Transactions & Provision

The Company has neither made any CSR contribution towards its related parties nor has recorded any
provision for CSR expenditure during the financial vears ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

3%, Offsetting Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are subject to offsetting where there is 4 legally enforceable right to
set-off recognised amounts and the company intends to either settle on a net basis or o realize the asset and
settle the lability. Simultaneously, at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, there was no offsetting of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

39, Financial Risk Management
Liquidity Risk

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of financial hiabilities as at March 31,
2024

Rs. in Lakhs
Farticulars Lipto | year 1-3 year 1-5 vear Cver 5 years Total
Bomrowings | 11.714.47 | 21 18328 I Q177,14 | 161908 45649412
Debisecurities - - - . -
Total | 171447 | 21,183.28 9.177.19 | 361918 15,694.12

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at March 31,
2023

Rs. in Lakhs
Parficulars k 3 ver 5 years Tkl
J'.il.':-l'nm:r”_'_h 332 84 12,2763 6,054 4] | 621N Ty, 1009, 25
Debtsecurities | 208333 | . - - 2.083.33
Tatal | B A6 1R | 12.279.63 | 6.934.41 l 56218 248,192,549
Credir Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instroment will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk encompasses both, the direct risk of default and the risk of
detenioration of credit worthiness.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk is as follows:

R, i Lakhs

Farticulars As al March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
(Other Recemvables 14634 1%, Bf
L._.mm.‘ ! 1':-:.5.44Lr' ﬁ'-i'_lf:lH;f:_.:ﬁ

] ﬂlhl,r F_if.;n nrin_l__-h'-:bg:_rq_ _ iilr-_!’a- | -"I-:il-l}._'il |

For the loan portfolio, an impairment analysis 18 performed at each reporting date based on the facts and
circumstances existing on that date to identify expected losses on account of credit risk. For the purposes of
this analvsis, the loan portfolio 15 categonsed into groups based on days past due. Each group is then assessed
for impairment using the ECL model as per the provisions of Ind AS 109 - financial instruments. The
impairment assessment 18 also carried out in accordance with the regulations prescribed by RBL The
provision for impairment is considered at higher of the amount worked out as per Ind AS 109 and as per RBI
Regulations,
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

Reconciliation of gross carrving amount of loan portfolio

Rs. in Lakhs

i"ill |i'¢.'IJI'.1J L]

Gross carrying amount balance us at April 1, 2022 733056 | 126620 | SIS | 4913048

New assel origimed 24.064.41 184 | - | 24.066.26

Assets derecognized or repaid (1277960 | (21082 (95.00) | (1308551

Transfers from Stage | {(73502) | 49824 | 2a078 | -

“Transfers from Stage 2 8297 | (66R.A6) | 18549

l:r:-||.1xi|.r5-: |‘I'|.II1'I Shaare 'i |IEI-'1| H"\- I"- "| | 1I|‘1- '1|"Hl .

Gross carrying amount balance as at March 31, 2023 BATEI | 9325 T43.87 60,112.23

New asacl |.|r|ul|1a-|.lL'-|.I "i.?..,] 1M T 162 \-.Eljﬁ.ﬂl

Assels derscogniesd or nepasd (12, 1359.54) { D68, 560 (15.64) | (12,487.54)

Transfers from Hng-_- | (1.319.21) 06469 | 254.52 B

Transfers From Stage 2 35170 (42X 100 T3

Transfers from Stage 3 | 75.58 . | (175.58) -

rross carrylng amieani P:Iam:n.- as ai Mareh 31, 2024 TT.H6T.14 1.367.29 i TOT.A0 T9.741.53
Reconciliation of ECL Balance g

Particulars

Siaqe £

Siage 3

ECL Allowance as at April 1, 2022 3782 | 21923 | 2em | 783a6
MNew assel originadied [90.8] 33 2014
Assets derceognieed or repasd (H3.25) [3fd2 (b ok (162.35)
I-.il;.n.' L |.'|5.'-|r'|p_|.:.~; i :-|1.'1-';|:|1|:;1.:-|.-|1|1\ II::IH| NeRd] I::rh'-;'r l “--J-J_IE]!. . I_HS.TI}
_Transiers from Stage | {365} 404 | 165
Transfers from Stage 2 83.98 (115.54) | 31.56 2
- -i.'I:q:II'I!&h'rb from Slage 1i 6,97 2,65 r-:lf} Al -
ECL Aliowance as at March 31, 1013 16597 6760 | 21167 445,25
h.,"l.'. pssel ||r|i,||1.1I|.4!I 'il,,ﬁl:'r e l | I.I:I N gﬁ.ﬁ-."l-
~ Assets dtrn:{'ngnl?cd ar n:jwd 35.63 1275 | 53,96 10234
D s L]L‘:u'lb,L"\. I|:| .Laa-l.l..h;'ltu'll'l.h I: I-I"-T Hﬂr %[} 1% I_ IR F"‘-r 1135.68) 1
“Transters From St e ] ("I. 4 :'P _‘-|,-.;;|-:_}. | |:| h‘-l -
Transfers from Stage 2 I (3194} 5.28 2
Transfers from Stage 3 AU O ; | (4996}
ECL Allvwance as at March 1I IEIH 401 10186 46T | S1054

The Company is having additional provision of Rs.501.6( lakhs for tum losses, provision of Rs.63.83 lakhs
for restructured loans and Rs, 20,59 lakhs for loan commitments as at 3 1st March 2024,

4. Fair Valuation

Carrving value and fair value of financial instruments by categories at March 31, 2024

Rs, in Lakhs

Particulars Ev1PL

EvPCI

Amortised Coxi

Lokal Carrving Value

Fair Value

Financial asseis
Cash and cash equivalents 131,56 111 56 111,56
[! mk l'l.ll..il"l-l..l! |.|1|1|:r tham above 5.-1:-!-!'1.|‘|I.‘| | ‘1.-'.-1-:4 b 1,4_-1.:-. 6
{Jllb.r r-:»:-:n J|'||-.. S - I-1-r1'¢-l i I-Ih..i.-*.r- |4r1 1-1
Loans | ' TmeT | 78,644,97 TH.644.97

_|I'n cAlMENES - | - -
Chher finaneinl assets 123.66 123 6 123,66
lotal hinancial asseis I - - AL 4,607,019 84,697,19 b
Financial liabilities ‘
Irade pavables | 441,94 | R IR 441 5
Oher pavables - r
Dbt securities . : | - ‘.
Borrowings 45.345.26 43.345.26 45.345.26
'[fllhn..r fimanci: |.| ||.'||1|||!:«|.5 . - i1 -‘I-‘lfln'-'l- Fll.l. | i, uul.l-l- I':-l:l [ 4] -J-'I.I-i l!'lII
Total financial liabilitics - - 51,171.82 ELI191.82 52.191.42

2023-24
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

Carrving value and fair value of financial instruments by categories at March 31, 2023

Rz, in Lakhs

Particulars FYTPI Y POl Amortised Cost Todal Carrying Yalue Fair Value
Fimuncizl asseis ! .
Cashi and cash equivalents LR BE ) st
Bunk balance other ithan above 4,747 48 4, 74T 48 4,747 48
Other receivable . 19,56 19,86 19K
Loans 5908626 5008626 59 086 26
I|:|'.'|."-.I|1:|.'|1I:x . 5 . - S .
Oither financial assels . 14932 14952 14932
Total financial assets P 64,091 K2 64,001 K2 54,091 K2
Financial lkabilithes
Trade payables 198.23 198,23 398.23
Other payables :
Dbt securities 2.075.01 2.075.0] 2,075,101
.H.':m""." ings - !."'.'1'.-1'.'1.'.;".?. 15.'-!'4&5.::" l.*:'lil-'-_h. ?".i'
Oither financial Liabilities - 5435063 343563 543563
Total fimancial liabilities | s AESAR | 3850

Fair Value measurement of financial asset and liabilities

The Fair value of Loan given and funds borrowed approximate carrying value as the respective interest rates
of the said instruments are at the prevailimg market rate of interest.

The carrving amount of other financial assets and other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost in the
financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the company does nol anticipale
that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received
or settled.

During financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the company has not reclassified any of the
financial assets from one category to another category. Henee, fair value hierarchy is not given for the same,

An analysis of financial instroments grouped into Level 1, 2 and 3 at March 31, 2024

Particukiurs

Rs, in Lakhs
Tustul

Finamcial asseis

lrivesliriznla

TR6M4IT | TEO44.97

TR.AH4.57

Total financial assets | - . 78,644.97
Financial lialsilities |
Dbt securitics - -
Bsrronwings Ir | 45,345 20 4% 345 25
Total financial liabilities 5 . . 4534526 | 45.345.26
An analysis of financial instruments grouped into Level 1, 2 and 3 at March 31, 2023 e
5,

Particulars

_l.'il1.l neial assels
Loans | 50,086,246 5008626
Invesimenis | : . . | .
Total financial asscts — - 59.086.26 | 59.086.26
Finnmecinl liabilities [ Ir
Diehit securities 'r 207,01 2.079.41
Borrowimgs i | - T5 Odiy, 50 TE 94659
Total financial lHabilities | - - 28,025,040 2R 01560
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

41. Related Party Disclosures

Related EATTS

Huoldimg snterprises

Koy Managerial person

T iris ik | relaied Partecs

EIES Dternatsoaal LLE

Charnman ardd Managmg Lhrecior

Managing Director

Hajesh I* Khandwila
Vimal P. Khandwala

(el Financaal Orhcer
Company Secretary

Whaole Twne Dhrector ( Adddsmal Direcior]

Enterprises aver which Key Managerial persen have conirol

"ukl.l "u|.1.!r "1|1IIJ |:J.|'!lp|.1III|L|.‘| el .Iul'l.' 'IH. ZIZIIZ
Sumrudlll ‘mhh Sherty 1:||:1:-u|.m-:-.l W f"-hr..l:u ‘IJ "'U 5‘.1!
Kushal Jayesh HI'--lnLhmIrH-lrlpmnrcd w.e.f, Muorch 24, MI23)

KIFS Trads ¢ .|||HI:-u| Privale Limitesd

Elamdwala F ||:ﬁm-.k Private 1 |||:||1=;I

KIFS Financial Services Limited

Khandwals Commercanl Privale Limited

KIFS Motors Private Limited

Amourenx Enverprise Privaie Limited

Endrml Emcrprise Prvale Limabod

hl'l“\. Bullion Fn'r.u: | |.||1|I|.'-|:I

mps (IFSC) I-"u-. al.-r.: L|||:||.Iud

h.h II'||!"-'-'J|J- TrJd-:]ml-. 'E'ﬂ [F"lrmmnhsp Flnm

KIFS Enlerpnise 1F|:|.r1r||."rxlt1r| Faremih
KIFS Commerciel (*artnership Finm)

KIFS Deilers ( Partnershap Finm)
KIFs ir.nJl:ut. LLP

hJJ-"E lnﬁ'asmu_'run: LLP
KIFS Estate LLP

Clashyu Services LLP

MET lewels Privaie Limied

KPS lpsaramce Brosceng Private L |:||.|I.ﬂl

H]F‘S Elr-.ILmu. Flr-.ale-. L"||||.1;.'1J
.-'l..u'unu [".~.|||.1 LLP

Anantodrishti Pedestal Privore Limised

Padmaja E - Commernce Private Limiied

5 K £ Developers L J'
"rl*n}a Deabers Private Limitcd

h.“"'h "'n-di.l.'ill.lﬂ'h J"n'n. al.f I ||.1||1I:-:~:1

KIFS umm-:-dn:—l:: E'r"- wie leﬂ-:d mmnlj.:lnm-:d 'l-';:l-l.1 JL.Ti._ P i_l

Mop-execilbye Direclorg

I ndepe mdend

Kartik Mehia

Hhovin Desai
Purvi Bhavsar

Satish Wleha

Pudmanabh Vors (upto sweguasi (5, 20235
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

Particulars of transactions with related parties. The transactions are disclosed in aggregate value.

I'ransactions

Soamie of rebabed pariy

Hiulding

enterprises

Enderprises
aver which KMP
hove Cimiral

KNP
relativies
af KNI

Rs. in Lakhs

Inidependent
Mon-Excentive

IMrectirs

Loun Taken | Khandwala Finstock Pvt. Lad. | 2, (R R |
! i i
| Total Loan Taken { | 2 (R W !
| N 1 ; |
opaymient pIdOn | Khandwala Finstock Py, Lid. | 200000 |
Total Repayment made | ' 2. 00000
on loan Taken i -
. i '
_Interest Expenses Khandwala Finstock Pvi. Ltd. | 1477 |
! | 138,15) I
| | 5
Kent KIFS Intermational LLP | 5:25 '
| I KIFS Realty LLP EXEI T
| = !
i ) | KIFS TRADE CAPITAL P Lid, l 1920 l
| [ - |
Managerial Remuneration | Sammedhi Satsh Shetty H.ax
| _ (.17}
1 T i . =
i Vikk -‘Ir'lja;-. Soml | 6659 .
g § | (34.76)
1
I Tejal Gunjan Gala I
(resigned w.e.l August 10, 2022} | -
| ! | (3.23)
! : I
Re-imbursement of ; i i i l
|'.:|.'rl:'::1.hm““n 1.'I | Vikki Vijay Soai l | &0l
} } | (4.22)
f Samnudhi Satish Shetty | [ 1166
Sitting Fees Padmanabh Vora i
! ! E {0.70)
| Bhavna Desai . ; .20
' ' ' { 1.80)
i Purvi Bhavsar [ [ .10
i ; | (1.10)
i Kartik Mehia | | 160
! I _ __ {11y
. Satish Mehta ' ' 340
| i (0.30)
1 . !
Diirector Remuneration | Sutish Mehta ' [ 2.54)
| | [ { 1.040%
_Total Expenses 4906 | 8224 | 980
. | (38.15) [ {423T) {6.040)
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
Note - Previous vear figures are given in bracket.

Note — The company has not granted any loans to promoters, directors, KMP's & related parties
during the inancial year 2023-2024 & 2022-2023.

# For Continuing employees, expenses towards gratuity and leave encashment provisions are determined
actuarially on overall Company basis as at the end of cach year and accordingly, have not been considered in
the above information.

42. Emplovee Benefits
Defined Benefit Plan:

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to 2 number of nsks, the most significant of which
are detaited below:-

Asset volatility:

The plan liabilitics are calculated using a discount rate set with references to govermment bond yields; this
may carry volatility and associated risk.

Inflation risk:

The present value of some of the defined benefit plan obligations are calculated with reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
hability. The post-retirement medical benefit obligation 15 sensitive to medical inflation and aceordingly, an
increase in medical inflation rate would increase the plan's liability,

Life expectancy:

The present value of defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants, both during and after the cmployment. An increase in the life expectancy of the
plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Ciratuily benefit Liabilities of the company are unfunded.

The following tahles set out the status of the gratuity plan as required vnder Ind AS 19,
Hs. in Lakhs

Year emded Year ended

Particulurs March 31, 2024 Muareh 31, 2023
{ Ul unded | L il )

Emploves benefit expense recognived in Statement of Profli & Loss:

Current service cost ' 24.72 52131

Mk Imlerest cost 3.1 .40

Mot benelit vxpense | 17,83 3472

Emploves benefit expense recognized in (Mher comprehensive Imcome

(OC1):

Awtural |gm5:.-_|-§=.-.uh 0Tl ::E!-I.E:nmn for the peniod {321} (2533)

Actual Retuns on Plan Asscts -.'";L;u-.ilr.g Intercss Income | -

Net enpense recognized in OCT far the perbod {320y (2533 |
Rs. in Lukhs

Yiear ended Year encled

Particulars March 31,2024  March 11, 2023

Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligation
are ns follows:

Orpening defined benefit obligation -1-1..5-:. | 133K :
Inlerest cost | L ! 24l |
Current service cosl 24.72 | 3231 i
__Actuarial (gains)losses . 3.21) | (3333 |
Benefit paid by company . {7.07) (0.45)
Closing defined henefit obligation S ‘!.?...;T
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

Amount Recognised in Balance Shect

|}-L"r|.|bf.'l,| benelin -:l!'.h;-',.'ll!tnr'l 5 R8T 42 17
Fair value of plan assets

1
{ Assed U Halsility BO.RT 4332 |

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the company's plans are shown

below:

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Hs, in Lakhs

Year ended March 11, 2021

U mTumdea )

Dizcount rale per annum
Rate of Salary increment

Withdrivwal Rates

Muartality Rate

(L b inibod )

.20 b pil

1, % p.a
i 1Ape 25 & Helow @ 25% pa
np Age 2580 35 : 25% pa
|||r.-".|:!-|.' 15t 45 : 0% [ra
I |.-";$|.' 45 1o 55 55 i
v) Age 55 & above | 5% pa

Indhinn Assured Lives
Maortality (2072- 141 Tabde

745% p.a
T.00%% |1 1

i bAge 25 & Below @ 15% pa
i} Age 25 w0 35 15% pa

i) Age 35 w45 6% pa
it‘!l."'.t:n.' 45 00 55 - 4% pa

vy Age 35 & above : 2% pa

Indian Assured Lives
Moriahiy (2072-14) Table

Projection Risks:

Interest Risk - A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan hability

Longevity Risk - The present value of the delined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participanis both dunnlg and afler thear employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's Lability.

Salary Risk -The present value of the defined benefit plan liability 1s caleulated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. Az such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability,

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefits Obligations: Rs. In Lakhs

Year ended Year endeld
March 31, 2024 Wareh 31, 2023
{0 o Tl il {Umfanded)

Particulars

Maturity benefits payable in future vears from the date of reporting | :

kst Following yeor | 1440 [RLY

Ind Following vear 2.1 17

*1:|‘| I'|IZ‘I-:'-;.1.|1|._.|E:-}-|.'.1|.' | : bt ] I .

4th Following vear ' 419 | 5%

Sth Following year 5.36 323

Sum of years 6 10 10 [ 37 10 TS

After 10 yeurs [6.9] 14_E7

Total | 59 57 4232
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption s, in Lakhs

Nirch 31, 2024

r. i | = I|I-'|:II'|.'|I tl. II'IE.j
sdicaimey (12 Manths) (12 Momths)

" Discount Rate Sensitivity
[nereased by 0.5% 56.79 3088
{ e EI‘IIH;[‘E-L'} [ L [ 5 Th%
Decrease b 5% 6314 4497
(% champe } . 5 .‘"-1-";. . 5, 281G
* Salury Growih Rate Sensitivity
= Increased by 0.3% | 6212 | 63 :
(% change) _ 3.T7% _ £51% i
) Heorease by U.1% 1 EIC. 3 1 _Si2
{ /e change) | -3.95% | “3.10%
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

Withdrawal Rate (W.H.) Sensitivity
W.R x 1107 57 K3 ' 4164
% change ) -3 | -1.58%,
WoR x G 62.01 | 4299
{ % chamge| 3.59% [.50%

Compensated absence

Cost for compensated absence is included in the line item "Emplovee Benefits” in the statement of profit and
loss. Detatls for compensated absence are as given below.

Hs, in Lakhs

' Year ended Year ended
Sl Warch 31, 2024 March 31, 223
Cosi ' 109,79 hE.58
Discount rate used | 720% p.a | 7.43% pa
Salary escalation rate used H00%G poa T.00% pat

Details of the company's contribution to defined contribution plan is given below:

R, im Lakhs
Partlculan Year l'l1-l‘|ﬁ.| Year ended
. Muarch 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023
Provident Fund ! 141.9% | 36 (¥
1 -
|'|'|'|i:l|1‘1:b,q_'|_'“a State Insurance Scheme T.71 Gy

43. Events after reporting date

There have been no sigmficant events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these hnancial
stalermenls,

Disclosures as required by Reserve Bank of India

44. Capital to Risk Assets ratio (CRAR) (Compuied as per method prescribed by RBI)

rartineiary March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
i) CHRAR (5500 + (i) T3, de g1, 93u;
") | CRAR TierI Capial 0 T am | wam
{Hi) | CRAR- Ticr Il Capital (%) 0,445 51%
) Armount of subordinated debi considered as Tier-11 capital (In €) Nil Mil
v | Amount ragsod h':.-' s of Po r|'u_':|_|||| Diebé Instmamenis | Ml . Bl

45, Principal business criteria

. As at As at
Particulars

March 5L, 2024  March 31, I023

Percentape (%) of housigg loans to tobal assets less miangibal assets TOHN T4.21%

Percentape (%) of housimg loans o individuals to ol assets less

intangible assets T.82% T4.21%

46. Group Structure

( KIES International LLP J Holding

.

( KIF5 Housing Finance Limited ] Subsidiary
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
47. Statutory Reserve

The Company creates a reserve fund as required by section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987, wherein
a sum equal o twenty percent of its profits derived from eligible business (business of providing long erm
finance for the construction or purchase of houses in India for residential purposes) every year, and before any
dividend is declared, is transferred. The Special Reserve qualifies for deduction as specified w/s 36 { 1) {viii) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 and accordingly, the Company has been availing tax benefits for such transfers.

e in Lakhs
Particuls A al Lz i
ool March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Uipening balunce
- Statulory Reserve wis 29C of National Housing Bank, Act 1987 1.432.10 1,183.30
- Auneund of Speeial Beserve w's 364 1 )ivian) of hecoms: Tax
Act, 1961 1aken o account for the purpose of Statubory 223,64 124,40
Reserve under section 29C of the NHB Act. 1987
Total | 167574 L.307.70
Addition/withdraw al during the 'I-EJI'
Add: | — :
= Amo um lr.lnuicmd ws 290 of the WHB |"||.I: I'ill-i.- [ 415,72 | 268 K0 .
- Amount of Special Reserve w's 30410y of Income Tax
Act, 1961 taken o necount for the parpose of Statutory 130,495 Lt
Reserve under section 29C of the NHB Aeci. 1987
Less; )
.-‘l.||1|.|||nl SAPPrOpr; aled I|'|1n1 1h|.- "pl.aln:l-.u". Reserve u's '"1": of the
MNHE Act. 1987
- Aot whithdrawn from the special rescrve ws Mo 1 W viii) of
Impome Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpese of
provision w's 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Closing balance 2,111.41 1.675.74
- Statulory Reserve u/s 29C of National Housing Bank, Act 1987 | 1.E6T 82 [ 1 452,10
- Amount of Special Beserve w's 3601 W viii) of Ingome Tax
Act, 19%] taken mito scoount for the purpose of 51i|l|,|'.||r_l.- 354 59 e |
Beserve under section 29C° of the MHB Act, 1987
Toial { 1,211.41 . 167574

There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2024 and during the year
ended March 31, 2023,

48. The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the bagis of security of cument
assets and the quarterly returns filed by the Company with the banks and financial institutions are in
accordance with the books of accounts of the Company for the respective quarters.

49, Investments Rs. in Lakhs

A%k @l Ay ml

- S r
Particulars Viarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
u "- ‘nhee rll Iml.*!lmmr

1] -Err-.m '-..Llu-. of Investments
il I Iindan = -
b) Orusside ndia - -
i) Provision for depreciation
aj Im India -
_b) Ouside India
1) ‘~I.|.'| wilue of |111.'|::-I'.|1|.':||l~\.
i Ini Inedan - -
b Cuiside Lvdia - -
b Movemenis ul'prnn:mnt: hebd fowanrds i!l.prruu!lml in imvesimenis
1l []Fh:'nlﬂ'u,, balance
i) Add: Provisions made dunng the vear

i) Less: Write ofl'write buck of excess ]z-'m'- i3ions -.ll.l"mi. the vear .
vl Closing balance = &

Annual Report - 2023-24



MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

50. Provisions and contingencies.

Ks. in Lakhs

Particulars (break-up of provisiens and contlngencies shown under the Yeur ended Year ended
head “Expenses’ in profit and loss) Miarch 21, 2024 March 31, 2021
Provisions made towards income Lax T20. 54 ATE 24
Provizions towasds NPAs { 7. {1444
Provisions for stondard asscis | TLI% (223.47) .
Al itponal ﬂul:lhllp PN Of o nssels LELEY] 455,25 |
Provision for restructured cases | . (6,72
Prowision Tor comunitmenls 12,12 (2T

Chher provigions and contmgenciss

- Giraduaty 1755 H.94

- Compensated absences 1 Oy | 7.E1
- 1

Proncisson for expenses 449 73 13 H|

S1. Concentration of NPAS

Hs. in Lakhs
As al Al

1I-. -- 1 - -
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total exposure to fop fen NPA accoumrs 204,94 172.11 |

51. Sector wise NPAs provisions and contingencies Rs. in Lakhs

S AS al A5 at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
!
{1} Individual {our of total advances in that sector) | 134.67 167.44 '
Individual {in %) (out of total advances in that sector) | (.22% 0.35%
B. Non-Housing Loan
1|:| Individual (o of toial Hxla:'u-_.ﬁlll\.,'l,:'.'h in thal secior) {:,I-]:I:',I'-:I: _.;_E_t
Individual {in %) (out of lofal advances in that sectar) | [.36% 0.37%
53, Movement of NPAs K b Lakhs
Partieridars Year ended Year ended
ch 301, 2024  Nlareh 31, 2023
(1 Met NPAs o net advamces (%) | (1.63% 0.89%
L) Movement of pross NPAs |
&) Opening balance T43.87 524,50
by Addition during the vem ' 324 B2 426,26
¢} Reduction durig the vear Yl 59 210,98
i) Clusing balance TUT. 10 T43.47
{11} Movement of net NPAs |
) UP!.‘['III.IQ.' balance | 532.2 302 48
by Addition dur ing the vear | 210,31 304.97
£} Reduction -:JEr'-m;. .h-.\'_-.'nr | 260,57 75.25
d) Clasing balance L 502.43 532.20
(ivh Movemment of provisions for NPAS (excluding provizions on
standard asse)
&) Opening balance | 211.67 226,11
by Addition during the vear | 04 03 12129
¢} Reduchion during the year 101 .02 135,73
d} Closing halance 1 20467 21067
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024
54, Customer Complaints Rs. in Lakhs

As al Ax ail

Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

(1) Mo, of complanis pending at the begmmng of the year

(b} Mo, of complaints received dunng the vear ) | S
(e} lo, of complamits redressed dunng the vew 38 S
id) Mo, of complaints pending at the end of the year 2

55. Concentration of public deposits
The company is a non-deposit taking housing finance company. Hence, this disclosure 18 not applicable.

Sh. Concentration of loans and advances Hs. b Lakhs
s Ax at As at
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Fotal loans of twenty largest borrowers R T R2307
Percentage of exposure 10 iwenly angest Dormowers/ Cusioners (o (otal 1 1%e 1 370
' — i .
exposure of the HFC on bormowers customers ! !
57. Concentration of all exposures {(including off balance sheet exposure) B b Dkl
Particul A% at
b March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fotal loans of twenty largest borrowers 97521 BT6 K6
Percentage of exposure 1o twenly largest bommowers customers. o total 13 |38
exposure of the HFC on borrowers/customers e
5. Rating assigned by rating agencies during the year Ry ' Lakhs

Instruments F.X. 2023-24

Long term bank lacilities
-Acuite . A- Stable outlook | A- Stable outlook
Nop=convertible debentores |
__-Acuite | M | A~ Stable outlook
-Brickworks | MA | _BBEB + Stable outlook
59. Break-up of loans and advances and provisions thereon Hs. in Lakhs
Particulars Housing Loan Non-Housing Loan
As at March 31, 2024 |
B2, ol PR | O |
Principal outstanding GOOLE. 12 . 18,945.27
EMLPEMI-interest'fee debiors : 71,03
Provisions _ 253.42 | 10091

Sub-standard assels
Primcipal oulstanding 17146 165 .44
Provisions 49.63 47,840

Doubiful assets — Category 1

Principal outstanding | 35.05 44,072
Provisions 41.5% 1317
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

Principal cutstanding
-I"r;;x-h.':.n.ﬂa;m ke

Total

Principal outstanding
EMUFPEMI-interestTee debiors
Provisions

Particalars

Housing Loan

15K, 77
TR

i AR 3 A0

398,15

32.36
11.63
19,187.09

71.03
17621

Hs. in Lakhs

Non=-Housing Loan

Ax af March 31, 2023
Standard mssels

Principal outstanding 4757038 11.747.24
EMI'PEMI-infercst/fice debtors 50074
Provisions ' 216.71 | 67.93 |
Sub-standard asseis
Principal oulstanding 338,59 0%.149
Provisions [00.74 31.72
Doubiful assets — Category |

: .E.'; I:I-I.:IFIH.' .'iILHh'IJ'IIHJ:II‘!! - 3-—1-‘4?” “;:.'."“\
Provisions ' 78.79 ' 19.01 '
Doubilul asseis - t’uluuuﬁ 11 L ‘
Principal outstanding -
Provisions . . - .
Tatal

. I.“.r.[n-l:-dpul nutstanding L 45. 155,51 11,902.68

~ EMUFPEMI-interest/fee deblors - S0.74
Frovisions 106,24 119,66

—

60. Disclosure required as per Circular DOR (NBFCOLCC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/201%-20-
Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards as at March 31, 2024

Bs. jn |akhs
asel Agsel {arimss L% Frowisions h?llfl:;nllr'l-d
| tl caith 4 3 J tic i allowances Ml ey TAS 109
“ssperRBI  asperind  smowmtas  feduired  carming  Clopicp otions and
NS AR 109 per Lo Ay ””1:'1:':"“':“ O VIS TRACP
? : for ms
1 2 3 d E=3-4 G T=d-6
Performing
assels
Standard Stage | 77,667.13 204.01 77,463.13 219.18 (15.17) A
Stage 2 1.367.28 101.86 1,265.42 3.74 9%, ]2 ‘
Subiotal 79.034.41 30587 T8, 714,55 121.91 821.95
ik -pl;'rful‘rh'lng | ik
assets (NPA) A
Substamdard Stage 3 33601 0752 239.59 51.44 46,03 .
F::E'Jm" =~ Stage 3 179.07 51.83 127.24 45.57 6.26
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

Tt 3 years | Swmged [ j91a2 | 3532 [ 13580 | TRz | (22500
Maore than 3 year Stage 3

Sabioia) e 370.19 107.15 263.04 123.39 (16.24)
bt ful

Lioss Stage 3 - - 3 - =
Subtoial for NPA THT.10 2BT 502,43 174.83 2084
Crhier 1tems such

15 guarantees, Slage | 105607 [2.39 TA43.68 - 1239

bokan coamrmitmsents)
cle. which are
the .~il:up|: ol Ind
Ad [ UY bul not -— -

el it Stage 2 47.21 5.56 9165 - 5.56
current Income
Recognition, Assel)
Baswification and

Provisioning Stage 3 13.41 2.65 10.76 - 2.65
(IRACP) norms
Subtotal 7.166.69 20,59 7.146.10 ; 20.59
Stage 1 84.723.20 216.39 84.506.51 119.18 (2.79)
Total | Stage2 | 146449 | 10742 | 135707 | 3 10368
Stage 3 72051 | 0731 | 51320 | 174.83 3249
Total 86,908,210 531.12 R6,377.08 39774 133,34

In addition to above, the Company has made additional provision of Rs.501.60 lakhs for loan losses and Rs.
:3.83 lakhs for restructuring cases

61. There are no unsecured advances against intangible securities such as rights, licenses, and authorisations
as collateral security during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

62, The Company does not have any prior peniod nems / change in accounting policies during the current vear
other than disclosed in financials.

63, Maturity Pattern of Certain items of assets and liabilities

Rs. in Lakhs
As gl March 31, 2024
Loans Bank borrowings#  Market borrowings Investments
1-T days 35025 70.81 : -
B-14 days a5 38 33,33
| 5=1 month 25330 G611 | [
12months | 56535 | 101557 ; 5 -
E"'- !'!'lE:I_ﬁI_I.'_f! 5_1'17_._“?3 : 555.?] | |
3-6 months [, 711.36 3,022 28 ; - -
-1 year 3,575.36 6,254.64 '
1-3 vears 11.434.37 21.050.79
3-5 years 10.968.00 3.990.25 | |
5 years 45.694.50 3,592.64 : . 2 A
Total 78,644.97 4534527 | - _ - ‘
# Excluding loans repavable on demand from banks. A
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

L.oans Bank borrowings#  Market borrowings Investments
|-7 days 25579 1667
| 814 days | 25579 13.33 |
| 15-1 month i : 142,25 | | |
[ 1-2 menths 75407 12677 - -
21-3 months 1395 12709
3-6 months 233,25 1,751.73 2.079.401
-1 year | 551.51 3432 R0 I
|1-3 years P La8lal 12.251.84 | | .
1-5 yeurs | 2,123.72 680291
| 3 years | 53,933,776 561.19 | - _ .
Total | 59.086.26 25.946.59 | 2,079.01 _ -

i Excluding loans repayable on demand from banks.

1. The Company does not have foreign currency liabilities, deposits and foreign currency assets as at March
31,2024 and March 31, 2023,

2. Classification of assets and liabilities under different maturity buckets is based on the same cstimates and
assumptions as used by the Company for compiling the return submitied 1o NHB.

64. Exposure to real estate sector K3, in Lakhs

Particulars F.Y. 2023-2024 F.Y. 2022-2023

Category

a) Direct exposure

T ﬁﬁi&ﬁﬁﬂa—!.m;mgugr:
Lending fully secured by morigage on residential property
that iz or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented;
Howsing loan wp to Bs, 15 Lakhs 50.337.44 41.275.12

Housing lean more than Bs. 15 Lakhs L 4595 L]

i) Commercial real estate:
Lending secured by mortgoges on commercial real estates
(Office, bulding, retail space, multipurpose commercial
premises, mult-family residential buildings, multi-lenanied
premises, indusicial or ware house space, hotels, land
aegguisitions, development and construction, eie, }, Exposure
would also inelude non-fund based (NBF ) Limits

iiil} Imvestment in mortgage hacked securities {MHBS) and
other securitized cxposures:

1) Besidential

b} Comumercial real esiate - -

by Indirect exposure A
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on Mational ‘
Housing Bank (NHB} and Housing Finance Companies i .

{HFCs) A

65. Exposure to group companics engaged in real estate activities
The Company does not have any exposure 1o group compamos engaged in real estate activitics l

A/
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

66. Consolidated Financial Statements
The Company does not have investments in any entities. Hence, the Company is not required to prepare
consolidated financial statements

67. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of the Housing Finance Company as reguired under Master
Direction -~ Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021

Liabilities side Hs.in Lakhs

Tolwl Amanini

Sromt. Partieslars Outstunding Amnount Cverduc
% i 4

1} | Loans and Advances availed by the non- banking financial company
pclisivie of interest acerued thereon bul not due

ufl ' Fflfh-:nmru« ]

- Secured .
- Unsecured -
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits™) | ,
b) | Deferred Credits .
el Term Loans 45 4dh, 55 .

dy | Inter-corporate loans and borrowing | .

¢) | Commercial Paper )

i} | Loans repavable on demand from banks .

#) | Sub ordinate debe [ . .
h) | Working capuial faciliry -
1} Book overdrafi [ 4,8B65.70
Assets side Rs. in Lakhs

Srono. Particulars Aot

Z) Break-up of Loans and Advances including hills receivables Jother than those
imcluded in {4} helow]| :

[ o} Secured ! 18,0643.97
ll_ b) Unsecured 146.34
3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards

AFC activities:
|| Leasc assets mchuding leasc rentals under sundry debiors
a) Financial Lease
[ b) Operating Lease . =
[1 | Stock on hire including hire charpes under sundry debiors:
) Assels on hiere
bl Repossessed Assets | -
| _Other loans counting towards AFC activities :
a) Loans where assets have heen repossessed _ -
b Loans other than (a) above -

4) Break- up of Investmenis:
Current Investments

I | Quoted .
i Shares
a) Eqguity ¥

b ) Preference -
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

1 JJ:I:I-:mult and Bonds
i L'nits of Mutual Funds )
¥ Government Securities :

W | Others : 2
1y | Unguoted
L i | Shares
Lfl"l.]'\.lll'r' =

i) Preference -

ii Debenture and Bonds . -

i Units of Mutual Funds -
i | Government Securities :
v | Others . =

!,_-gg'lg' Trm lﬂ'_n:xlm-.-nﬂ

I | Quoted
1 Shares
e} |'.|.]'||| Iy - |

) Preference -
i | Debenture and Bonds | -

1l Unn'«- of Mutual Funds -
v I Csowvermment Securitics I -
\ Cthers -
i ' U niguoted '
i Sheres
—— _E* l-Lluitv -
h)y Prre rLanLL -
u_| IDLI,'ILI'”.“I'L. Jl'ul I-!-L:-n:!:». - |
i Units of Mutual F |.|nd- - :
i | Government Securities [ - [
v | Others | - |
Borrower group-wise classification of asseis financed as in (2) and {3) above: Rs. in Lakhs

Amvoinnd of Net Provision

Catesory

Secured Unsecored Tatal

Eelated Parties
ah Subsidiaries
b) Companies in the same group | | | |
) Oiher Related Parties " ' o |
|
|

Chher than related parires T8 6udd 97 1.3 TR T91.3]
Total TH44.97 Tdin. 34 T8, 79131

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities

{(bath quoted and unquoted):
R, in Lukhs

Market Value/Break up Book Value {Met of
or Fair Value ar NAY Provisions)

Felated Partics [

a) Subswliaries - - '

b} Compuanies in the same group . =
_______l_.,_ll 'fJ'1I1v.:|_|_'h._|a__I1.r.| Parties i . -
Chihcr than related partics > =
Total - -

Calesory
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

(rther Information Hs. in Lakhs

Particulars Amount
Giross Non- Performing Assets i

a1} Related Partics | - .
_b) Other than related parties | T07.10 |
Net Non- Performing Assels i
¢} Related Parties -
.-:H”l.ih.‘l than related parties 0243
Assets acguired in satistaction of Debis

68. The Company has not undertaken assignments of loans during the financial year ended March 31, 2024
and March 31,2023,

69. The Company has not undenaken securitization of loans dunng the financial year ended March 31, 2024
and March 31, 2023, The company has not spensored any SPV's during the current year and previous year,
and there 1s no outstanding amount securitized assets as a result of any such sponsorships,

70. The Company has not disbursed any loans against sccurity of gold.

71. The Company has no exposure in capital market in the current financial year and previous financial year.

72, The Company has no Transactions/exposures in forward rate agreement/interest rate swap in the current
and previous financial year.

73. The Company has no Transactions/exposures in derivatives in the current and previous financial vear,
74. The Company has not witnessed reported any instances of fraud in the current and previous financial vear.

78. The Company has not purchased’sold non performing financial assets from other Housing Finance
Companies in the Current and previous financial vear.

76. The Company has not sold any financial asseis (o Secuntization/Reconstruction company for assets
reconstruction in the Current and Previous financial year.

77, The Company has not exceeded single borrower himit and group bormower limit as set by regulator during
the current and previous financial year

78. The Company 1s not registered with any other financial regulator,

79. During the F.Y.2022-2023, in linc with Indian Accounting Standards, the sharc issuc expenscs of Rs.
47.51 lakh have been reclassified 10 Other Equity from Equity Share Capital. As a result of above the
Retained Earmnings are lower to the extent of Rs. 47.51 lakh and Equity Share Capital is higher to the extent
of Rs. 47.51 lakh. However, there 15 no change in the networth of the Company.

0. There is no financing of the parent company’s products during the current year and previous financial year.

81. The Company did not have overseas assets as al March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

R2. Penalties s im Lalkhs

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Matipnal Housing Bank NIl NIl

83, No adverse remarks were levied by National Housing Bank and Reserve Bank of India during the Current
and previous year,
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MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

84, The accounting pohicies regarding kev areas of operation are disclosed as Note 3 to the Financial
Statements,

85. There has been no instances except for interest on non=performing loans in which revenue recognition is
postponed pending the resolution of significant uncertainties,

B6. Details ofall material transactions with related parties are disclosed in note 41 of financial statements.

87. Refertothe Management Discussion and Analysis report for the management related disclosures.

88. The Company docs not have any benami property in its name. No proceedings have been initiated or are
pending agamst the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohabition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988 ) and rules made thereunder.

89. The Company has not been declared as walful defaulter by any bank. financial institution, government.
any government authorty or any other lender during the current financial year and previous financial

year.

@0, The Company has not undertaken anv transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companics Act, 1956,

91. Mo charges orsatisfaction are pending to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

82. Compliance with number of layers of companies is not applicable since the Company does not have any
subsidiary.

493, Dizsclosure of Riatios:

Sswmernter (K= In Lakhis) Denominmtor (s In Lakhs) Ratin
Poarlicalsrs
Paribculars  2012%34  Z2022-2%  Pacibeulass  2023-24  2022-11 IEY3-24 M-23
Ligpusdire
fail PR :“ll_E:':I (NH ] i &L 16 A9 T2 High Liquesd 1G0T TR 1 901 %7 041 036 55 TG
A sls Labslhilses
Ttio
Tengl Dkl :
) E’*‘*} Equity | iBervowing + | 5021096 | 3222344 "I‘""’I“I::‘""'"‘T" 3289682 | AL212 7R i %3 1 03 LT RE
e Diebemuns) i
Tinkid ehelsts Tatel D
I 1 1kl [ FleaTimwirg SOIN06 | 3222046 | Tobal Asseis R 950.117 A5 GRL.53 5= [ ] | 0
axsils Diefentimes)
Lneraiine : )
iif i Prafithefore | 3 pogng | 165637 | Toswd incomse | 1098660 | 500753 | 25700 e | 24ae
margn fax
O B Frofitafler | opomél | 108400 | Towml fecome | 1008660 | 800753 | imsw | 1e7es | 127
inEfgin [KE |
{nas Amge 3 Forers
in bt iy progs | T S T, HY 24387 Srss Loand | o gg) 5o | gornaas | gasos: 24 | naey
i Do Hilzlaling |
T
et slage & Ciroms MPA ::""_"1"'”-"'““"'
L loans ko net less MPA, 20243 £52.3@ i '-.ll.:;;"- TR.550 K5 | 5400, 56 L SR 3e §E )
Ioans Provisean Tra ison
Reason for change in ratios by more than 25%: ‘
(a) Liguidity Coverage Ratio (% change: 55.70%) -l-l

The company has increased the liquidity position as on March 2024 resulting in higher High Liquid Assets
as compared tothe previous year with the increased in size of operation.

Annual Report - 2023-24



MNaotes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended on March 31, 2024

(h) Debt-Equity Ratio (% change: 47.84%)
The Company has grown the Loan book from 600 Cr to 80D cr during FY 2024 and subsequenily, the

required funds have been raised from Banks' NBFC/FI resulting in increase of leverage from 1.03X lo
1.93A.

(c) Gross stage 3 loans to gross loans (e change: =28.34%0)
The Company has mereased the overall collection efficiency dunng FY 2024 resulting in betier collection
performance.

(d) Netstage 3 loans to net loans (" change: -28.90%:)
The Company has increased the overall collection efficiency dunng FY 2024 resulting in better collection
perfonmance,

94, (i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (enther borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entitv(ies) including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall :

a) Dhrectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (U Itimate Beneficiaries) or
b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behal fof the ultimate beneficiaries

(1i) The Company has not received any fund from any personds) or entities (ies), including foreign entities
{Funding Party) with the understanding { whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company
shall

a) Darectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalfofthe company (Ultrmate Beneficiarices) or
b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfof the ultimate beneficianies

95, There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in lax assessmenis under the
Income Tax Act, 191 ({such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books efaccount.

96. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto or Virual Currency during the vear.

97. Previous financial year figures have been reclassified regrouped restated to confirm to current financial
year's classification.

As per our report of even date For and on bebhalf of the Board of Directors of
For Manubhai & Shah LLP KIFS Housing Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants

[ICAI Firm Reg. No. 10604 W AWI00136

s/ sil -
Rajesh P Khandwala Vimal P. Khandwala
sd/- Chairman and Managing Director Managing Director
ViteshD.Gandhi DIN: 00477673 DIN: 00477768
Pariner
M. No. 110248 sdl- ol e
Vikki Vijay Soni Samrudhi Satish Shetty ‘
Chief Financial Officer Company Secrefary A
PAN - BRLPS7392) M. No. ACS-63985 A
Flace: Munibai Place: Mumbxai
Date: August 14, 2024 Date: August 14, 2024 v, .
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NOTICE OF
A nnuvaL GENERAL
Meening




~KIFS

roweowss - KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 9™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF THE
MEMBERS OF KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT ASHORTER NOTICE
ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 09, 2024 AT 11.00 AM. AT THE CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY SITUATED AT C-902, LOTUS PARK, GRAHAM FIRTH COMPOUND, WESTERN
EXPRESS HIGHWAY, GOREGAON (EAST), MUMBAI - 400063, TO TRANSACT THE
FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thercon.

To appaoint a director in place of Mr. Rajesh Khandwala (DIN: 00477673), who retires by rotation
pursuant te the provision of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

Tofix remuneration of Statutory Auditor of the Company for the FY 2024-15,

To consider and if thought fit, 1 pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with the provisions of Section 142 of the Companics Act, 2013, the
remuneration pavable to M/s. Manubhai & Shah LLP, Chartercd Accountants, having Firm Registration
No. 106041 W/W 100136, Statutory Auditors of the Company, for conducting the statutory audit, tax audit
and audit of internal financial controls of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 shall be fixed by the
Board of Directors and mutually agreed by the Statutory Auditors ofthe Company.™

SPECIALBUSINESS:

4. Toapprove borrowing limits under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013,

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolufion as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180( 1)ic) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there
under (including any statutory modification({s) or re-cnactment({s) thercof, for the time being in force),
consent of the members of the Company be and 15 hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the
Company or any comimitiee of directors to rase or borrow from time to time, any swim or sums of money
for the business of the Company by way of loans or debentures (whether secured or unsecured), bonds,
deposits, fund based, non-fund based or in any other manner for the purpose of business of the Company
any sums or sums of money whether in Indian or foreign currency from time to time from any bankis) or
any financial imstitutions or any other institutionds), firmds), body corporated 3) or other person(s) or from
any other source in India or outside India whomsocver from time (o time with or without secunty and
upon such ferms and conditions as the Board of Directors or any other committee of directors of the
Company may deem [it and expedient for the purpose of the business of the Company, notwithstanding,
that the monies to be borrowed, together with the monics alrcady borrowed by the Company and
remaining undischarged at any sHven time (apan from the temporary loans obtained from the Company's
bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the Company’s pard-up share
capital, free reserves and securities premium, provided that the total oustanding amount 80
borrowed/amount to be bormrowed by the Board (apan from the temporary loans obtained from the
Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business) shall not at any time exceed borrowing power limit
of Rs. 1000 Crores {Rupees One Thousand Crores) atany point of time,
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Directors of the Company. be and are hereby severally authornzed to
arrange or fix the terms and conditions of all such borrowings from time to fime, as it may think fit and to
sign and execute all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and incidental
thereto for giving effect to this resolution including but not limited to filing of necessary ¢-forms with the
Registrar of companics.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and 15 hereby authorized (o delegate all or any of the
powers o any commitiée of directors with power 1o further delegate 1o any other officen(s) / authorized
representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Chief Financial Officer or Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authonzed to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any on¢ of the Dircctor or Chicf Financial Officer or Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to sign the copy of this resolution
‘vertified to be true' and submit to such persons/authorities or be attached to such forms/e-forms
fdocuments/agreements, as may be necessary and they be requested toact thereon.™

To provide security by way of Pledge, Hypothecation, Mortgage, Lien and/or charge in such form
or manner on all or any mavahle or immovable property of the Company under Section 1R0( 13(a) of
the Companies Act, 2013,

To consider and it thought fit, 1o pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLYED THAT pursuant to Section | 80{ | ){a) of the Companies Act, 20123 and Rules made thers
under {including any statutory modificationis) or re-enactment (8) thereof, for the time being in force), the
consent of the members of the Company is here by accorded to the Board of Directors or any committee of
directors of the Company to provide secunty by way af pledge, hypothecation, mortigage, hien and/or
charge in such form and manner and with such ranking and at such time and on such terms as the Board of
Directors may determine, on all or any of the immovable and‘or movable properties of the Company
(mcluding but not limited to fixed assets, current assets, shares and other investments held by the
Company, all intangible property, rights and bencfits under all contracts and agreements entered into by
the Company and the monies of, long term receivables of and the loans and advances made by the
Company, both present and future, and/or the whaole or substantially the whole of the undertaking or any
part of the properties of the Company wheresoever situated, together with the power 1o lake over the
management of the business and the concern of the Company, on such terms and conditions and at such
time or times and in such form or manner as the Board of Directors may deem fit, to or in favour of
national/intemational financial institulions of bank s or trustees for the bond/'debenture holders (in case of
155ue of bonds or debentures) etc. (herein afler referred as “the Lenders™ to secure any term loans or cash
credit facilities or dehentares or bond or such other credit facilities obtained/to be obtained from any of
the Lenders together with mterest, compound interest, additional interest, hiquidated damage(s),
commitment charges, premia on prepayment or on redemption, cost, charge(s), expenses and all other
monics payable by the Company to such Lenders subject to aggregate amount of such outstanding credit
facilities notexceeding Rs. 1000 Crores { Rupees One Thousand Crores) at any pointof time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Directors of the Company, be and are hereby severally authornzed to
sign and execute all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and incidental
thereto for giving effect to this resolution including but not limited to filing of necessary e-forms with the
Registrar of companies,
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and 15 herchy authonzed to delegate all or any of the
powers o any commitiee of directors with power to further delegate to any other officer(s) / authorized
representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedient o give effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Duirectors or Chiel Financial Officer or Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authonzed to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this Resolution,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT anv one of the Director or Chief Financial Officer or Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to sign the copy of this resolution
‘certified to be true’ and submit to such personsfauthorities or be attached to such forms/e-forms
‘documents/agreements, as may be necessary and they be requested to act thereon.”

2013,

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification{s}, the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(3) and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment there of, for the time
being in force), the rules framed thereunder and in accordance with the Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hercby
accorded to the Lender{s) wo convert all or part of outstanding amounts under the Facility to be extended,
into fully paid-up equity shares (canying voting rights) of the Company at a price and on terms complying
with.(i)the terms of the Facility Agreement, (i) any approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of
appropriate authorities, wherever required, and (iii) applicable laws subject to the approval of members of
the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board of directors (the “Board™) be and is here by severally
authorized to offer. issue and allot fully paid-up equity shares {(carrying voting rights) of the Company to
the Lender(s), maccordance with applicable laws, in furtherance of the aforesad resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesand résolutions and the
conversion rights of the Lenden(s) pursuant to the proposed Facility Agreement to be executed by the
Company, the Board, be and is hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matiers and things as
the Board may n 15 absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable, to create, ofler, 1ssue and
allot the aforcsaid sharcs of the Company, to dematenialize the said shares, to convert the outstanding
obligations of the Company into fully paid-up equity shares {carrying voting rights) of the Company, and
to resolvie and sertle any question, difficulty or doubt that may anse in this regard and to do all such other
acls, deeds, matters and things in connection or incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion
may deem fit, with out being required to seek any further consent or approval of the members or other
wise, and to that end and intent the members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company do file this resolution and make any other filmgs required
under the Companies Act, 2013 {or Companies Act, 1956, wherever applicable), with the concemed
Registrar of Companies and other statutory/governmental authorities as may be required within the time
preseribed by low therefore and undertake any other registration requirements (as may be requined ).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dircctors of the Company., be and arc hereby scverally authorized to ‘
sign and execute all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and incidental

thereto for giving effect to this resolution including but not limited to filing of necessary e-forms with the Y ‘
Registrar of companies.

W=Ambh Hoad, Bodokdey,
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and 15 herchy authonzed to delegate all or any of the
powers o any commitiee of directors with power to further delegate to any other officer(s) / authorized
representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedient o give effect 1o this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or Chief Financial Officer of the
Companyor Company Secretary ol the Company be and are hereby severally anthonzed to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect 1o this
Resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director or Chiefl Financial Officer or Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to sign the copy of this resolution
‘certified to be true' and submit o such persons/authorities or be attached to such forms/e-forms
/documents/agreements, as may be necessary and they be requested toact thereon.™

To approve/ratify the Related Party Transactions.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification{s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THATpursuant to the provisions of Section |E¥ and other applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) and Rules made thereunder, other applicable laws / statutory provisions,
if any, (including smy statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) or re-gnactmentis) thereof, for the time
being in force), and subject to such approval(s), consent(s), permission{s) as may be necessary from time
to time and based on the approval and recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Dircctors
of the company. consent of the members of the company be and 15 herchy accorded to the company to
enter/continue to enter into contract(s) arrangement(s )’ ransaction(s) (whether by way of an individual
transaction or transactions taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) with related parties as
detailed in the Explanatory Statement annexed (o this notice and on such terms and conditions as may be
mutually agreed between the parties and detailed in the explanatory statement, such that the maximum
value of the contracts /arrangemenis | transactions, in the aggregate, does not exceed Rs. 50 crore ( Rupees
Fifty Crores only )during the Financial Year 2024-25with respect to any of the following transactions:

a) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

b} selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying properties of any kind;

c) granting or taking on lease of property of any kind;

d) availing or rendering of any services;

¢) appomtment of any agent [or purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property;

) suchrelated party's appointment to any oflice or place of profit in the company, 1% subsidiary company
orassociate company; and

g} underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the company;

hy Bormowing &lending of loans and advances, reimbursement of expenscs including towards sharing /
using each other's resources, ¢.g. employees, office space, infrastructure, assels ete, for each of the
financial years hereinafter, unless revoked and such that the maximum value of the related party
transactions with such parties, in aggregate, does not exceed value as specified under each category
for cach financial vear, whether or not the said contract({s) / arrangement{s) / transaction(s) be carried
out in the ordinary course of business of the company or at arm's length basis in respect to transactions
with related parties under section 2(76) of the act parties as detailed i the Explanatory Statement
annexed to this notice.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board of directors of the company ('the Board', which term shall be
deemed to include the Audit Committee) be and is hereby authorized to perform and execute all such acts,
deeds, matters and things including delegation of all or any of the powers conlerred herein, as may be
deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give eflect to this resolution as it may deem fiL at s absolute
discretion and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and
execuling necessary documents, contract(s), scheme(s). agreement(s) and such other documents as may
be required, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of the
company and settling all such ssues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to
take all such decisions from powers herein conferred to, without being required to seck further consent or
approval of the members and that the members shall be deemed to have given therr approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this resolution.™

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajesh Khandwala, Chairman & Managing Director or Mr. Vimal
Khandwala, Managing Director or Mr. Kushal Khandwala, Whole Time Director of the Company be and
are hereby severally authorized to approve such transactions on case to case basis within the approved
limit and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary to give effect to the foregoing
resolubion.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director or Chief Financial Officer or Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized 10 sign the copy of this resolution
‘certified to be true' and submit to such persons/authoritics or be attached to such forms/c-forms
'documents/agreements, as may be necessary and they be requested to act thereon.

By Order of the Board of Drreciors
for KIFS Honsing Finance Limited,

Vimal Khandwala
Vanaging director Date: September 03, 2024
DM MMTTTHE Place: Mumbai
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The Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 1n respect of 1tems
of Special Business is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice. Further, additional information with
respect to item no. 2 as required under Sceretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings, is annexed hereto
and forms part of this notice.

Members/Proxies are requested to produce/handover the enclosed attendance slip duly signed as per the
specimen signature recorded with the Company for admission to the meeting venue. In all
correspondences with the Company, Members are requested to quots their account/ folio numbers.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND YOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINTAPROXY TOATTENDANDVOTE ONAPOLLINSTEAD OF HIMSELF /HERSELF
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY . The instrument appointing
the proxy in Form MGT-11 annexed hereto, in order to be effective, should reach the registered office of
the Company duly filled, stamped and signed at least 48 hours before the time of commencement of the
meeting. Proxies shall be excluded for determiming the Quorum.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights imay appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other Member. Proxies submitted on
behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/ authority as
applicable. The Proxy-holder shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting.

A member desirous of inspecting the proxies received by the Company is requested to forward his‘her
request in writing at least three days before the commencement of the meeting. The proxy register will be
miade available for inspection by the member entitled to vote, during the period beginning twenty-four
hours before the ime fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the

Meeting 1.e. between 09,00 a.m. to 06.00 p.m. during such period.

Members are requested o notify immediately any change in their contact details and address to the
Company by emailing at secretarial@kifshousing .com.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Sharcholding maintained under Section
170 of the Companies Act, 201 3 as well as the Register of Contracts or Ammangements in which Directors
are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be made available for
inspection by the Members at AGM.

The Members will be allowed fo pose questions during the course of the Meeting. The queries can also be

given in advance al secretanal@kifshousing.com.,

Corporate members intending 1o appoint their authonzed representatives to attend the Meeting are
requested (o submit to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authonzing their
representatives to attend and vote on their behalfat the AGM.,

All the documents referred in Notice and Explanatory Statement are open for inspection by the members
at the registered office of the Company on all working days during business hours and will also be
available ot the venoe duning the continuance of the meeting,

. The Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at

https:/ Kifshousing. com/notices-disclosures/
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Ttem No. 4

The Board of Directors of a Company shall not, except with the consent of Company by Special Resolution
borrow money together with the money already borrowed, ifany (apart from temporary loans obtained from
the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business ), exceeding the aggregate of the paid up capital and
its free reserves ag per the provisions of Section 18041 )(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act™) and its rules
the reunder,

The Members of the Company at its previous Annual General Mecting held on September 25, 2023, had
approved by way of a Special Resolution under Section 180(1){c} of the Companies Act, 2013, borrowing
timats over and above the aggregate of pard up share capital and free reserves of the Company provided that
the total amount of such borrowings together with the amounts already bormowed and outstanding at any point
of time shall not be in excess of Rs. 1000 Crore { Rupees One Thousand Crore) for the FY 2023-2024.

However the borrowings of the Company for the FY 2023-2024 has vet not reached the hmit and the
Company would continue to borrow funds to meet the increased business volumes and growth of the
Company, thus it is necessary that the bormowing powers shall remain same s0 as to maich the business
targets,

The borrowings of the Company, if required, is to be secured by mortgage or charge on all or any of the
moveable or immoveable or any other tangible/intangible assets/ properties of the Company (both present &
future). in favour of any lender including the financial institution/banks/debenture ele, in such form manner
and ranking as may be determined by the Board of Directors and committee of directors of the Company
from time Lo time as may be mutually agreed with the lender(s).

Hence, the consent of the Members is therefore sought to pass Special Resolution under Section [80{1) {c) of
the Act, as set out in item no. 4 of the notice, to enable the Board of Directors/committee of directors to horrow
momies and inter alia, authorize the Board to seoure ifs borrowing by way of mongage / charge on the assets ol
the Company, which shall not exceed a sum of Rs. 1000 Crores for the FY 2024 - 2025.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as per the accompanying Nofice, for approval by the
Members of the Company,

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are interested,
excepl o the extent of their equity shareholding in the company or has any concern or inferest in respect of
the above mentioned Special Resolution.

Ttem Mo 5

In order to facilitate securing the borrowings availed / to be availed by the company or subsidiary{ies) or
associates of company, by way of loans, debentures or any other securities or otherwise, in foreign currency or
in Indian rupees, it is proposed to obtain the approval of the sharcholders by way of a special resolution under
section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, to create charge / morigage / hypothecation / pledge on the
company’s assets mcluding tangible and intangible, both present and future, or provide other securilies in
favour of the banks, financial institutions, any other lenden(s), agent(s) and mustec(s). from time 1o Gme up o
the limits approved or as may be approved by the sharcholders from time to time under section 180(1)(c) of
the Companies Act, 201 3.
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The borrowings of the Company, if required, is to be secured by morigage or charge on all or any of the
moveable or immoveable or any other tangible/intangible assets/ properties of the Company (both present &
future), in favour of any lender including the financial insutution/banks/debenture elc, in such form manner
and ranking as may be determined by the Board of Directors or commuttee of directors of the Company from
time to time as may be mutually agreed with the lender(s).

Hence, the consent of the Members is therefore sought to pass Special Resolution under Scction [80(1) (a) of
the Act, as set out in item no. 5 of the notice, W enable the Board of Directors/ Committee of Directors to
borrow monies and inter alia, authorize the Board to secure its borrowing by way of mortgage / charge on the
assets of the Company, which shall not exceed a sum of Rs. 1000 Crores, for the FY 2024 - 2025,

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as per the accompanying Motice, for approval by the
Members ofthe Company.

MNone of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are interested,
except to the extent of their equity sharcholding in the company or has any concern or interest in respect of
the above mentioned Special Resolution.

Agenda ltem No. 6

The Company will be granted Loan by the Lenders enabling the company (o run its operation besides
restructuring the existing debt in line with the debt repayment capability of the Company.

A Facility Agreement will be executed with the lender, which, inter alia, contains a clause that in case of
default of payment of any dues to the Lenders in accordance with the terms of the above Agreement or farlure
by the promoters for timely payvment of moneys and continuance of the same, the Lenders can exercise
various rights as a consequence of event of default including exercise of their rights of conversion of debt into
equity called as ‘Conversion Right'. 1t1s also agreed that the Lenders shall reserve the nght to sell equity shares
to amy person without limitation, under applicable laws, in case of any event of default

Hence, the consent of the Sharcholders is therefore, sought in accordance with the provisions of Section 62 (3)
of the Act.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as per the accompanying Notice, for approval by the
Members of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are interested,
except to the extent of their equity sharcholding in the company or has any concern or interest in respect ol
the above mentioned Special Resolution.

Item No. 7

The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board') at its Meeting held on JuneQ7, 2024, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, recommended for the approvalratification of the Members,
entering into related parly contracts / amangements ¢ transactions in the ordinary course of business and on
arm's length basis/not at arm’s length basis during the Financial Year 2024-25, as set out in the Resolution.

As the Members are aware, the Company, in order to further its business interests, enters inlo vanous
transactions with its related parties.

In order to facilitate the business and 1o manage the affairs of the company smoothly, the company needs to &
make some transactions with its related partics w.r.t. borrowing / granting of loans and advances, using of ‘
resources, granting or taking on lease office premises, ¢tc. as more particularly mentionad in the proposed 4 ‘
resolution.

Hegistered (R loar, KIFS Corporate §hoose, Beside Hdel Planet LanGmeark, Noer Ashok YVatika BETS, 1I5E0N-Ambh Hoasd, Bosdakdey,
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The particulars of the transaction(s) pursuant (o the provisions of section 188 of the Act read with the
Companies (Meetings of Board and 11s Powers) Rules, 2014 are ag under:

Proposed Related party Transactions

Maximum value of fhe proposed

nsactions (in agpgregate)

ira
l. Cranting or faking on lease of property of any kind
2, Avatling or rendening of any services
3, Bormowing & lending of loans and advances, reimbursement of
expenses ncluding fowards sharing / using each other's
resources, e.g. employees, office space, inlrastructure, assets ¢lc.

Rs. 50,00, 00,006

Below are the list of all Related Party Transactions which are in the ordinary course of business at arm's length
basis entered / to be entered mto by the Company:

Mame of the party with

witich eontract shall he
entered

M5 KIFS Trade Capifal
Private Limited

Mame of the interested
Mrecior and Nature of
Relationship.

W Bagesh Khamdwala
Mai |ugir|'l.; Director,

M. Vimal Khamdwala—
Managing Director and Mr.
Kuszhal Khandwala —Whole
Time Darecior,

Particulars of the
transaciion

Mz KIFS Trade Capital
Private Limited has lel o
the property situatcd at

Mumbai {Corporate Office) |

for the business and
operation purpose of (he
Comnpany Lor the rendal of Bs
| el LR = pim |._'~::_'I|||.Ii||;.:
Lax ],

Mature, Material Terms,
Monetary Value and
"articulars of the
Coniruct or
Arrangements

| MUs Trade Capital Private
Limited has lei out the
property sPuated al Mumban
(Corporste OMice) for the
busimess amd opeérntion
purpose of the Company
without any considerstion
remt.

Mrs. KIFS Realty LLP

Mg KIFS Intemational LILF

Mr. Rajesh Ehamdwala
Managing Dircctor,

Mt Vimal Khandwnla —
Manoging Director and hMr.
Kushal Khandwala - Whole
Time Darection

Mr. Rajesh Khandwals
Managing Direetor,

Mr. Vimal Ehandhanla
Managing Director and W,
kKushal Kkandwala —Whole
Time Director,

feside Hiotcl Planet

Mea KIES Imematonal LLP
has let out the propeny
siuated at Vadodara for the
business and operution
purpose of the {_'-.I-:l|1p:|.||!. o
the Femtal of Bz 43,712

puny (excluding laxes).

Mz KIFS Realiy LLF has
et ot the propenty siluated
ot Ahmedabod for the

I'IIJ':.i 3t ill'-l] Ll iI.|i|.II1
purpose of te Company
withoul any
cotsideraisonren

andmark, Mo Ashok Votika

{'|||:|r||:|:|i1|_|_: and repehibive n

nalure.

Continuing and repetitive in
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as, KIFS Trade Capital hr. Rajesh Khandwala - Mg KIFS Tragde Copital ks Contaymg and repetiiive in
Prvate Limitexd Managing Director, acting as a Depository TRATIEC

Mr. Vimal Khamdwala - Participant for the Company

Mannging Director and M, and broker 1o invest the

Eushal Khandwala —Whole temporary surplus funds of
Time Director, e Company, Mo Brokerage
{ommpsion shall be

charged by M/ KIFS Teade

Capital.
“Wliis, BIIS Finstock Lomisesd W IE:|_|mI|. K hambasla Miw, KIFS Finstock Limatel l'_'||||l||:-|||||__u Ty repetrbive in
.'l.'l:ln:lgl'lﬁ [ hrelaor, hag pronted |nler Corporale fialere
Mr. Vimal Khandwala Diepaosit of an avoan nol
Managing Dircetor exceeding Ba, 50 Crore 1o

KIF5 Housing Finance
Lirmited s the inferest mte

ol TS p.a.

The Beard recommends the Special Resolution as per the accompanying Motice, tor approval by the Members of the
Company,

Except for Mr. Rajesh Khandwala, Mr. Vimal Khandwala & Mr. Kushal Khandwala, Nome of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or their relatives are interested, except to the extent of their eguity shareholding inthe company or
has any concern or interest in respect of the above mentioned Special Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For KIFS Housing Finance Limited,

Sd/-
Vimal Khandwala
Managing director Date: Seprember 03, 2024
DIN:477768 Place: Mumbai

Hegistered (R : IFS Corporate Theose, Beside Hiscl Planet Landmek, Noer Ashok Votika BRTS, 15E0N-Ambl Hoad, Bodokdey,
Armbdh, Ahme

Park., Crreshaim Farth ail. Westemn Express Highway, Gorezson { Essr, Mumial - M3, Maharaghira, Indin.
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KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECRETARIAL STANDARDS-2:

Details of Directors seeking Appointment/Re-appointment/Re- designation at the Nineth Annual General

Meccting

Mame of the Director

Desigmation

Mr. Rajesh Khandwala

Chairman and Managing Director

Lrate of Berthy Ape

DM

23-06- 1964/ 6d) years

O07TTHTA

Drate of First appoiniment on the Board

Cualification

Movember L6, 2015 a5 a Managmg Director of the Company

Crraduation m Commeree

Profile, Expenience and Expertise in specific
functional areas

Sharcholding in the Company

Mumber of Board Mectings sttended during
the vear

Chairperson’ Membership of Committees
of other Company

Direciorships held in other Company os on
date

Terms and conditions of appointment /
re-gppointment

Relationship with other Directors EMP
of the Company

Shri Rajesh P Khandwala, son of Late Shri Parmanand G,
Khandwala aged sbout 64 vears, holds the Bachelor Degree in
Commerce and has an expenence of more than two decades in
capital market activities. He has rich and varied experience in
the field of Primary market, Secondary market and hMutal
Funds. He 15 an independent thinker and a measured nisk taker
with a passion for equitics. Also with his knowledge in the
business of housing finance, he is taking up the Company to the
new heights, growth and success

% (Coptribation in KIFS International LLP — 329,

[k

KIFS Financial Services Limited:

Audil Commities - Member
Stakeholders Grevance Committes - Member
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee - Chairman

KIFS Financial Services Limited

KIFS Motors Private Limited

KIFS Trade Capital Private Limited
Khandwala Commercial Private Limited
Amourcux Enterprise Private Limited

KIFS (IFSC) Private Limited

A e b B

-

Appointed as a Managing Director of the Company w.e.f,
Movember 16, 2010 3 and reappointed for a period of 3 vears with
effect from March 04, 2021,

Remuneration sought to be paid: Nil

Remuneration last drawn: Nil

Belated o Mr. Vimal Khandwala, Managing Direcior and Mr.
Foushal Khandwala, Whole Time Director of the Company.

Hegistered TH ith Floar, KIFS Cinporate | boose
Aambd, Alhme ool RE

Corparate T Laotus Park., Chnihs

Ph. Mos =] 2266 11 o

N LGS A O S PR S0 M B R

gk, Noer Ashok Vatika BETS, 1I53K0MN-Ambh Koad, Bodokdes

Express Hishway, Ceoroeson | B, Mombal - Ma 3, Mabaraghioea, India
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ROUTE MAP FOR 9""ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Address: C-902, Lotus Park, Graham Firth Compound, Western Express Highway,
Croregaon { East), Mumbai - 400063
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W roweoas - KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

ATTENDANCE SLIP

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN: Us3922G 1201 5PLCORSOTY
Registered office: 6 Floor, KIFS Corporate House, Beside Hotel Planet Landmark, Near Ashok Vatika
BRTS, ISKON-Ambli Road, Bodakdev, Ambh, Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380054,
Corporate Office; C-9202, Lotus Park, Graham Firth Compound, Westermn Express Highway,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400063

9" Annual General Meeting,

Regstered Folio No. [ DP 1D No, Chient 1D No. :

MNumber of Shares held:

[ certify that | am a member / proxy for the member(s) of the Company.

I hereby record my presence at the 9" Annual General Meeting of the Company being held
on Monday, September 09, 2024 at the Corporate office of the Company at C-902, Lotus Park,
Graham Firth Compound, Western Express Highway, Goregaon ( East), Mumbai - 400063

Name of the Member / Proxy

Signature of the Member / Proxy _

Cirsham Firth Comnpousd. WYespam Express Highway, Corezson | Essry, Mumbal - M3, Maharaghira, Indin.
kalshiasmg com Webkibd: www KiEhdpsimg oom
- M IH-IHII 45
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w rowcone KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 103(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19{3) of the Companies
fManagement and Administration) Rules, 2014]

KIFS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN: Ues922G12015PLCOSS0TY
Registered office: 6" Floor, KIFS Corporate House, Beside Hotel Planet Landmark, Near Ashok Vatika
BRTS, ISKON-Ambli Road, Bodakdev, Ambli. Ahmedabad. Gujarat - 380054,
Corporate Office: C-902, Lotus Park, Graham Firth Compound, Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063

Mame of the Member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio Nos Clint 1d:

DP 1D:

I/ We being the member 0F .....cvimm vesnsesnsniy IIOBIIR - vusymimresoins shares, hereby appoint

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail 1d:
LTI o or failing him

[ £ ]

. Name: _
Address:
E-mail 1d:
Ty Ty RS DL

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 9" Annual
General Meeting ol members of the Company, to be held on Monday, September 09, 2024 at the
Corporate office of the Company at C-902, Lotus Park, Graham Firth Compound,
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400063 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: -~

Hegistered (Mlce: Gth Floor, KIFS Comormie Thease, Beside Hiel Planet Landmek, Mo Ashok Votika BRTS, 1580N-Ambh Hoad, Bodokdey,
Aambli, Al

L || 1 Farth © ||-._|..”J_'.'.|_-.:. I wprress Hip I| Ii yieEmodt | Eisry, Mmtal - P 3, Malarashira, Indii.
| 1% w ki b com
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S Mature of Resolutions Voting {Assel or Dissent)

M
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

l. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Awdined Financial Statements of
the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, including the
Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 and the Statement of Profit and
Loss for the vear ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon

r g T appoint a director in place of Mr, Rajesh Khandwala (THN: (0477673),
who retires by rotation pursuant (o the provision of Section 132 of the
Companies Act, 201 3 and, being cligible, offers himself for re-appointment,

3 To fix remvuneration nl'Hl'.!I!l;l.Ii,ll:u- Auditor ol the {_'||:|:|'||“|-;|:E_':.' for the FY 2024-

25,

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS:

4, To approve borrowing limits under Section 180 1 ) of the Companies Act,
2013,

5. To provide secunity by way of Pledge, Hypothecation, Mortgage, Lien and'or
charge in such fonm or manner onall or any movable or immovable property of
the Company under Section 1801 Wa)of the Companies Act, 20013,

. o consider and approve conversion of Loan 1nato Equity under Section 62(3)
of the Companies Act, 200 3.

'E To approve/ratify the Related Party Transaciions
Sipned this ......... dayof...............0 2024 Affix
signature of Sharcholder Revenie

Stamp

Signature of Proxy holderis)

Note:

* This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed, signed, stamped & deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not later than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the
commencement of the aforesaid meeting.

« [Itis optional to indicate vour preference. If vou leave the "for', "against’ and 'abstain' column blank
on all/any resolutions, your Proxyiies) will be entitled to vote on Poll (if taken) in the manner as
he/she thinks fit. ‘

Hegistered (H loar, KIFS Corporate Hhease, Beside Hodel Planct Landmerk, Noer Ashok Yatika BETS, 158000N-Ambh Road, Bodokdey,
Armbd, Ahme

Corparale e Aok, Caham Fir il Westerm Express Highwsy, Ceobezsods | Easry, Mumbal - MeHES . Malsrashina, Indin.
Ph. Mow: =] 15 Wb www kil hoosi
N LGS AR N O SPLURS BHE CR- [
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WY HOME LOANS

W Hegistered OIMce
KIF% Housing Finance Limited KIFS Homsing Finance Limiled
=902, Latus Pork, Cimabam Firth Compound, Gith Floor, BIFS Uorporate Honse,
Wiestern Express Flighway, Goregaon (E). Besule Howzl Planet Landmark, Mear Ashos ‘
Bliimbian - 20063 Vatika BETS, I3KOM-Ambli Boad, Bodakdey,
Srnbli, Ahmedabad, Gugnmi - 380054 ‘
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